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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to present to shareholders of Allied Properties (H.K.) Limited (“Company”) the annual
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year 2015. The
performance of the Group has been very pleasing as the Group achieved a record profit attributable to
shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The revenue of the Group for 2015 (including continuing and discontinued operations) was
HK$5,198.0 million (2014: HK$5,645.0 million). The profit attributable to the owners of the Company
for the year (including continuing and discontinued operations) was HK$4,122.5 million (2014:
HK$2,023.8 million), an increase of HK$2,098.7 million. Earnings per share (including continuing and
discontinued operations) amounted to HK60.52 cents (2014: HK29.75 cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK6 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 (2014 final dividend: HK5.5 cents per share) payable on or around
Wednesday, 27th April, 2016 to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 15th April, 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS AND WARRANT HOLDERS
(1) For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend

For determining the entitlement to the interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend) for the year
ended 31st December, 2015, the register of members and the register of warrant holders of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 13th April, 2016 to Friday, 15th April, 2016 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares and warrants of the Company will be
registered. In order for a Shareholder to qualify for the interim dividend (in lieu of a final dividend),
all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates or in the case of warrant holders,
all subscription forms accompanied by the relevant warrant certificates and exercise money, must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
of Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 12th April, 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement (Cont’'d)

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS AND WARRANT HOLDERS (CONT’D)

(2) For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company (“2016 AGM”)

The 2016 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 26th May, 2016. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM, the register of members and the register of warrant
holders of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 24th May, 2016 to Thursday, 26th May,
2016 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares and warrants of the Company
will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2016 AGM, all
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates or in the case of warrant holders, all
subscription forms accompanied by the relevant warrant certificates and exercise money, must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited of
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 23rd May, 2016.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The “Review of Operations” by the Chief Executive, which immediately follows this statement,
incorporates the Group’s business outlook for the future.

APPRECIATION

We have experienced a record year of profit in 2015. However, the Group expects there will be various
economic challenges during 2016. We believe that with its prudent strategy, and the dedication,
loyalty, professionalism of its staff, the Group is well prepared to meet the challenges.

I would like to express the Group’s appreciation for the efforts of our staff and look forward to their

continued support. | would also like to thank my fellow Directors, our professional advisors and our
Shareholders for their support during the year.

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March, 2016
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Review of Operations

INTRODUCTION

The core businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates consist of property investment,
property development, hospitality related activities and financial services. The Company is a subsidiary
of Allied Group Limited. The Company’s interests in property investment and development and
hospitality related activities in Hong Kong are mainly held through its wholly owned subsidiaries or
the 50% owned Allied Kajima Limited (“AKL”), and in respect of property investment and development
and hospitality related activities in The People’s Republic of China, through Tian An China Investments
Company Limited (“TACI"), being a 48.66% associate held by the Company. The Company’s financial
services business is mainly conducted through the Company’s 55.52% holding in Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited (“SHK”) as well as SHK’s effective 58.18% holding in United Asia Finance Limited (“UAF”).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2015 2014

HK$ Million  HK$ Million

Revenue 4,594.5 4,571.7
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

(continuing and discontinued operations) 4,122.5 2,023.8

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 27,677.5 24,289.2

Return on equity attributable to owners of the Company 14.9% 8.3%

Gearing ratio 9.1% 25.3%

HK cents HK cents

Earnings per share 60.52 29.75

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Financial Results

The revenue of the Group for the year from continuing operations was HK$4,594.5 million (2014:
HK$4,571.7 million), no material change compared to the year before.

The profit for the year (including continuing and discontinued operations) was HK$6,104.2 million
(2014: HK$3,075.3 million), which included HK$3,033.5 million gain on disposal of 70% interest
in Sun Hung Kai Financial Group Limited (“SHKFGL”) to Everbright Securities Financial Holdings
Limited (“Everbright Securities”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Shanghai listed Everbright Securities
Company Limited.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year from continuing and discontinued
operations was HK$4,122.5 million (2014: HK$2,023.8 million), an increase of HK$2,098.7 million.

The increase in profit attributable to the owners of the Company was primarily due to:
- gain on disposal of 70% interest in SHKFGL mentioned above; and
- higher contribution from associate TACI.

The disposal of 70% interest in SHKFGL by SHK was completed on 2nd June, 2015. SHKFGL’s
contribution to the Group up to the completion date was classified under discontinued operations and
all 2014 comparative figures were reclassified accordingly. SHKFGL became a 30% owned associate of
the Group and its contribution has been grouped under share of results of associates. In order to present
the Group’s segmental information more clearly after the disposal of SHKFGL, the segment previously
named as “Investment, broking and finance” is re-designated as “Investment and finance”.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)

Financial Results (Cont’d)
Earnings per share

Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations amounted to HK60.52 cents (2014:
HK29.75 cents).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

(@ On Tst February, 2015, SHK entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Everbright
Securities to dispose of 70% equity interest in SHKFGL (“SHKFGL Disposal”) at a consideration of
HK$4,095.0 million. The transaction was completed on 2nd June, 2015 and the gain on disposal
was HK$3,033.5 million. Further details of the SHKFGL Disposal are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 27th February, 2015 and the announcement of the Company dated 2nd June,
2015. SHKFGL has become a 30% associate of SHK with a carrying value of HK$1,644.0 million
upon completion of the transaction. During the year, an impairment of HK$538.7 million, included
in “other operating expense” was incurred from the revaluation of this equity stake. As part of
the transaction, SHK negotiated a put option on the 30% equity interest of SHKFGL to Everbright
Securities. This put option recorded a valuation gain of HK$596.0 million classified under gain on
financial assets. The net gain of HK$57.3 million implicitly reflects the guaranteed return from the
option, and timing differences.

(b) On 5th June, 2015, AP Development Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of its entire interest in King Policy Development
Limited (“KP”) to Allied Kajima Limited (“KP Disposal”), which is a joint venture of the Company.
The KP Disposal was completed on 25th June, 2015 and the consideration received was HK$640.5
million. KP holds a block of serviced apartments, Century Court, in Wanchai. Before the disposal,
the Century Court was revalued at market value and the fair value gain was HK$203.2 million. The
gain on KP Disposal was HK$15.9 million based on the property revalued amount.

Other than the above disposals, there were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the year.

Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure

During the year, the Group purchased part of the 6.375% US dollar denominated notes (“6.375%
Notes”) with a total nominal value of US$19.4 million (2014: US$9.3 million) from the market at
a consideration of HK$153.5 million (2014: HK$75.9 million). The nominal value of the 6.375%
Notes outstanding after eliminating the intra-group holdings was US$315.8 million or equivalent
to HK$2,447.5 million at the end of the reporting period (2014: US$335.2 million or equivalent to
HK$2,600.1 million).

The nominal value of the 3% US dollar denominated notes was US$60.0 million or equivalent to
HK$465.0 million (2014: US$60.0 million or equivalent to HK$465.4 million) at the end of the
reporting period.

During the year, the Group purchased part of the 6.9% Renminbi denominated notes (“6.9% Notes”)
with a total nominal value of RMB5.0 million from the market at a consideration of HK$6.4 million.
The nominal value of the 6.9% Notes after eliminating the intra-group holdings was RMB495.0 million
or equivalent to HK$590.8 million (2014: RMB500.0 million or equivalent to HK$624.9 million) at the
end of the reporting period.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Financial Resources, Liquidity and Capital Structure (Cont’d)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s net borrowings amounted to HK$2,524.3 million (2014:
HK$6,143.0 million), representing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and
notes totalling HK$10,414.5 million (2014: HK$11,528.3 million) less bank deposits, bank balances
and cash of HK$7,890.2 million (2014: HK$5,385.3 million) and the Group had equity attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$27,677.5 million (2014: HK$24,289.2 million). Accordingly, the
Group's gearing ratio of net borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company was 9.1% (2014:
25.3%). At the end of the reporting period, the current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) of the
Group was 5.5 times, which increased from the 2.9 times applicable at the end of the preceding year.

During the year, 17,122,877 warrants were exercised, resulting in the issuance of 17,122,877 ordinary
shares at a subscription price of HK$2.00 per share. Accordingly 1,373,448,805 warrants were
outstanding at 31st December, 2015. Exercise in full of the outstanding warrants would result in the issue
of 1,373,448,805 additional shares with an aggregate subscription value of approximately HK$2,746.9
million.

2015 2014
HK$ Million HK$ Million

Bank loans are repayable as follows:

On demand or within one year 1,995.1 4,152.2
More than one year but not exceeding two years 2,240.9 1,434.3
More than two years but not exceeding five years 2,027.7 1,851.7

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are repayable as follows:

Within one year 73.2 350.0
More than one year but not exceeding two years 65.2 17.2
More than two years but not exceeding five years 446.0 9.2
6,848.1 7,814.6
Other borrowings repayable over five years 35.0 -
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries - 5.2
Renminbi denominated notes are repayable as follows:
Within one year 6.7 7.0
More than one year but not exceeding five years 588.7 621.6
US dollar denominated notes are repayable as follows:
Within one year 71.6 64.3
More than one year but not exceeding five years 2,864.4 3,015.6
3,566.4 3,713.7
10,414.5 11,528.3

The banking facilities of the Group are reviewed from time to time and new banking facilities will
be obtained or renewed to meet the funding requirements for capital commitments, investments and
operations of the Group.

Other than the US dollar denominated notes and Renminbi denominated notes, most of the bank
and other borrowings of the Group and the amount due to a fellow subsidiary are charged at floating
interest rates. There are no known seasonal factors in the Group’s borrowing profile.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Segment Information

Detailed segmental information in respect of the revenue and profit or loss is shown in note 6 to the
consolidated financial information.

Risk of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group is required to maintain foreign currency exposure to cater for its recurring operating
activities and present and potential investment activities, meaning it will be subject to reasonable
exchange rate exposure. However, the Group will closely monitor this risk exposure as required.
Contingent Liabilities

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

Details regarding pledge of assets are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

Event After The Reporting Period

Details regarding event after the reporting period are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Properties

Hong Kong

The Group’s rental income from its Hong Kong property portfolio increased by 4.8% when
compared to 2014.

The Group disposed in June 2015 of its interest in the serviced apartments, Century Court, to AKL,
being the Group’s 50% owned joint venture at a consideration of HK$640.5 million. The total gain
arising from this transaction including the HK$203.2 million property revaluation gain before the
disposal was HK$219.1 million.

The net gain in the value of the Group’s property portfolio, including investment properties owned
by SHK and Century Court prior to disposal, was HK$436.0 million during the year, higher than
that of 2014 by HK$32.2 million.

Due to the decrease in the number of tourists from mainland China, the hotel division reported
decrease in average room rates and occupancies, resulting in a decreased contribution.

AKL added Century Court to its existing portfolio, which includes Allied Kajima Building, Novotel
Century Hong Kong hotel and Sofitel Philippine Plaza Hotel. Century Court will be redeveloped
into a boutique hotel and synergy is expected between the property and the existing Novotel hotel
which is located diagonally opposite to it. Demolition work has commenced in the first quarter of
2016.

Mainland PRC

The profit attributable to the owners of TACI (including continuing and discontinued operations)
was HK$2,600.0 million (2014: HK$1,284.5 million).

The increase in profit of TACI was mainly due to gains of HK$3,012.8 million on disposal of non-
core assets. In 2014, TACI’s disposal of non-core assets produced gains of HK$1,229.5 million.

There are a total of 15 cyberparks over 12 cities. The overall contribution of TACI’s cyberpark
unit has been below its expectations as the slowing Chinese economy affected sales and leasing.
The cyberparks on the Pearl River Delta have been the exception and TACI will concentrate
on developing new cyberparks and urban renewal projects in this region where it has ample
manpower and marketing resources.

TACI’s urban renewal project, Tian An Cloud Park, in Huawei New City Area in the Longgang
District of Shenzhen is a large scale cyberpark approximately 4 times TACI’s standard size.
Construction works of the superstructure of all seven towers of phase 1 of the project with GFA
of approximately 531,600 m? (including basement) were fully completed in 2015. Sales and
leasing for phase 1 have been encouraging and this project has started to contribute to TACI’s
performance.

K.
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Review of Operations (Cont'd) 11

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (CONT’D)
Financial Services
Investment and Finance

e The profit attributable to owners of SHK was HK$3,896.5 million (2014: HK$1,328.4 million),
with profit before taxation and discontinued operations amounting to HK$973.2 million (2014:
HK$1,712.7 million).

e SHK completed the disposal of 70% interest in SHKFGL. The benefits of this transaction are: (1)
SHK realised a gain on disposal of HK$3,033.5 million, (2) it frees up significant amount of cash
for re-investment, (3) SHK continues to participate in the future growth through the retained 30%
interest in SHKFGL, and (4) downside is protected by a put right (please refer to note 15 regarding
discontinued operations on page 143 of this annual report).

e SHK'’s structured finance division provides funding solutions to corporates and high net worth
individuals. At 31st December, 2015, the aggregate structured finance loan balance was
HK$3,328.8 million (2014: HK$3,346.0 million). Interest income increased by 13% in 2015
reflecting the higher average loan balance during the year as the division also facilitated shorter
term bridging loans.

e The carrying value of SHK’s investment portfolio, including the 30% stake in SHKFGL, amounted
to HK$7,593.9 million at the end of December 2015 and this division contributed a total pre-tax
contribution of HK$469.9 million to SHK (2014: HK$229.2 million).

*  Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited, an 86% owned subsidiary of SHK, commenced business in October
2015 providing mortgage services and lending solutions to home owners and property investors in
Hong Kong. The business is funded by SHK’s internal cash resources.

Consumer Finance

e Pre-tax profit of UAF, the 58% owned subsidiary of SHK, for the year amounted to HK$609.5
million, a decrease of 57% from 2014. This is due to a significant increase in bad and doubtful
debts incurred from its mainland China business. Total bad and doubtful debts increased by 86%
to HK$1,463.3 million.

e UAF has been addressing this higher bad debt ratio problem in mainland China by revising its
operational and credit strategies to reduce overall risk. Measures included tightening up credit
to small businesses which segment is more affected by the downturn in economic activities and
revising the strategy to focus on smaller loans to salaried workers which segment is considered a
more resilient customer group.

e Cost rationalisation measures have also been put in place.

e UAF’s business in Hong Kong remained steady with good profitability. This was in spite of its
overall volume in Hong Kong dropping slightly, caused mainly by reduction in the mortgage loan
portfolio. UAF will focus its business on unsecured loans going forward in order to maintain its
funding flexibility and advantage.

e Atthe end of the year, the consolidated consumer finance gross loan balance amounted to HK$9.6
billion, representing a decrease of 21% from the end of 2014. UAF had 158 branches on the
mainland, including 5 branches on loan marketing and guarantee business, and 50 branches in
Hong Kong at the end of 2015.

R 27 Annual Report 2015
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

EMPLOYEES

The total number of headcount of the Group as at 31st December, 2015 was 6,853 (2014: 8,104). The
decrease in headcount was due primarily to the reclassification of SHKFGL as a 30% owned associate
post the SHKFGL Disposal. Total staff costs (including continuing and discontinued operations),
including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to HK$1,051.6 million (2014: HK$1,172.1 million). The
Group reviews remuneration packages from time to time. In addition to salary payments, other staff
benefits include contributions to employee provident funds, medical subsidies and a discretionary
bonus scheme. The Group recognises the importance of continuing professional education and
development, and appropriate courses are arranged on a periodical basis as well as subsidies are
granted to employees who take job-related courses.

PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group adopts a comprehensive risk management framework. Risk management policies and
procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to react to changes in market conditions and the
Group’s business strategy. The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”), or in the case
of SHK, its risk management committee, reviews risk-related policies and scrutinises that management
has performed its duty to have effective risk management and internal control systems necessary for
monitoring and controlling major risks arising from the Group’s business activities, changing external
risks and the regulatory environment, and reports to the Board on the above.

Financial Risk

Financial risk includes market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Market risk concerns that the value
of an investment will change due to movements in market factors and which can be further divided
into equity risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. Credit risk is the risk of losses arising from
clients or counterparties failing to make payments as contracted. Liquidity risk concerns that a given
security or asset cannot be traded readily in the market to prevent a loss or make the required profit.
Further discussion on financial risk management is outlined in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is concerned with possible losses caused by inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, systems or external events. Operational risk is mitigated and controlled through establishing
robust internal controls, setting out clear lines of responsibility, proper segregation of duties and
effective internal reporting and contingency planning. It is our corporate culture that the business and
operating line management are fully aware of, and responsible for, managing the operational risks
of their business units on a day-to-day basis. Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted by
the internal audit team which reports regularly to the respective senior management and the Audit
Committee.

BawE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2015



Review of Operations (Cont'd)

RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is highly committed to comply with laws and regulations that govern our businesses. As
a listed company in Hong Kong, the company has to comply with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Our loan businesses in Hong Kong
are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance. The lending businesses in the PRC are operated in
accordance with the regional guidelines announced by the provincial governments under the Guiding
Opinions of the China Banking Regulatory Commission and the People’s Bank of China on the Pilot
Operation of Small Loan Companies. Our rental businesses are governed by the Landlord and Tenant
(Consolidation) Ordinance.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an eco-friendly corporation. It is the Group’s aim to reduce
the impacts of its operations on the environment. The environmental policies of the Group include
minimising consumption of paper and electricity, reducing waste and promoting the use of electronic
communication and storage.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
Customers

As a market leader in Hong Kong, UAF runs an extensive advertising and promotion campaign.
Customer relationship programmes such as “member-get-members”, bonus point schemes are in place.
Customers can access UAF’s loan services through its extensive branch network, phone application as
well as on-line means in Hong Kong such as E-cash Revolving Loans and the newly launched mobile

app.

Our investment property portfolio serves the needs of our tenants. To ensure that the properties are in
good condition, we perform regular inspection, maintenance and refurbishment of our properties with
our own professional property management teams. Our dedicated staff aims to provide services to
tenants to meet their expectations with satisfaction.

R 27 Annual Report 2015
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Review of Operations (Cont'd)

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS (CONT’D)
Community

Various subsidiaries across the Group have participated in different community programmes. For
example, The Sun Hung Kai & Co. Foundation (formerly the SHKF Foundation) was established in
March 2010. It serves as a platform for the Group and its business associates and partners to support
our community, in particular, to improve the lives of the underprivileged. The Foundation’s principal
interests are in the areas of poverty relief, education and the environment. As we look to the future, we
will continue to devote our time, resources and capital to fostering a stronger and sustainable Hong
Kong. Total charitable donations by the Group amounted to HK$2.7 million in 2015.

Apart from direct donations, the Group also encourages our staff to enrol in charitable and community
services. During the year, the Group and our staff participated in several events and services including
visits to elderly homes, children-care programs, charity runs and youth nurturing programs. UAF has
been named a “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services for ten consecutive
years.

Staff

Our Group treasures our staff as our important asset and believes success in staff development will
drive the long term performance of the Group. An account of staff relationships is included in the
Employee section above.

Investors

An account of the Company’s relationship with shareholders can be found in the Corporate Governance
Report.

LONG TERM CORPORATE STRATEGIES

The Group will continue its businesses of investment, structured finance, consumer finance, property
and related businesses and other investments. The Group’s policy has been to adopt the following long
term strategies:

1. To maintain the organic growth of its core businesses;

2. To maintain a balance between the demands of short term returns and long term capital
appreciation; and

3. To seek investment opportunities that assist in strengthening and broadening its earnings base.

BawE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2015



Review of Operations (Cont'd)

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

It is expected that the slowdown of mainland China’s economy is likely to remain and global economy is
forecast to have slow growth.

In the near term, the earnings outlook for the consumer finance business on the mainland remains
challenging and the Group will maintain a conservative approach under the current economic
conditions. The unemployment rate is a risk factor for the Hong Kong consumer finance businesses and
the management will remain vigilant to adjust the strategy should there be any deterioration in the local
operating environment.

For the structured finance business, it is expected that the liquidity conditions for medium size
enterprises are likely to remain tight in the current market and there should be healthy demand for
funding solutions.

The last quarter of 2015 saw the Hong Kong property market starting to consolidate and the property
prices went downwards. It is expected that the market will be challenging in 2016.

After the downward adjustments of property prices in most cities in China since 2014, there have
been various measures by the mainland authorities to support the property market. Market prices for
residential properties have increased substantially in first-tier cities, while those in suburban areas and
lower-tier cities are now improving. TACI is pleased with the improving sentiment and is confident of
the longer term prospects of the property market in China.

The Board will continue to adopt a prudent approach in implementing the Group’s stated strategies
with solid financial position and diversified income streams for the benefit of the Group and all its
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank all the staff for their effort and contribution in 2015, and would like to
express appreciation to the Shareholders for their continued support.

[0S ol

/ .

-

Lee Seng Hui
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 23rd March, 2016

BowE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2015

15



16

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ARTHUR GEORGE DEW

Mr. Arthur George Dew, aged 74, was appointed the Chairman and a Non-Executive Director of the
Company in January 2007. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. He graduated from
the Law School of the University of Sydney, Australia, and was admitted as a solicitor and later as a
barrister of the Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia. He is currently a non-practising barrister.
He has a broad range of corporate and business experience and has served as a director, and in some
instances chairman of the board of directors, of a number of public companies listed in Australia, Hong
Kong and elsewhere. He is also the chairman and a non-executive director of each of Allied Group
Limited (“AGL”) and Dragon Mining Limited (“Dragon Mining”), and a non-executive director of each
of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK HK IND”) and Tanami Gold NL (“Tanami Gold”). Mr.
Dew was appointed as a non-executive director and re-designated as the non-executive chairman of
PBD Developments Limited (“PBD”) in December 2015, and was appointed as the chairman and a
non-executive director of APAC Resources Limited (“APAC Resources”) in March 2016. Mr. Dew was
previously the chairman and a non-executive director of SkyOcean International Holdings Limited
(“SkyOcean International”, formerly known as Allied Overseas Limited) and a non-executive director of
Eurogold Limited (“Eurogold”). Dragon Mining, Tanami Gold, PBD and Eurogold are companies listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange.

LEE SENG HUI

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, aged 47, was appointed the Chief Executive and an Executive Director of the
Company in June 2010. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Lee graduated
from the Law School of the University of Sydney with Honours. Previously, he worked with Baker &
McKenzie and N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Lee is the chief executive and an
executive director of AGL and the chairman and a non-executive director of Tian An China Investments
Company Limited. He is a non-executive director of APAC Resources and the non-executive chairman
of Mount Gibson Iron Limited (“Mount Gibson”). Mr. Lee was previously a non-executive director
of Tanami Gold. Mount Gibson and Tanami Gold are companies listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange.

LI CHI KONG

Mr. Li Chi Kong, aged 62, was appointed the Financial Controller and an Executive Director of the
Company in August 1997 and October 1999 respectively. He is also director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Li graduated from the University of Edinburgh in Scotland, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor’s Degree of Science and obtained a Post-graduate Diploma in Accounting from Heriot-Watt
University in Edinburgh. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in
finance and accounting. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for two major audit firms and acted as
the group financial controller for several listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also the group financial
controller of AGL. He was previously an executive director of Allied Cement Holdings Limited.

MARK WONG TAI CHUN

Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun, aged 51, was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in June 2010.
He is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong has a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Wong was the financial controller of other listed
companies in Hong Kong. He is also an executive director of SHK HK IND, the director of investment
of AGL and an alternate director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in Tanami Gold. Mr. Wong was appointed
as an alternate director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in Dragon Mining, PBD and APAC Resources in May
2015, December 2015 and March 2016 respectively. Mr. Wong was previously an executive director
and the chief executive officer of SkyOcean International and an alternate director to Mr. Arthur
George Dew in Eurogold. Dragon Mining, Tanami Gold, PBD and Eurogold are companies listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange.
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STEVEN SAMUEL ZOELLNER

Mr. Steven Samuel Zoellner, aged 46, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in September 2004. He graduated from the Scots College in Sydney, Australia and completed
a real estate licensing course. Mr. Zoellner has been a real estate agent since 1987 and has extensive
experience in the industry. Mr. Zoellner has been involved in some of the more prominent upper end
residential sales and development sites in Australia. He has previously owned Elders Double Bay for the
provision of a variety of real estate services which he sold in the year 2000. Since 2002, he has been
the principal of Laing & Simmons Double Bay which consistently sells the most exclusive real estate in
Australia.

ALAN STEPHEN JONES

Mr. Alan Stephen Jones, aged 73, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company in January 2006. Mr. Jones, a chartered accountant, has extensive experience in
management, administration, accounting, property development, carpark management, finance and
trading, and has been involved in successful mergers and acquisitions of a number of public companies
in Australia and internationally. Mr. Jones is an independent non-executive director of each of AGL
and Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”). He is also an independent non-executive director of Mount
Gibson, a company listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. He is also a non-executive chairman
of Air Change International Limited and a non-executive director of Mulpha Australia Limited.

DAVID CRAIG BARTLETT

Mr. David Craig Bartlett, aged 50, was appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in August 2011. He graduated with honours in law from Exeter University in the United
Kingdom in 1988 and subsequently qualified as a solicitor in England & Wales, the Republic of Ireland
and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. A former partner of the international law firm Clyde
& Co., he regularly acted for and advised AGL and AGL’s subsidiaries before leaving private practice
for a career in industry. Now based primarily in Europe, Mr. Bartlett is also an independent non-
executive director of each of AGL and SHK.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance within a sensible
framework with an emphasis on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence. The
board of directors of the Company (“Board”) believes that good corporate governance is essential to the
success of the Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the light of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), the Board has reviewed the corporate governance practices of
the Company with the adoption of the various enhanced procedures which are detailed in this report.
The Company has applied the principles of, and complied with, the applicable code provisions of the
CG Code during the year ended 31st December, 2015, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board will review the current practices
at least annually, and make appropriate changes if considered necessary.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises seven directors (“Directors”) in total, with three Executive Directors,
one Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The
composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors: Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive)
Li Chi Kong
Mark Wong Tai Chun
Non-Executive Director: Arthur George Dew (Chairman)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: Steven Samuel Zoellner

Alan Stephen Jones
David Craig Bartlett

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the Profile of Directors and Senior
Management on pages 16 and 17.

Board Process

During the year, the NEDs (a majority of whom are independent) provided the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) with a wide range of expertise and experience. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings brought independent judgment on issues relating
to the Group’s strategy, performance and management process, taking into account the interests of all
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”).

Throughout the year and up to the date of this report, the Company has had at least three INEDs
representing not less than one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each INED an annual confirmation of his independence
and considers that all the INEDs are independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Board Process (Cont’d)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results and other
ad hoc matters which need to be dealt with. During the year, six Board meetings were held and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and general meeting during the year ended 31st December, 2015 are set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration Audit General
Name of Directors Board  Committee =~ Committee Meeting
Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive) 5/6 171
Li Chi Kong 6/6 11
Mark Wong Tai Chun 6/6 11
Non-Executive Director:
Arthur George Dew (Chairman) 6/6 mn 2/2 17
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Steven Samuel Zoellner 5/6 171 2/2 0/1
Alan Stephen Jones 6/6 171 2/2 11
David Craig Bartlett 5/6 171 2/2 11

The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration matters covering mainly the Group’s overall
strategy, annual operating budget, annual and interim results, approval of Directors’ appointment
or re-appointment (based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee), material
contracts and transactions, corporate governance as well as other significant policy and financial
matters. The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the executive management under the
instruction/supervision of the Executive Committee which has its specific written terms of reference.
The respective functions of the Board and management of the Company have been formalised and set
out in writing and will be reviewed by the Board from time to time to ensure that they are consistent
with the existing rules and regulations. The functions of the Board have been revised in December
2015 for the relevant amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st January, 2016.

Regular Board meetings each year are scheduled in advance to facilitate maximum attendance of
Directors. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda. The company secretary of the Company
(“Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The agenda and the accompanying
Board papers are normally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of a regular
Board meeting (and so far as practicable for such other Board meetings). Draft minutes of each Board
meeting are circulated to all Directors for their comment before being tabled at the following Board
meeting for approval. All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.
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Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Board Process (Cont’d)

According to the current Board practice, if a substantial Shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
matter will be dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The articles of association of
the Company (“Articles of Association”) also stipulate that save for the exceptions as provided therein,
a Director shall abstain from voting on any Board resolution and not be counted in the quorum at
meetings for approving any contract or arrangement in which such Director or any of his close associates
has a material interest.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related materials and has access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management. Directors will be continuously updated
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In addition, a written procedure
has been established since June 2005 to enable the Directors, in discharge of their duties, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the
Company.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

For continuous professional development, in addition to Directors’ attendance at meetings and review
of papers and circulars sent by the management of the Company, Directors participated in the activities
including the following:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development Activities
Attending trainings/
briefings/seminars/
Reading Regulatory conference relevant
Name of Directors Updates to Directors’ duties

Executive Directors:

Lee Seng Hui (Chief Executive) v v
Li Chi Kong v v
Mark Wong Tai Chun v v
Non-Executive Director:

Arthur George Dew (Chairman) v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Steven Samuel Zoellner v v
Alan Stephen Jones v v
David Craig Bartlett v v
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THE BOARD (CONT’D)
Board Diversity

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013 which sets out the objectives
and principles regarding board diversity for the purpose of achieving the Company’s strategic objectives
of balanced diversity at the Board as far as practicable. Board appointments will be based on merit
and candidates will be considered against measurable objectives, taking into account the Company’s
business and needs.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity criteria, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, knowledge, professional experience and skills. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and the contribution that the selected candidates may bring to
the Board.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Arthur George Dew, being
the Chairman of the Board, is primarily responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring that
(i) all significant policy issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner; (ii)
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings; and (iii) the Directors receive
accurate, timely and clear information. The functions of the chief executive are performed by Mr. Lee
Seng Hui, the Chief Executive of the Company, who is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group’s business. Their responsibilities are clearly segregated and have been set out in writing and
approved by the Board in June 2005, and subsequently updated in April 2012.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee include the nomination procedure specifying
the process and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction package from the Company Secretary on the
first occasion of his/her appointment. This induction package is a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on the responsibilities and on-going obligations to be observed by a director pursuant to the
Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules and Securities and Futures Ordinance. In addition, this induction
package includes materials briefly describing the operations and business of the Company, the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Board. Directors will be continuously updated on any major developments
of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

All NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company were appointed for a specific term, but subject to the
relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the Directors
shall vacate or retire from their office but eligible for re-election. The term of appointment of the NEDs
(including INEDs) has been renewed for further two years commencing from 1st January, 2015.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (CONT’D)

According to the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”),
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Further, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company whilst for those appointed as an addition to the Board shall hold office until
the next following AGM and in both cases, those Directors shall then be eligible for re-election at the
relevant meeting. Every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and has adopted the written terms
of reference on its corporate governance functions in April 2012.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:
(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

In 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a Nomination Committee, a Remuneration
Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee, each of which has its specific written
terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are kept
by the Company Secretary, are circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned in the section headed “The Board” of this report,
have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as practicable.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been established since March 2012 and is chaired by the Chairman
of the Board and comprises a majority of INEDs. Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of
three members, including Messrs. Arthur George Dew (Chairman of the Nomination Committee),
being a NED, Steven Samuel Zoellner and David Craig Bartlett, all being the INEDs. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary. The major roles and
functions of the Nomination Committee are included in its terms of reference, which are available on
the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and the Company.

The Nomination Committee will meet as and when necessary in accordance with its terms of reference
and may also deal with matters by way of circulation. In 2015, no Nomination Committee meeting was
held while the Nomination Committee dealt with matters by way of circulation. In 2015 and up to the
date of this report, the Nomination Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the proposed resolution for re-election of the
retiring Directors at 2015 AGM and 2016 AGM; and

(ii) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and assessed the independence
of each INED.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established since December 1993 and currently consists of four
members, including Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Steven
Samuel Zoellner and David Craig Bartlett, all being the INEDs, and Mr. Arthur George Dew, being a
NED. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s policy if considered necessary.
The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are included in its terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are in compliance with the code provision B.1.2
of the CG Code, but with a deviation from the code provision that the Remuneration Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors only
and not senior management (as opposed to executive directors and senior management under the code
provision). The reasons for the above deviation are summarised as below:

(i) the Board believes that the Remuneration Committee is not properly in a position to evaluate the
performance of senior management and that this evaluation process is more effectively carried out

by the Executive Directors;

(ii) the Executive Directors must be in a position to supervise and control senior management and thus
must be able to control their compensation; and

(i) there is no reason for Executive Directors to pay senior management more than industry standards
and thus Shareholders will benefit by reducing costs in the fixing of such compensation packages.

BowE (BE)ABRLA Annual Report 2015

23



24

Corporate Governance Report (Cont'd)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year in accordance with its terms of reference.
One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2015 and the attendance of each member is set out
in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Remuneration Committee also dealt with
matters by way of circulation during 2015. In 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee performed the works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed the existing policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors;
(i) reviewed the existing remuneration packages of the Executive Directors;
(i) reviewed the existing remuneration of the NEDs (including the INEDs); and

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the bonus for the year ended 3 1st December,
2014 and the increment in the remuneration for the year 2015 of the Executive Directors and the
Chairman.

The remuneration payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements whereas detailed changes in the emoluments of certain Directors
during the interim period and up to the date of the Interim Report were also disclosed in the Interim
Report of the Company dated 26th August, 2015. Details of the emolument policy of the Group are
also set out in the “Emolument Policy” section contained in the Directors’ Report on page 37.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has been established since December 1993 and currently consists of four NEDs,
three of whom are INEDs. To retain independence and objectivity, the Audit Committee is chaired by
an INED with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The current members of the Audit Committee are Messrs. Alan Stephen Jones (Chairman of
the Audit Committee), being an INED, Arthur George Dew, being a NED, Steven Samuel Zoellner and
David Craig Bartlett, both being INEDs. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional advice according to the Company’s
policy if considered necessary. The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are included in
its terms of reference, which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are revised from time to time to comply with the code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, but with deviations from the code provision of the audit committee’s
responsibility to:

(i) implement policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services;

(i) ensure the management has performed its duty to have effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

(iii) ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the listed company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

The Board considers that the Audit Committee shall recommend (as opposed to implement under the
code provision) the policy on the engagement of the external auditors to supply non-audit services for
the following reasons:

(i) it is proper and appropriate for the Board and its committees to develop policy and make
appropriate recommendations;

(ii) the proper and appropriate mechanism for implementation of such policy and recommendations is
through the Executive Directors and management; and

(iii) INEDs are not in an effective position to implement policy and follow up the same on a day-to-day
basis.

Further, the Board considers that the Audit Committee only possesses the effective ability to scrutinise
(as opposed to ensure under the code provision) whether management has performed its duty to have
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Audit Committee is not equipped to
ensure that the same is in place as this would involve day-to-day supervision and the employment of
permanent experts. The Audit Committee is not in a position either to ensure co-ordination between the
internal and external auditors but it can promote the same. Similarly, the Audit Committee is not in a
position to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced but it can check whether it is
adequately resourced.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year in accordance with its terms of reference. Two
Audit Committee meetings were held in 2015 and the attendance of each member is set out in the
section headed “The Board” of this report.

In addition to the Audit Committee meetings, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation during 2015. In 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Audit Committee performed the
works as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by the external auditor;

(ii) reviewed the reports of findings/independent review report from the external auditor and the
management’s response in relation to the final audit for the year ended 31st December, 2014, the
interim results review for the six months ended 30th June, 2015 and the final audit for the year
ended 31st December, 2015 of the Group;

(i) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the financial reports for the year ended 31st
December, 2014, for the six months ended 30th June, 2015 and for the year ended 31st December,
2015 together with the relevant management representation letters and announcements;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the updated report on substantiation of the
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;

(v) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s approval the Policy on Risk Management, Compliance

and Internal Control Procedures and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee for the
relevant amendments to the revised CG Code effective on 1st January, 2016; and
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONT’D)
Audit Committee (Cont’d)

(vi) reviewed and recommended for the Board’s annual review the updated Related Party Transaction
Policies and Procedures, Whistle Blower Policy, Policy on the Disclosure of Inside Information,
updated Manual of Company Management Authority and Procedures for the Identification and
Monitoring of Connected Transactions.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has been established since January 1993 and currently consists of three
Executive Directors, being Messrs. Lee Seng Hui (Chairman of the Executive Committee), Li Chi Kong
and Mark Wong Tai Chun. The Executive Committee is vested with all the general powers of
management and control of the activities of the Group as are vested in the Board, save for those matters
which are reserved for the Board’s decision and approval pursuant to the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee. The terms of reference of the Executive Committee were revised in November
2007 following the adoption of the Whistle Blower Policy by the Company.

The Executive Committee will meet as and when necessary to discuss the operating affairs of the Group
and may also deal with matters by way of circulation. The Executive Committee is mainly responsible
for undertaking and supervising the day-to-day management and is empowered:

(i) to formulate and implement policies for the business activities, internal control and administration
of the Group; and

(i) to plan and decide on strategies to be adopted for the business activities of the Group within the
overall strategy of the Group as determined by the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lau Tung Ni is the Company Secretary of the Company. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board
governance matters, and is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and for
facilitating communications among Directors as well as with the Shareholders and management.

Ms. Lau is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. During 2015, Ms. Lau undertook over 15 hours of
relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following a specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant
Employees to regulate dealings in securities of the Company by certain employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or the holding companies who are considered to be likely in possession of inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the support from the Accounts
Department, the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2015, the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance were complied with. The Directors believe that they have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and made judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and have ensured that the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 and 76.

Internal Control

The Board has the responsibility to review annually the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system and ensure that the controls are sound and effective to safeguard the Shareholders” investments
and the Group's assets at all times. In 2015, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal Audit
Department (“IAD”), had reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of system
failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and goals. It has a key role
in the management of risks that are significant to the fulfilment of business objectives. In addition to
safeguarding the Group's assets, it should provide a basis for the maintenance of proper accounting
records and assist in the compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

The Company’s principal subsidiaries are managed under independent systems of internal controls.
These subsidiaries have provided appropriate assurance to the Company on their compliance with the
CG Code regarding internal control systems in general to the Company.

A discussion of the policies and procedures on the management of each of the major types of risk
which the Group is facing is included in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements and under the
“Principal Risks” section contained in the Review of Operations on page 12.

Internal Audit
The Internal Audit Manager reports to the Chairman of the Board and the Audit Committee. The IAD
plays an important role in providing assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is

maintained and operated by the management. This is part of the Board’s plan to enhance the standards
of the Group’s overall corporate governance and comply with the code provision C.2 of the CG Code.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (CONT’D)
External Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year, the remuneration paid to the Group’s external auditors is set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group HK$ Million

Audit services 5.3
Non-audit services
— Taxation services .
— Other professional services 1.2

Total 6.9

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with Shareholders. Information in
relation to the Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars. Such published
documents together with the latest corporate information and news are also made available on the
website of the Company.

The Company’s AGM is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly with Shareholders. The
Chairman actively participates at the AGM and personally chairs the meeting to answer any questions
from Shareholders. The chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee or in their absence, another member of the respective committees or failing that their
respective duly appointed delegate, are also available to answer questions at the AGM. The chairman
of any independent board committee formed as necessary or pursuant to the Listing Rules (or if no such
chairman is appointed, at least a member of the independent board committee) will also be available
to answer questions at any general meeting of Shareholders to approve a connected transaction or any
other transaction that is subject to independent Shareholders’ approval.

During the year, the 2015 AGM was held on 4th June, 2015. The attendance records of the Directors at
the general meeting are set out in the section headed “The Board” of this report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of retiring Directors.

The notice to Shareholders is to be sent in the case of AGM at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear business days in case of all other general meetings. An
explanation of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll is provided to the Shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The Chairman answers questions from Shareholders regarding voting
by way of a poll. The poll results are published in the manner prescribed under the requirements of the
Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (CONT’D)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having a right
to vote at general meetings as at the date of deposit of the requisition can request the Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting (“"EGM”) by sending a written request to the registered office
of the Company (“Registered Office”). Such requisition must state the general nature of the business
to be dealt with at the EGM and must be authenticated by the person or persons making it. Besides,
Shareholders may make a proposal (“Proposal”) at a Shareholders’ meeting by submitting it in written
form to the Board at the Registered Office in accordance with the Companies Ordinance and the
Articles of Association where applicable. The Proposal shall be in the form of a proposed resolution,
which shall clearly and concisely set out the Proposal for discussion and be relevant to the Company’s
business scope.

The Board established a shareholders” communication policy in April 2012, and subsequently updated
in December 2015. A Shareholder may serve an enquiry to the Board at the Registered Office for the
attention of the Board in written form, which shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for
making the enquiry. In addition, Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, the share registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2015 AGM, a special resolution was passed regarding the adoption of a new Articles of
Association in respect of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which
came into effect on 3rd March, 2014. Summary of the key amendments to the Articles of Association
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 24th April, 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and complying with the CG Code of
the Stock Exchange but also about promoting and developing an ethical and healthy corporate culture.
We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to
promote and improve our transparency are also welcome.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March, 2016
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Directors’ Report

The board of directors of the Company (“Board”) presents its annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”) for the year ended
31st December, 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities of its principal
subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at 31st December, 2015 are set out in notes 54, 55 and 56 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively. The business review of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2015, as well as further discussion and analysis as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, are set out in the section headed “Review of Operations” on pages 6 to
15 of this Annual Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on pages 77 and 78 and in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HK6 cents per share (in lieu of a final dividend) for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 (2014 final dividend: HK5.5 cents per share) payable on or around
Wednesday, 27th April, 2016 to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 15th April, 2016. The total dividend
for the year is HK6 cents per share (2014: HK5.5 cents per share). Details are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31st December, 2015 at HK$7,676.7 million.
The net increase in fair value of HK$419.0 million attributable to investment properties held at 31st
December, 2015 has been credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of the changes in the investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

During the year, the Group’s interest in Tian An China Investments Company Limited (“TACI")
remained at 48.66%. In view of the provisions of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 10
“Consolidated Financial Statements”, the Group has considered whether TACI is a subsidiary when
preparing its consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2015 and has
concluded that it does not have unilateral ability to direct the relevant activities of TACI based on the
facts and circumstances as detailed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the Group continues to account for its interest in TACI as an associate.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of major properties of the Group at 31st December, 2015 are set out on pages 236 to 240.
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SHARE CAPITAL, SHARES ISSUED AND WARRANTS

Details of movement in the share capital and outstanding warrants of the Company during the year are
set out in notes 34 and 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES
The Group has issued the following debentures:

— US$350 million 6.375% Guaranteed Notes due 2017 issued under its US$2 billion Guaranteed
Medium Term Note Programme were listed on 27th September, 2012 (stock code: 4567) by Sun
Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited (“SHK BVI”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and is an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

—  US$60 million 3% Guaranteed Notes due 2017 were further issued under its US$2 billion
Guaranteed Medium Term Note Programme by SHK BVI on 28th March, 2014.

—  RMB500 million 6.9% Guaranteed Notes due 2018 were issued under the US$3 billion Medium
Term Note Programme by UA Finance (BVI) Limited (a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands and an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) on 2nd May, 2013.

For further details of the abovementioned issued Notes, please refer to note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the warrants disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (“Directors”) during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Lee Seng Hui

Li Chi Kong

Mark Wong Tai Chun

Non-Executive Director:
Arthur George Dew

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Steven Samuel Zoellner

Alan Stephen Jones

David Craig Bartlett

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”), Messrs. Mark Wong Tai Chun, Steven Samuel Zoellner and Alan Stephen Jones shall
retire from office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

A list of names of all the directors who have served on the boards of the Company’s subsidiaries during
the year are available on the website of the Company under the “Corporate Governance” section.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM”) has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”)) were
appointed for a specific term of two years which shall continue until 31st December, 2016 but subject
to the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association or any other applicable laws whereby the
Directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31st December, 2015, Messrs. Lee Seng Hui and Steven Samuel Zoellner, Directors, had the
following interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO:

Number of shares  Approximate % of
and underlying  the total number

Name of Directors Name of companies shares interested of issued shares  Nature of interests
Lee Seng Hui the Company 6,237,045,730 91.45%  Other interests
(Note 1)
Steven Samuel Zoellner  the Company 77,282 0.00%  Personal interests
(Note 3) (held as beneficial owner)
Sun Hung Kai & Co. 49,200 0.00%  Personal interests
Limited (“SHK”) (Note 2) (Note 4) (held as beneficial owner)
Notes:

1. The interests include the holding of: (i) an interest in 1,973,216,190 shares and 394,643,238 units of warrants of the
Company (“Warrants”) held by Capscore Limited (“Capscore”); (i) an interest in 45,903,120 shares and 9,180,624 units of
Warrants held by Citiwealth Investment Limited (“Citiwealth”); (iii) an interest in 2,121,437,331 shares and 258,511,371
units of Warrants held by Sunhill Investments Limited (“Sunhill”); (iv) an interest in 968,354,880 shares and 193,670,976
units of Warrants held by Allied Group Limited (“AGL”); and (v) 272,128,000 shares held as holders of securities by
wholly-owned subsidiaries of SHK. The Warrants held by Capscore, Citiwealth, Sunhill and AGL gave rise to an interest
in an aggregate of 856,006,209 underlying shares of the Company. The Warrants entitle the holders thereof to subscribe
at any time during the period from 13th June, 2011 to 13th June, 2016 (both days inclusive) for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$2.00 per share (subject to adjustments). Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill
are all wholly-owned subsidiaries of AGL while SHK is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which in turn is
a non wholly-owned subsidiary of AGL. AGL was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and the underlying
shares in which Capscore, Citiwealth, Sunhill and SHK were interested. Mr. Lee Seng Hui together with Ms. Lee Su
Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust, being a discretionary trust. They together owned
approximately 73.90% of the total number of issued shares of AGL (inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and
were therefore deemed to have an interest in 5,381,039,521 shares of the Company and 856,006,209 units of Warrants in
which AGL were interested.

2. SHK is the indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, SHK is an associated corporation of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

3. This represents an interest in 64,402 shares and 12,880 units of Warrants.
4. This represents an interest in 49,200 shares of SHK.

5. All interests stated above represent long positions.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BERLE(EE)ERAA Annual Report 2015



Directors’ Report (Cont'd)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONT’D)

Save as disclosed above, at 31st December, 2015, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the following Directors (not being the INEDs) are
considered to have interests in the businesses listed below which compete or are likely to compete with
the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules as set out below:

(i)  Messrs. Arthur George Dew and Lee Seng Hui are directors of Allied Group Limited (“AGL”) which,
through a subsidiary, is partly engaged in the business of money lending and through certain of its
subsidiaries and close associates, is partly involved in the investment and trading in securities in
the resources and related industries and financial instruments;

(i) Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of TACI and one of the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust which is a
deemed substantial shareholder of each of AGL, SHK, SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited (“SHK
HK IND”), TACI and APAC Resources Limited (“APAC”) which, through their subsidiaries, are
partly engaged in the businesses as follows:

— AGL, through a subsidiary, is partly engaged in the business of money lending;

- SHK, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending
and property investment;

— SHK HK IND, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly involved in trading in securities and
investment in financial instruments;

—  TACI, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of money lending,
property development and investment; and

—  APAC, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly involved in the investment and trading in
listed securities in the resources and related industries;

(iii) Messrs. Lee Seng Hui, Li Chi Kong and Mark Wong Tai Chun are directors of Allied Kajima Limited
which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in the businesses of property rental and
hospitality related activities;

(iv) Mr. Li Chi Kong is a director of AG Capital Limited, a subsidiary of AGL, which is partly engaged
in the business of money lending;

(v)  Mr. Arthur George Dew and Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun are directors of SHK HK IND, a non-wholly

owned subsidiary of AGL which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly involved in trading in
securities and investment in financial instruments;
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES (CONT’D)

(vi) Mr. Lee Seng Hui is a director of each of APAC and Mount Gibson Iron Limited which, through
certain of their subsidiaries, are partly involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in
the resources and related industries;

(vii) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a non-executive director of APAC (appointed with effect from 1st March,
2016) and Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is an alternate director to Mr. Arthur George Dew in APAC
(appointed with effect from 1st March, 2016) which, through certain of its subsidiaries, is partly
involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and related industries;

(viii) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a non-executive director of each of Tanami Gold NL (“Tanami Gold”)
and Dragon Mining Limited (“Dragon Mining”). Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is an alternate director
to Mr. Arthur George Dew in each of Tanami Gold and Dragon Mining (appointed with effect from
19th May, 2015). Tanami Gold and Dragon Mining, through certain of their subsidiaries, are partly
involved in the investment and trading in listed securities in the resources and related industries;
and

(ix) Mr. Arthur George Dew is a non-executive director (appointed with effect from 3rd December,
2015) and the non-executive chairman (re-designated with effect from 18th December, 2015)
of PBD Developments Limited (“PBD”). Mr. Mark Wong Tai Chun is an alternate director to Mr.
Arthur George Dew in PBD (appointed with effect from 3rd December, 2015). PBD, through
certain of its subsidiaries, is partly engaged in property development.

Although the above-mentioned Directors have competing interests in other companies by virtue of their
respective common directorship or shareholding, they will fulfil their fiduciary duties in order to ensure
that they will act in the best interests of the Shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times.
Hence, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which the Directors or an entity
connected with the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year. For information, a tenancy agreement dated 19th November,
2013 entered into between Mr. Lee Seng Hui as the tenant and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as the landlord expired on 18th November, 2015 and was renewed by a tenancy agreement
dated 19th November, 2015. The total rental of HK$3.9 million received therefrom during the year
ended 31st December, 2015, is considered insignificant in relation to the Group’s business.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save for the warrants holdings disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to

enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts and the sharing of administrative services and management services
agreement as detailed below under “Continuing Connected Transactions”, no other contracts, relating
to the management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provides that every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition,
the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant
legal actions against the Directors.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
To the best of Directors’ knowledge, at 31st December, 2015, the following Shareholders had interests
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept

under Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of shares  Approximate % of

and underlying the total number
Name of Shareholders shares interested of issued shares Notes
Allied Group Limited (“AGL”") 6,237,045,730 91.45% 1
Lee and Lee Trust 6,237,045,730 91.45% 2,3

Notes:

1. The interests include the holding of: (i) an interest in 1,973,216,190 shares and 394,643,238 units of Warrants held by
Capscore Limited (“Capscore”); (i) an interest in 45,903,120 shares and 9,180,624 units of Warrants held by Citiwealth
Investment Limited (“Citiwealth”); (iii) an interest in 2,121,437,331 shares and 258,511,371 units of Warrants held by
Sunhill Investments Limited (“Sunhill”); (iv) an interest in 968,354,880 shares and 193,670,976 units of Warrants held
by AGL; and (v) 272,128,000 shares held as holders of securities by wholly-owned subsidiaries of Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited (“SHK”). The Warrants held by Capscore, Citiwealth, Sunhill and AGL gave rise to an interest in an aggregate
of 856,006,209 underlying shares of the Company. Capscore, Citiwealth and Sunhill are all wholly-owned subsidiaries
of AGL while SHK is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which in turn is a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of AGL. AGL was therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and the underlying shares in which Capscore,
Citiwealth, Sunhill and SHK were interested.

2. This represents the same interests of AGL in 5,381,039,521 shares and an interest in 856,006,209 units of Warrants.

3. Mr. Lee Seng Hui, Director, together with Ms. Lee Su Hwei and Mr. Lee Seng Huang are the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust,
being a discretionary trust. They together owned approximately 73.90% of the total number of issued shares of AGL
(inclusive of Mr. Lee Seng Hui’s personal interests) and were therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and the

underlying shares in which AGL was interested.

4. All interests stated above represent long positions.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28th January, 2014 and the 2014
Annual Report of the Company, the Company entered into a renewed sharing of administrative
services and management services agreement (“Services Agreement”) with AGL on 28th January,
2014, pursuant to which the Company agreed to renew and extend the term of the sharing of
administrative services and management services agreement dated 31st January, 2011 for a period
of three years commenced from 1st January, 2014 to 31st December, 2016 and to reimburse
AGL the actual costs incurred in respect of the administrative services, which included the
corporate secretarial services, provision of registered office address, office space, utilities services
including water, electricity, telephone (including international telephone services) and internet,
photocopying, postal, courier, delivery and other services ancillary to the day-to-day administration
and operation of the Group (i.e. the Company and its subsidiaries, but excluding those in the group
of SHK) provided by AGL (“Administrative Services”) and management services, which included
the management, consultancy, strategic and business advice services provided, by the senior
management and the selected staff of AGL to the Group (i.e. the Company and its subsidiaries, but
excluding those in the group of SHK) (“Management Services”).

Mr. Lee Seng Hui, by being the Chief Executive and an Executive Director, a member of the
management staff providing the Management Services and also one of the trustees of Lee and Lee
Trust, being a discretionary trust which, together with his personal interest, owned approximately
73.90% interest in the total number of issued shares of AGL as at 31st December, 2015; Mr.
Arthur George Dew, by being the Chairman and a Non-Executive Director and a member of
the management staff providing the Management Services; Messrs. Li Chi Kong and Mark Wong
Tai Chun, by being Executive Directors and members of the management staff providing the
Management Services; all of them are deemed to be interested in the Services Agreement.

The annual caps in respect of the Management Services under the Services Agreement were set at
HK$18,840,000, HK$21,120,000 and HK$23,700,000 for each of the three financial years ending
31st December, 2016 respectively. The aggregate amount of the Management Services for the year
ended 31st December, 2015 was HK$21,120,000.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23rd December, 2013 and the 2014
Annual Report of the Company, a renewed tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) was entered
into on 23rd December, 2013 between Hillcrest Development Limited (“Hillcrest”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the landlord and AGL as the tenant for the renewal
of a tenancy of 60 Plantation Road, the Peak, Hong Kong (“Premises”) for residential use for a
further term of two years commenced from 1st January, 2014 to 31st December, 2015 at a monthly
rental of HK$470,000 (exclusive of rates and management fee). The Premises is held by Hillcrest
for investment purposes. The rent has been determined based on the prevailing market rent as
advised by Norton Appraisals Limited, which is an independent firm of property valuer and is not a
connected person to the Company as defined under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap for the transaction under the Tenancy Agreement was set at HK$5,640,000 for
each of the two financial years ending 31st December, 2015. The aggregate amount of rental for
the year ended 31st December, 2015 was HK$5,640,000.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2nd December, 2015, a renewed
tenancy agreement (“Renewal Tenancy Agreement”) was entered into on 2nd December, 2015
between Hillcrest as the landlord and AGL as the tenant for the renewal of the Tenancy Agreement
of the Premises for a further term of two years commenced from 1st January, 2016 to 31st
December, 2017. In accordance with the requirement of Rule 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, details
of the Renewal Tenancy Agreement will be included in the next published annual report of the
Company.

K.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

Since AGL is the controlling shareholder and ultimate holding company of the Company, the
transactions contemplated under the Services Agreement (other than the sharing of the Administrative
Services) and the Tenancy Agreement (collectively “Continuing Connected Transactions”) constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the Listing Rules, which
are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’” approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The transaction regarding the
sharing of the Administrative Services between the Company and AGL contemplated under the Services
Agreement is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.98 of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have reviewed the Continuing Connected
Transactions and have confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
a review in respect of the above Continuing Connected Transactions and the auditor has reported its
conclusion to the Board, confirming the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the Directors’” and senior management’s emoluments and of the five highest paid individuals
in the Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Executive Committee on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment contracts or service contracts as approved by the Board on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the total turnover for the year. Also, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers taken together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders, which to the knowledge of the

Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s total number of issued shares, had a beneficial
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s securities during the year ended 31st December, 2015.

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable donations of HK$2.7 million during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices.
Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 18 to 29.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of

the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Arthur George Dew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March, 2016

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allied
Properties (H.K.) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to
234, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31st December, 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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WK - WA MBS MEACTER —F—HF+
A=+t HW&GES BN REBEEZH 1L
FERE IR R - S5 1R LA
® e RMGaEERER > UK
TR g BORMEE K H A RO -

EENGeMBBRRARENEL

FA R H A TR A U SR & A Y
7 5 B 05 0 Y B B A o O R R B o A S
HERATFBE AR a B HRE > DIREEH
2 S A S e S AR T A A Y P
il > (AR A B AR AN A AE i R UCE B R T
B R SRR B o

BEMNEE

FAM B BAL SR AR TRA 0 25 A% % S A B S
WA - I IR AR R R 405 1
A S R © BRILZ b » ARG AR
AT AR A T i o BAM A B A B ) TR A
AT HoAth AN+ B EBURIEAE ] AT - AR
T U L A 19 A s A T R R T
i o g e e QI ZOR A BT AECEREE o I A
L AT 8% - DA PR E LS5 ARG B sk
TR AT A A 2R B R B
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONT’D)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31st
December, 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Detruc ute Gror

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
23rd March, 2016
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

Continuing operations
Revenue
Other income

Total income

Cost of sales and other
direct costs
Brokerage and commission
expenses
Selling and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Changes in values of properties
Net gain on financial assets and
liabilities
Net exchange gain
Bad and doubtful debts
Other operating expenses
Finance costs
Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit for the year

ESEER
A
HAtA

A

BB A % HiAth
BRI

a4
M

B L T H 4 2 T

T A

VE I

SR E KN AR
e TREE

T S0 i 0 4H

R

Hifth 5822/

&S AR

JRE Ak B 4 A W) B4R

e /NI S

FR AL il i A
BLIH

R H R RS B 2
4 I i A

ERIEREER

HKECAIERE DL

A I i 1]

AR5 ik Al

BE_F—HET_HA=1+—HILFE

2015 2014

—E-HF 4

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5E BEAT (BN
5&6 4,594.5 4,571.7
83.4 57.3

4,677.9 4,629.0
(368.1) (299.2)
(56.0) (46.3)
(106.2) (123.4)
(1,411.5) (1,290.8)

7 436.0 403.8
8 1,001.5 114.5
0.9 10.8
9 (1,571.5) (785.0)
(823.4) (129.3)
12 (253.9) (262.6)
1,290.0 608.1

1571 171.9

13 2,972.8 3,001.5
14 (97.5) (316.5)
2,875.3 2,685.0

15 3,228.9 390.3
6,104.2 3,075.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Profit for the year from
continuing operations
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
Profit for the year from
continuing operations
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Earnings per share

From continuing and
discontinued operations
Basic

Diluted

From continuing operations
Basic

Diluted

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E—RfF TR
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
i BEAT HEWHIT
JEAG T
AN T R
A B A A 2E
ZAE B I A 2,353.1 1,803.6
A B 1 RR S RS
ZAFBE i A 1,769.4 220.2
4,122.5 2,023.8
FE P I HE 4
AR R A 2T
s iyl 522.2 881.4
A B A& RS 2T
ZAE A 1,459.5 170.1
1,981.7 1,051.5
6,104.2 3,075.3
HK cents HK cents
=l A
BRER 16
o A R M B AR
A 60.52 29.75
HE 60.52 29.75
LIRSS e
HA 34.54 26.51
P 34.54 26.51
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HE T
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT H U TT
Profit for the year AR Ui ) 6,104.2 3,075.3
Other comprehensive income (expenses):  HAth 2wk as (%)
Items that will not be reclassified to AN F 77 15 7 A
profit or loss: ZIHHA -
Revaluation gain on properties TRt B ik ik < il 4 ) A R A )
transferred from self-owned properties A AR T H B B A R 2
to investment properties arising from ERikZES gD
disposal of Sun Hung Kai Financial PG ERTEE
Group Limited in relation to properties HIBRBLIR
leased to its subsidiaries, net of tax A 111.3 =
Share of other comprehensive expenses JEAG W ) FC At 4 T
of associates #H (427.3) (3.0)
Share of other comprehensive income AL &8 4w H A 2 i
(expenses) of joint ventures e zs () 0.7 (0.6)
(315.3) (3.6)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently 7 Al BEFEFMH £ 1H 25 i
to profit or loss: ZIHH -
Available-for-sale financial assets A E R EE
— Net fair value changes during the year — ARAE N1 (5 8l v AR 12.8 7.2
— Reclassification adjustment to profit or — AN ERE T R
loss on disposal E iR (19.0) (3.8)
6.2) 3.4
Exchange differences arising on ITE SN EG AR & R 2
translation of foreign operations [ifE 5, 2= 4H (347.1) (162.4)
Reclassification adjustment to profit SN
or loss on disposal/liquidation of T AR B BT S
subsidiaries EHEIE 9.1) 0.4
Reclassification adjustment to profit A —H & AT
or loss on liquidation of a joint T MR IRy BT ST B
venture EXiEi 1.1 —
Reclassification adjustment to profit A — [T Mg ) B IR
or loss on disposal of an associate TR R A R - 9.2)
Share of other comprehensive income JRE A 4 2 W) HAth A T
of associates g 55.3 99.7
Share of other comprehensive income JEAG & 8 8 ) oAt A T
(expenses) of joint ventures et (ZH) 0.6 (39.0)
(307.6) (107.1)
Other comprehensive expenses for the AR B HA 2 T T
year, net of tax EHNERBIIH (622.9) (110.7)
Total comprehensive income for the year A4 B 4 [ij it 45 48 4A 5,481.3 2,964.6
Attributable to: AL T
Owners of the Company AN TR 3,694.1 2,038.7
Non-controlling interests e FE R 45 1,787.2 925.9
5,481.3 2,964.6
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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at 31st December, 2015

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial assets

Statutory deposits

Amounts due from associates

Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers due after
one year

Deposits for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment
and investments

Deferred tax assets

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trade and other receivables

Current assets

Properties held for sale and
other inventories

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Prepaid land lease payments

Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers due within
one year

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Tax recoverable

Bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Amount due to a holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to joint ventures

Tax payable

Bank and other borrowings due
within one year

Notes

Provisions

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

EFBEE
wamE
Y - R Rk
i

i

S

RN 7 2 s

RABAR S
{4 4 R

e

B A ] S
AR .2 B
HF A

e ‘
WO R B
DL

2 Hik
IEAERL A
U 128 A6 T B
N
5% K A e
I}ILEEE
Fr il B 3
A7 4
B 125 B 6 P
PN
A
— A 912 BB
&I Bk

EN

2 5% 1% FL A YR
B2 A K
LERFREK
] i o] 2
SRATHE K
B4 BB 4% m
HEIEE

95 I FLAAE
I 28 M A PR
B 4l £ 1

R — B 5 2
K 7] 2% W A 7] 9
IRIgH 2/ 7] 9
R4 A AR
HEBIE i
— A R 2 ST B
FA T
m

]

REBEEFE
HEERRDAE

e e
2015 2014

—E-HF R4

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
Bt 5k BERTT HE#IT
18 7,676.7 7,653.6
19 1,097.3 1,061.3
20 4.6 9.3
21 2,488.9 2,488.9
22 888.4 986.6
24 9,020.9 6,970.4
25 2,156.3 2,045.4
26 104.8 232.6
- 39.9

31 64.9 64.7
27 2,741.3 3,308.4
48.8 112.0

28 543.4 265.0
26 3,484.6 603.5
30 1,728.8 1,520.3
32,049.7 27,361.9

29 179.2 298.9
26 2,251.2 934.2
20 0.1 0.3
27 6,080.7 8,083.3
30 2,176.1 7,775.2
31 171.3 116.0
31 9.2 9.9
9.6 12.0

32 1,501.4 993 .4
32 6,388.8 4,391.9
18,767.6 22,615.1

33 354.9 2,896.1
26 177.9 66.6
5.7 6.2

- 5.2

5.5 5.4

0.1 75.1

201.2 187.5

38 2,579.5 4,528.6
39 78.3 71.3
40 32.2 62.6
3,435.3 7,904.6

15,332.3 14,710.5

47,382.0 42,072.4
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at 31st December, 2015

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Shares held for employee
ownership scheme

Employee share-based
compensation reserve

Share of net assets of subsidiaries

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities

Bank and other borrowings due
after one year

Notes

Deferred tax liabilities

Provisions

IR R 4
JeA
it

R T RREM
R

Tl B AT T
FiA ey
AR S2AT 2 M B
P <= f

TR AE T 2 ) 138

FEER RS
RRAH

FRBEE
—AER BN AT )
HA A&

S

EIE B IR A 5

i fh

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 234 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
23rd March, 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Arthur George Dew

IREESE
Director

2

R_F-AEFA=1—H

2015 2014

— i —E—4E

Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
M 5E BERETT HEWHIT
34 4,250.5 4,216.2
37 23,427.0 20,073.0
27,677.5 24,289.2

(12.6) (20.2)

6.1 13.3

11,635.8 10,506.9

11,629.3 10,500.0

39,306.8 34,789.2

38 4,303.6 3,286.0
39 3,453.1 3,637.2
28 3171 347.2
40 1.4 12.8
8,075.2 7,283.2

47,382.0 42,072.4

BI7THRE24EZ FEEMB MR E RGN
F—NEZH = A IR RETIEE > T

FIEENRERE

Li Chi Kong
i
Director

HF
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

Operating activities
Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Bad and doubtful debts

Net impairment loss recognised on interests
in associates

Finance costs

Loss on purchase of bonds issued by the Group

Taxation

Depreciation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss on amount due from a joint
venture

Net loss on disposal/write-off of property, plant
and equipment

Net exchange loss (gain)

Expenses recognised for employee ownership
scheme of Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited
(“SHK")

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments

Profit on disposal of Sun Hung Kai Financial
Group Limited (“SHKFGL")

Share of results of associates

Net fair value gain on financial assets and
liabilities

Net increase in fair value of investment properties

Share of results of joint ventures

Net realised gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss reversed for hotel property

Net realised gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Net realised gain on disposal of
a joint venture

Gain on disposal of investment properties

Loss on liquidation of subsidiaries

Impairment loss on intangible assets

Net gain on disposal of land and building

Net realised gain on disposal of
an associate

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-T1F —E 4
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
(i3 BEAT HE T
mEER
AR Y A 6,104.2 3,075.3
HEIHEH
RBER 1,559.6 796.1
RIS A T 2 RS 2
WER R 521.7 7.4
& R 258.7 271.8
A AL BT T 2 (B 2 4R 1415 -
BiH 127.6 372.4
G 88.7 90.3
T G i 6 18.2 333
Ak ESMEE
W {1 13.8 2.0
—HAEEARRHZ
W EEE 5.1 8.5
HEMEIE - K
R R AR 4.2 5.0
T SRR (W28 ) 3.4 (16.5)
SRR R
(Bt ) 2 B B e
I EHERR 2 2 0.5 10.0
TR B S 0.2 0.3
A e 4 R A 1 4 PR
(FHrs AR ) 2 i 15 (3,033.5) -
TEA B ) B (1,290.0) (608.1)
SREERAKZATEE
Wt VAR (927.2) (69.0)
BB T AR 419.0) (393.3)
TG 8 R 2ERE (158.9) (176.1)
HE N ESFEE
B A B F 5 (19.0) (8.8)
B R A 2 e R 1R (17.0) (10.5)
B I A R 2 L B g v AR 43 (15.9) -
HE-HMaEARZE
Sillhgnte sl (5.7) -
HEREWE s (1.0) (0.8)
Wit 2 ) A 2 i AR - 0.4
ELSIA SR lE i - 0.4
A i S 7 MR A - (139.9)
HE—HEEARZ
&Y Siillente - (12.9)
Rl EEE S BT
WEEER ST E 2,960.2 3,237.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

Increase in trade and other payables

Decrease (increase) in loans and advances to
consumer finance customers

Increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Increase in amounts due from associates

(Decrease) increase in provisions and other
liabilities

Decrease in amount due to a holding company
and fellow subsidiaries

Decrease in properties held for sale and
other inventories

Cash from operations
Interest paid
Taxation paid

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Proceeds on disposal of SHKFGL

Amounts repaid by associates

Proceeds on disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds on disposal of long-term financial assets
designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Dividends received from associates

Dividends received from joint ventures

Proceeds on disposal of a joint venture

Proceeds on disposal of investment properties

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Amounts repaid by joint ventures

Purchase of long-term financial assets designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Fixed deposits with banks placed

Amounts advanced to associates

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Capital injection to associates

Capital injection to a joint venture

Payment of deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and investments

Purchase of intangible assets

Additions to investment properties

Net payment of statutory deposits

Amounts advanced to joint ventures

Proceeds on disposal of land and building

Proceeds on disposal of associates

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Acquisition of additional interests in associates

Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets

Net cash from (used in) investing activities

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAA

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

B 5 B AbRE AT 2 E S
RN % Pk B
D (3870)
BRI IR A TE R 2

SRB RN D)
B 5 R A RE I IE S
BRI IR A TEE R

SR
T A ) K s
B T A B 6 (i)

HEm
JEEASS— I P 7 B ]

WS A R D
TR B2 R A

D

iia

RafrEL 2 Be
EAFE
EATBUE

BEXBAEL (A 2REFE

REXHK
R A < A B 7 U
ot w K
5 O~ P O
i HER AR AFEE
R 2 1R M S A O
e & e EE
Pk
R ABEARZ B
KABRBERFAZBE
A P E0R
SR DT i a0R
i E YRS
PR sE
AERFRR
FE A BB R MR AR
JRHZ R R G E
FEABITE AL
B TR
REAMIE - b M
B n AR
o~ EAFAEE
WO ~ RS R LA BB 2
Hftike
AR G
IRE BB
HE R
BHTRE R
i 13 ST A5 58
R R B s0R
BT D
Wi F 2 MR
AT E S EE

REXBHEL (A 2R ERE
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—E-1F ZF 4
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
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1,120.5 960.6
996.3 (2,181.5)
153.0 (32.2)
(1,739.2) (1,860.8)
(1,224.0) (103.1)
(35.7) -
(12.0) 16.1
7.1 (17.3)

- 0.2

2,212.0 19.3
(193.3) (178.6)
(348.7) (416.4)
1,670.0 (575.7)
15 3,543.1 -
14715 35.5
43 640.5 -
189.1 65.4
115.0 41.9
74.3 48.4

32,5 0.8

10.9 -

7.2 6.8

1.0 0.7

0.6 -
(2,297.1) (395.0)
(572.9) (258.2)
(346.4) (10.7)
87.7) (188.0)
(83.7) =
(57.7) (42.3)
(49.9) (73.0)

(8.0 (34.0)

(6.5) (7.4)

(5.5) (11.2)

(1.2) 0.7)

- 139.9

- 47 .4

- 13.5

- (16.0)

- (3.8)

2,569.1 (640.0)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

Financing activities

New bank and other borrowings raised

Proceeds from exercise of warrants

Amounts advanced from associates

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Dividends by subsidiaries to non-controlling
interests

Dividends paid to equity shareholders

Repurchase of notes

Amounts paid for shares repurchased and
cancelled by subsidiaries

Amounts repaid to a joint venture

Placing and top-up subscription of shares of
a subsidiary

Proceeds from issue of notes

Short-term loan due to a fellow subsidiary
advanced

Capital contribution by non-controlling interests

Short-term loan due to a fellow subsidiary repaid

Redemption of notes

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

Redemption of preference shares

Purchase of shares for employee ownership
scheme of SHK

Amounts repaid to associates

Amounts paid for shares repurchased and
cancelled by the Company

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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2015 2014
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HeZEY 4,391.9 4,383.1
RERZBEERBAELZEN 32 6,388.8 4,391.9
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”) and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The ultimate
holding company is Allied Group Limited (“AGL"), a listed
public limited company which is also incorporated in
Hong Kong. The ultimate controlling party of the Company
is the trustees of Lee and Lee Trust. The address of the
principal place of business of the trustees of Lee and Lee
Trust is 24/F, Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company is 22/F,
Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (“Group”) are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture are set out in notes 54, 55 and 56
respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group adopted certain
Amendments to Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
that are mandatorily effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning on 1st January, 2015. The adoption of
these Amendments has had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods. The same accounting
policies, presentation and methods of computation have
been followed in these consolidated financial statements
as were applied in the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2014.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New HKFRSs and Amendments in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
HKFRSs and amendments that have been issued but are
not yet effective, and are relevant to the operations of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative!

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle!

Amendments to HKFRSs

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2016,
with earlier application permitted.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

Except as described below, the management anticipates
that the application of the new HKFRSs and amendments
will not have material impact to the consolidated financial
statements.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New HKFRSs and Amendments in issue but not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition. HKFRS 9 amended in 2013 includes
the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include: a) impairment requirements for financial
assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” measurement
category for certain debt instruments.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at “fair value
through other comprehensive income”. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, an entity may make an irrevocable election
to present changes in fair value of equity investments in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
recognised in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New HKFRSs and Amendments in issue but not yet
effective (Cont'd)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in
the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The application of HKFRS 9 may affect the measurement
of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities. However, it
is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a detailed
review.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

2

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (CONT’D)

New HKFRSs and Amendments in issue but not yet
effective (Cont’d)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

—  Step 1: Identify the contract with customer.

—  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract.

—  Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

— Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract.

—  Step 5: Recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The application of HKFRS 15 may affect the amount
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
(“CO”).

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the provisions of the new CO regarding
preparation of accounts and directors’ reports and to
streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31st December,
2015 have been changed to comply with these new
requirements. Comparative information in respect of the
financial year ended 31st December, 2014 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are
not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the significant accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

— Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from input other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices).

— Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include input for the
assets or liabilities that are not based on observable

market data.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;

— is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as

appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income
and expenses within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that Standard.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on
the basis specified in another Standard.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS
39, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e.
the date when the Group obtains control), and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that
interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during
the measurement period (see above), or additional assets
or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

Interests in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to bring the accounting policies of associates and joint
ventures in conformity with the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate
or a joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued, and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture on
the same basis as would be required if that associate or
joint venture had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Where the Group’s interest in an associate increases,
whether directly or indirectly, the impact of the change
should be accounted for as an incremental purchase of the
associate and recognised at cost.

When the Group transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, unrealised profits and losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
relevant associate or joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary for
which the agreement date is on or after 1st January,
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Income from properties developed for sale is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the properties are transferred to buyers, which is when the
construction of relevant properties has been completed and
the properties have been delivered to the purchasers and
collectibility of related receivables is reasonably assured.
Profit or loss arising from the outright sale of an entire
development property prior to completion is recognised
when a binding sales contract becomes unconditional
and the risks and rewards of the ownership have been
transferred to the buyer. Deposits received from pre-sales
of properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities.

Rental income from properties under operating leases,
including rentals invoiced in advance, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.

Income from the provision of services is recognised
upon the provision of the relevant services or on a
time apportionment basis over the terms of the service
contracts.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when services
are provided.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised on
a time apportionment basis, taking into account the
principal amounts outstanding and the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
owner’s right to receive payment has been established.

Brokerage commission income is recognised as income on
a trade date basis.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Underwriting commission, sub-underwriting income,
placing commission and sub-placing commission are
recognised as income in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the relevant agreement or deal mandate
when the relevant significant act has been completed.

Fees for management and advisory services for funds are
recognised when the related services are rendered.

Realised profits or losses from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised on a trade date basis
whilst the unrealised profits or losses are recognised from
valuation at the end of the reporting period.

Income from rendering financial guarantee services is
recognised over the contractual period on a straight-line
basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Croup as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Croup as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter
into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
as a finance or an operating lease separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid land
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group entity
are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional
currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each
entity are expressed in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve). Such translation differences are
recognised as income or expenses in the period in which
the operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable asset
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising
are recognised in the other comprehensive income.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised on a time
apportionment basis, taking into account the principal and
the effective interest rates. They are charged to the profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

The contributions payable to the Group’s retirement
benefit schemes and the mandatory provident fund scheme
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contribution.

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based
on approved formulas that take into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

For shares of SHK (“Awarded Shares”) granted under the
employee ownership scheme of SHK, the fair value of the
employee services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of Awarded Shares granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(employee share-based compensation reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of Awarded Shares that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Taxation
Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates (and tax law) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Taxation (Cont’d)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Investment properties

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation, is stated at its fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Transfers to, or from, investment property are made in the
following circumstances:

— commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer
from investment property to owner-occupied property;

— end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-
occupied property to investment property; and

— commencement of an operating lease to another
party, for a transfer from inventories to investment
properties.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value
to owner-occupied property or inventories, the property’s
deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall be its fair
value at the date of change in use.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment
property, the entity treats any difference at that date
between the carrying amount of the property and its fair
value in the same way as a revaluation surplus. The excess
of the fair value of the property at the date of transfer over
the carrying amount of the property is credited to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an
expense, in which case the increase is credited to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously charged to consolidated statement
of profit or loss. The excess of the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer over the fair value of the
property is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, on the
revaluation reserve relating to a previously revaluation of
the same asset. On subsequent disposal of the investment
property, the revaluation surplus included in equity may
be transferred to accumulated profits. The transfer from
revaluation surplus to accumulated profits is not made
through profit or loss.

For a transfer from inventories to investment property that
will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their estimated residual value over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, at
the following rates per annum:

shorter of the estimated useful
life and the remaining lease
term of land

shorter of the estimated useful
life and the remaining lease
term of land

Leasehold improvements  20%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 50%
equipment

Motor vehicles and vessels 1624% to 20%

Hotel property

Leasehold land and
buildings

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

When the nature of the lessee’s property interest
changes from investment property to property, plant and
equipment, the lessee shall continue to account for the
lease as a finance lease.

Prepaid land lease payments

The up-front prepayments made for the leasehold land and
land use rights that are classified as operating leases are
amortised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or when
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in profit
or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. Such intangible assets
are measured at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Intangible assets acquired separately
(i) Exchange participation rights and club memberships
They comprise:

— the eligibility right to trade through the Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
and other exchanges; and

— the eligibility right to use the facilities of various
clubs.

The exchange participation rights are considered by
the management of the Group as having an indefinite
useful life because they are expected to contribute
to net cash flows indefinitely. The management also
considers that the club memberships do not have a
finite useful life.

(i)  Computer software
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring into use the specific software. These costs are
amortised using the straight-line method.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with
the production of identifiable and unique software
controlled by the Group, and that will probably
generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond
one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Direct
costs include software development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Cont’d)

(i) Computer software (Cont'd)
Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised from the dates when the software
becomes available for use using the straight-line
method.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Useful lives are also examined on an annual
basis and adjustments where applicable are made on a
prospective basis. Alternatively, intangible assets with
indefinite lives are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and are tested for impairment annually
by comparing their recoverable amount with their carrying
amount.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding
financial assets

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding
financial assets (Cont’d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) that have indefinite
useful lives are not subject to amortisation, and are
tested at least annually for impairment and reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units) if
an impairment test cannot be performed for an individual
asset. An impairment loss is recognised immediately as an
expense. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating units) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial assets is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more

embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.

Available-for-sale-financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments or
loans and receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment of financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
amounts due from associates, amounts due from joint
ventures, bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and
loans and advances to consumer finance customers) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
securities classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the securities below their cost
is considered in determining whether the securities are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for AFS financial
assets, the cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss) is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss on equity investments are not reversed
through profit or loss.

Each receivable that is individually significant is reviewed
for indication of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Loans and receivables that are individually not
significant and are assessed not to be impaired individually
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period on a
collective portfolio basis.

Individual impairment allowance applies to securities
margin financing and term loans which are individually
significant or have objective evidence of impairment.
In assessing the individual impairment, management
estimates the present value of future cash flows which
are expected to be received, taking into account the
borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value
of the underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the
Group. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits and
the impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the loan’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan’s
original effective interest rate.

Collective impairment allowances cover credit
losses inherent in portfolios of loans receivable and
other accounts with similar economic and credit risk
characteristics where objective evidence for individual
impaired items cannot be identified. In assessing the
collective impairment, management makes assumptions
both to define the way the Group assesses inherent losses
and to determine the required input parameters, based
on historical loss experience and current economic
conditions. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

— itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

— the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.

A financing guarantee issued for rendering financial
guarantee service is initially measured at fair value as
represented by the consideration received from the
specified customers and the consideration received is
recognised as revenue on straight-line basis over the
guarantee period. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financing guarantee at the higher of: (i)
the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition policy.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank and other
borrowings, notes, trade and other payables, amount due
to a holding company, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
amounts due to associates and amounts due to joint
ventures, which are recognised initially at fair value,
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Fair value measurement principles

Fair values of quoted investments are based on bid
prices. For unlisted securities or financial assets without
an active market, the Group establishes the fair value by
using appropriate valuation techniques including the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
investments that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
if it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to any provision is presented in profit or loss net of
any reimbursement.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes freehold and leasehold
land cost, development cost, borrowing costs and other
direct costs attributable to such properties, until the
relevant properties reach a marketable state. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates
of the selling price based on prevailing market conditions,
less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing and selling.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank
balances and short-term time deposits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are set out as
follows.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by an independent professional valuer. In determining
the fair value, the valuer has based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgment and is satisfied that the assumption used in
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.

Impairment allowances on loans and receivables other
than loans and advances to consumer finance customers
In determining individual impairment allowances, the
Group periodically reviews its trade receivables and term
loans to assess whether impairment allowances exist. In
determining whether impairment allowances should be
recorded in the profit or loss, management estimates the
present value of future cash flows which are expected to
be received, taking into account the borrower’s financial
situation and the net realisable value of the underlying
collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.

Impairment allowances on loans and advances to
consumer finance customers

The policy for collective impairment allowances for loans
and advances to consumer finance customers of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these loans and advances,
including the current creditworthiness, and the past
collection history of each loan.
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(CONT’D)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For listed available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
Judgment is required when determining whether a decline
in fair value has been significant or prolonged. In making
this judgment, the historical data on market volatility as
well as the price of the specific investment are taken into
account.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

The Group conducts tests for impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives annually
in accordance with the relevant accounting standards.
Determining whether the goodwill and the intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the fair value less
cost to sell or value in use on the basis of data available to
the Group. Where future cash flows are less than expected,
an impairment loss may arise.

Deferred tax

Estimating the amount for recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from tax losses requires a process that involves
forecasting future years’ taxable income and assessing
the Group’s ability to utilise tax benefits through future
earnings. Where the actual future profits generated are
more or less than expected, a recognition or reversal of the
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss for the period in which such a recognition
or reversal takes place. While the current financial models
indicate that the recognised tax losses can be utilised in
the future, any changes in assumptions, estimates and tax
regulations can affect the recoverability of this deferred tax
asset.

Fair value of derivative and financial instruments

The Group selects appropriate valuation techniques for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Note
26 provides detailed information about the key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of material
financial instruments.

Recoverable amount of a listed associate

In determining the recoverable amount of a listed associate
included in note 24, management used appropriate
assumptions to estimate the value in use based on
discounted future cash flows of the associate. Where those
assumptions and/or future cash flows are different from
expected, impairment may arise.
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B > T35 2 JRR SR DA S BIE A
B BRI TEAEA

EEK%@E@%ﬁ%Z%%EEZG%
A

AR ARYEAN B & e Q) > A S R
55 5 () 47 0 2 ST AR AT Uk (2L )
ol o 1 R A PR S T W S 1 Y
FORMABALE B 0] 1531 2 R - FE(E
BB A A A (AR A T o R
B U RO TR > HI AT B AR e (E

#

EERIR

it PRt Tl 48 A 2 e A AE o VL
ST E AR B TR A AR 2 RERRBL
WSO S P At A 3 T 725 28 A 24 1 0 0] A O
Fldd < BEJ1 Z AR o fin A A 2 B B OR A€ i
AR SRR TR > HIJA] R AR AR ST B IH
B AR BB ] > SO IF A e B4 ) AR
R IR fR AT o AW BLA A BB
LA RR B IF s 48 ] A R AR B 1 > BT
B AR ROBUB LB 2 S B R e R
ST TE S 2 W[ o

TETARESRMTAC AV EE

A [ A T R i 35 e ) < T L
FEE AG(E BT o B k2684 B E B R
S TR HEEZ FEBRSEZFE -

—BETBHEARZTREEHE

TE M RE B RE24 B (45 2 — ] BT a2 )
Z AJ ] R o A8 B A A A0 B
DA s B8 2w 2 R R A B 4 L ) 1
{E1E o B, SR AT 4 Uit S T
AR AR > BUER REEA
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

5.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
that are derived from the provision of consumer finance,
property rental, sale of properties, hotel operations and
property management services, provision of consultancy
and other services, interest and dividend income, income
from advisory services and income from term loan
financing. As described in more details in note 15, a
subsidiary engaged in provision of wealth management
and brokerage services and corporate finance services
(“Discontinued Business”) was disposed of in 2015. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

Continuing operations RFEKEER

Interest income on loans and
advances to consumer finance R 2 FE
customers A

Interest income received from banks, R ERAT
term loans and others

Property rental, hotel operations and
management services BRI

Income from advisory services and J o 5 e HcAts
others N

Dividend income ST PN

Sale of properties &Y
Discontinued operations BRI

Discontinued Business B

During the year, the interest income that was derived
from financial assets not at fair value through profit or
loss amounted to HK$4,103.7 million (2014: HK$4,107.8
million).

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

5.

FANBA 5 %0 5 R %

AIEE &
FoAt AR 2 FILE WA
YIS ~ s 68 K

WA

W AAFRAR B SRR - YR -
YIS ~ I S L S B ~ R
AR ) K HCA RS ~ FLE B BB A -
Fi] AR 55 WA A S8 B e il S WA WS B
W2 BRIE o AR5 PrRERl » — M
Jb e A B R AC RS A S A S il B R 5 2
BitJEg 2\ ([ B IR 2ERS |) B —F —F4F
WA o U AAREEFER WA Z T

2015 2014
—E—RF R4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:Y
3,671.8 3,742.5
436.4 364.0
422.7 404.5

48.5 40.8

15.1 18.9

- 1.0

4,594.5 4,571.7
603.5 1,073.3
5,198.0 5,645.0

FR > N IEFR AR R R R AR A TEE
ik PR 2 4 RGBT R A 22 R B IR A A
4,103.7 A B0 (—FE 4 : 4,107.80
BEHIT) o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The operating business organised and managed in each
segment represents a strategic business unit that offers
different products and services for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance by the
Executive Directors of the Company. The Group has the
following reportable and operating segments:

— Investment and finance — investment and provision of
term loan financing.

—  Consumer finance — providing consumer loan finance
products.

—  Property rental, hotel operations and management
services — property rental, hotel operations managed
by third parties and provision of property management
services.

—  Sales of properties and property based investments
— development and sale of properties and property
based investments.

During the year, the operations of provision of
Discontinued Business which were reported under the
segment of “Investment, broking and finance” in previous
periods were discontinued due to disposal of a group
of subsidiaries as described in note 15. The operations
remained in the “Investment, broking and finance”
segment are investment and provision of term loan
financing. Accordingly, the segment is redesignated as
“Investment and finance” for the purpose of segmental
information. The comparative figures were restated to
conform to the current year’s presentation.

Inter-segment transactions have been entered into on terms
agreed by the parties concerned.

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

6.

B EER

53T BT AL S B SE RS - TR
SRR 7E il SR LA A R BT E
G BE R B VA 7 BT 2 B B SR SE s B
B o ARG 2 AR S E AR

—  FANBAE; — SRR N BB i o

—  WSERLE RS R BIRES — 1
SRR - Hi B8 =07 B H 2 0 S
RS PR S

—  HWEVRLEAYSEAR R - %R
L SV I B SEAT B 2 10K

AASERE o A B a1 5 Bl 2 — A
AT > RO AR 1R 36 2 S A
(A BSER OB Rl 10E - KL K
il E N B k) DA ALE o [1RE - &
KO bl 1y R BR T SR AR B BUE
Befe A IR - SR > w0 AR
ZHE > Za B ENEE R/ IE k&
Ao BT OES - 2 BEAFEEY
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE
6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT'D) 6. 7EEFR(E)
(i) Segment revenue and results (i) DEPWARES
Analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from ASAE F A 9 4 R AR s L W S 3
continuing operations is as follows: oM
2015
—E-E1F
Property
rental, hotel Sale of

operationsand  properties and
management  property based

services investments
Investment Consumer NERE HEMER
and finance finance ERERR YRR Total
RERESHE FAAB EEEH ZRE g

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BERET BERT BEBT BEET

Segment revenue AEUA 496.3 3,706.4 411.8 - 4,614.5
Less: inter-segment revenue 15 : A ZftA 8.0 - (12.0 - (20.0)

Segment revenue from A F REEASE T 2
external customers from  AMBEF

continuing operations A 488.3 3,706.4 399.8 - 4,594.5
Segment results GRES 1,071.8 609.5 624.4 4.4 2,301.3
Reversal of impairment loss % [l i A 7 2 #E

on interests in associates 2 EifEks1A 17.0
Impairment loss for interest  4— e/ Al 2 H i

in an associate Z W (538.7)
Finance costs RE A (253.9)
Share of results of associates {5 /A 7] 24k 1,290.0
Share of results of joint ~ FEfGA AT

ventures *5 384 - 118.7 - 157.1
Profit before taxation B il e A1 2,972.8
Taxation BiIE (97.5)

Profit for the year from % BB R

continuing operations AR 2,875.3
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual R 2015
A BakE (EB)ARAD A e e L]



for the year ended 31st December, 2015

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(i) Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

Segment revenue

ABA

Less: inter-segment revenue i = ZMABIHZ A

Segment revenue from
external customers from  ANBEFZ
continuing operations IHRIA

Segment results

Reversal of impairment loss  ## [il 1A /A 7 2 i

RERALEERL

RS

on interests in associates 2 FifEER

Impairment loss for interest B/ A Z 4

in an associate
Finance costs

bariiil i
A

Share of results of associates FE{fEi& /A F 4
Share of results of joint L AT

ventures *%
Profit before taxation Rl
Taxation R
Profit for the year from A AHESEER L
continuing operations R
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
FEBE (FEEB)ARAR

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
6. ZEER(H)
OJ: LONES 1€ )

2014
e Sl

Property
rental, hotel Sale of
operationsand  properties and
management  property based

services investments
Investment Consumer PEME - LB
and finance finance ST HEA T Total
BEREH AR B & Rk
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
HEB T EE HET AABT HEHT
435.8 3,763.6 389.8 1.0 4,590.2
(11.8) - (6.7) - (18.5)
424.0 3,763.6 383.1 1.0 4571.7
511.0 1,407.7 577.0 4.2) 2,4915
7.1
(14.5)
(262.6)
608.1
33.0 - 138.9 - 171.9
3,001.5
(316.5)
2,685.0
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

6. THRER (M)

(i) PHEEREE

2015
—E-1F
Property
rental, hotel Sale of
operationsand  properties and
management  property based
services investments
Investment Consumer NERE HENER
and finance finance ERERR ENEER Total
RERSH AR EEEE ZRE g
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BE#BT BERR BEBR BEAT BERR
Segment asses NG 13,599.4 17,653.9 7,408.8 179.6 38,841.7
Interests in associates RSN T 2 FE g 9,020.9
Interests in joint ventures  RAAEAFZ i 208.2 - 1,948.1 - 2,156.3
Deferred tax assets EAHIEEE 5434
Amounts due from NG
associates Kk 236.2
Amounts due from joint BB
ventures R - - 9.2 - 9.2
Tax recoverable HT g B E 9.6
Total segment assets I EESS 50,817.3
Segment liabilities IHERE 2840 6,479.8 7.7 0.3 6,835.8
Amounts due to associates  JUiE /A [l H0E 55
Amounts due to joint REEINF
ventures HH - - 0.1 - 0.1
Tax payable TERtBLE 201.2
Bank and other borrowings #8172l fi 2k 619.4
Notes mhE 3,531.4
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEH 317.1
Total segment liabilities /& fEAI# 11,5105

Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

6.

Segment assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Deferred tax assets

Amounts due from
associates

Amounts due from joint
ventures

Tax recoverable

Total segment assets
Assets relating to
discontinued operations

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to

joint ventures
Tax payable
Bank and other borrowings
Notes
Deferred tax liabilities

Total segment liabilities
Liabilities relating to
discontinued operations

Consolidated liabilities

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

s
KA S
RABATZ I
BiEAAYE
Ty

&

AEAT

ik

AR

NHREAH
WP REER
AR EE

LAERE

b AR

U -t
ReBRH
I
TEftBiIA

RAT RIS
2
ERERIRE

A A
WP I REER
Gl Fa U

Geaf

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

6. ZTEHER(E)

(i) PHEEREEER)

2014
~E—AE
Property

rental, hotel Sale of

operationsand  properties and

management  property based

services investments

Investment Consumer WEEME - HEMER
and finance finance T ETE R SR Total
BEREM BT SRR 2HE a5
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million
HEBT AEET HEBT AEET H &
6,603.2 19,034.6 7,543.9 300.5 33,482.2
6,970.4
150.0 - 1,846.5 - 1,996.5
261.9
180.7
0.1 - 9.8 - 9.9
9.7
42,911.3
7,065.7
49,977.0
1115 7,232.5 70.7 - 7,414.7
5.4
- - 75.1 - 75.1
153.3
859.9
3,708.5
343.1
12,560.0
2,627.8
15,187.8
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(iii) The geographical information of revenue from

BE_F-AF T A=t —HIEFE
6. 7EEFR(E)

continuing operations and non-current assets are

disclosed as follows:

Revenue from continuing operations
from external customers by
location of operations

Hong Kong
Mainland China
Others

e Y B )7 Y
SR 5 A F A
e SEIRELION

i
HH B 1) 4
HoAs

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue for the year.

Non-current assets of continuing
operations other than financial
assets and deferred tax assets by
location of assets

Hong Kong
Mainland China
Others

B A B ) (YRR ARAE
KW 2 B E N
HESE B IH G 2 LAY
I B

s
Hh B 1A 4
HoAt

(i) REFASEXBEMBRARFER

BEEZHHENRENT :
2015 2014
—E-HF e SIS
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERET T
2,858.2 2,732.2
1,697.9 1,802.9
38.4 36.6
4,594.5 4,571.7

RN MR 5 AN EF 25
W AL ZASLE H i AR 10%EE A | o

2015 2014
—E—FE R PR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H E T
/A&é’
22,706.4 20,493.6
593.7 603.1
81.8 45.8
23,381.9 21,142.5
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

6.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(iv) Other segment information

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

6. D

PER ()

(iv) EfttnHEHR

2015
—2-1F
Property
rental, hotel Sale of
operationsand  properties and
management  property based
services investments
Investment Consumer ~ YI%HE HENER
and finance finance — BEEXHR  ENEEE Total
REREH BARH EERK ZRE g
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
L BEET BEET BEER BEET
Continuing operations ~ HEEL LT
Included in segment AIARNBES/
results/segment assets nERE
Depreciation and iR
amortisation 5 133 520 209 - 86.2
Net impairment losses TERR (BT Wi
recognised (reversed) il 5.1 13.8 (17.0) - 1.9
Net increase (decrease) in B EHEATFE(E
fair value of investment ~ Héfj (B
properties i 38.3 0.1) 380.8 - 419.0
Bad and doubtful debts po: 107.7 1,463.3 0.5 - 1,571.5
Capital expenditure BARBY 6.7 152.7 16.3 - 175.7
2014
—“FE
Property
rental, hotel Sale of
operationsand  properties and
management  property based
services investments
Investment Consumer ¥ HEWER
and finance finance  EEEBER  EYEAR Total
REREH YN BRI ZHE gLt
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
Al AEET AEET AEET AEkT
Continuing operations BELEER
Included in segment AARHES
results/segment assets MR E
Depreciation and e R
amortisation #4 125 39.6 213 - 734
Net impairment losses ThERT (%)) Joi
recognised (reversed) BEER 8.5 2.0 (10.5) - -
Net increase (decrease) REMENTERH
in fair value of s (s h)
investment properties A 3.7 0.7) 3503 = 3933
Bad and doubtful debts R 2.3) 787.2 0.1 = 785.0
Capital expenditure AR 440 213.6 185 - 276.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

Ze

BE_F—RHEF _H=1T—HIERE

CHANGES IN VALUES OF PROPERTIES 7. MIREESH
2015 2014
—E—RF R4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER HEEIT
Continuing operations FEKEEK
Changes in values of properties comprise: 4 3B {H A B 117 -
Net increase in fair value of investment BEYHEZ A FEE
properties* S PIREE Y 419.0 393.3
Impairment loss reversed for hotel property [ 38 i #) 3 2 3 {5 18 17.0 10.5
436.0 403.8

The reversal of impairment losses was based on the lower 5 1] 2 W ARLRE 45T R TS 5 ) 2 2 TAS T

of cost and value in use for hotel property. The value in i FME (B R b 2 AR E 7T - i B

use was determined based on independent professional TR -+ A=+ —HZH

valuations at 31st December, 2015. HEMEREE -

*  The amount recognised in the current year included HK$$203.2 * REEHERZ AR - HEEY
million arising from the revaluation of an investment property upon — IR A S T — A& A W R > A
the disposal of a subsidiary holding the investment property to a TEREY T EA 22032 A BT - sz &
joint venture. The details of the disposal are described in note 43. FIA L FEIGHR I EE43 o

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED psinuel Repes 2015
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BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
ERMEEREREWRFE

for the year ended 31st December, 2015

8. NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 8.
LIABILITIES

175 4R i AR A P (BB B 2 4l

The following is an analysis of the net gain on financial

assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Bl R AT AR

2015 2014
o e SR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERBT A EH#ETT
Continuing operations BEEEER
Net realised and unrealised gain on GRS E XART B K
financial assets and liabilities 5 B A T A
Held for trading FERR 5 g
(note 13 (Note1)) (B5ET3 (REAFT)) 660.2 15.9
Designated as at fair value through T8 E I B IR R iR R
profit or loss BB (E B 341.3 98.6
1,001.5 114.5
9. BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS 9. REER
2015 2014
—E-RfF e Siitfe2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT A EH#ETT
Continuing operations BREEEER
Loans and advances to consumer finance A A\ A5 % 5 &5 %
customers Bk
Impairment loss iGRIEY ZEi=) 1,446.9 787.2
Trade and other receivables B 5 B HAth B itk A
Reversal of impairment loss 1) (B 1 (0.1 2.4)
Impairment loss RN, 7] 113.6 0.2
Bad debts written off SRR 11.1 —
124.6 (2.2)
Bad and doubtful debts recognised in AR fa BRI HERR 2
profit or loss R 1,571.5 785.0
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

9.

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS (CONT’D)

Since the year ended 31st December, 2014, the economic
growth of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) has
declined and business activities slowed down generally.
Small businesses in Mainland China, both companies and
individuals, which accounted for a substantial portion of
Mainland China loan book of United Asia Finance Limited
(“UAF"), a subsidiary of SHK, classified as loans and
advances to consumer finance customers were especially
affected. For unsecured loans, the entire loan amount
is written off after 180 days delinquency (or in case of
bankruptcy or if a borrower is deceased, whichever is
earlier), whilst collection and recovery efforts would still
continue and are written back as and when recoveries
occur. Delinquencies of UAF’s Mainland China loan
book increased at a higher rate for the year compared to
that of last year, leading to a substantial rise in bad debts
written off. These write-offs during 2015 also increased the
collective impairment allowance provided for the year.

The following are the amounts written off in allowance of
impairment against the receivables and recoveries credited
to allowance of impairment during the year:

Continuing operations BREEER
Loans and advances to consumer finance
customers BEK
Amounts written off in allowance of
impairment IH
Recoveries credited to allowance of

impairment e [e] SR IH

Trade and other receivables
Amounts written off in allowance of
impairment RIA

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

9.

FANFA 5 20 5 B

TRE L1382

AP AER <

5 5 B HAt WG IR
PSS T A T

RRAR ()

HHEZE _Z—W4E+—H=1+—HILFEEF
DAAE 5 g N R LA (A e ) A8 =
R PHEEIE B — B sR o R R R A2
INFL A 2E (RS A sl | ) JE H Az 31 5%
2 WS /NEIAS G B 2 I S ] R
WIS 5 A R 28 71 (T SR & B4 75 1) 2
Fp B A LA R R A B > SRS A FA A
R T B HGR o s IR AR - At
IR 180K (B AEFR N 28 Bk B > AR 2
Hagn) » 2EEFGE T > e
BT B B R K > S R i B R G AR A 4
FEABE ] o oI B A RS TR A A R A
SRR 22 L RE T b S AR R R 5 AR
HERREARAN o — F— F4F 2 S A8 I i 4F
NAE 2 4 A B ES A T Tt o

RN PRI EL AR T LA S B H 2
AR et AT A 2 W [ R IE AR

2015 2014
L S [
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
(1,363.7) (738.9)
129.5 114.2

4.4) -
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BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
10. 2% - EERSREEEMNE

for the year ended 31st December, 2015

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

@ EBNSIENtH(ZZ-—DOF: t£H)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven

(2014: seven) Directors were as follows: EEvMEmT
2015
—E-1%
Chief Executive
Lee Seng Hui Mark Wong
THER Li Chi Kong Tai Chun Total
£33 Z 5 EVN @ax
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERT BEAR BEAERT BERT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ~ #{TE%
Directors’ fees EHNE - - - -
Salaries/service fees and ¥4/ MRHE &
other benefits HAbAaA 4.13 1.00 0.87 6.00
Bonus payments (Note) ~ E4L (GEfF) 7.12 0.48 0.58 8.18
Retirement benefits BIRAEAGTE
scheme contributions i3k 0.05 0.04 0.04 0.13
Sub-total NGt 11.30 1.52 1.49 14.31

ERPIR BT S B B S
WA A BA S B B A5 2 IR

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.
2015
“E-RE
Chairman
Arthur
George Dew Total
FFEINEEE b ]
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEAT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHTES
Directors’ fees A - -
Salaries/service fees and Bids IR K
other benefits HoAth 45 1) 1.02 1.02
Bonus payments (Note) fEAL (GEf#) 1.35 1.35
Retirement benefits scheme BARAE A 5T
contributions 3R - _
Sub-total /NG 2.37 2.37

The non-executive director’s emoluments shown
above were mainly for his services as directors of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

b RPR P AT R P S
SEAR AR 2wl B A R S 2 iR

%

a’ <]
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven
(2014: seven) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

BE_F—RHEF _H=1T—HIERE
10. EE - EERSAREEEMNE (E)

@ EBNZENtH(ZT-—OF: £R)

ExzMEmT : ()

2015
—E-RE
David Craig
Alan Stephen Bartlett  Steven Samuel Total
Jones gEE Zoellner ok
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERT BEAT BEART BERT
INDEPENDENT NON- BV ¥#fT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS EZ
Directors’ fees FHNE 0.01 0.01 - 0.02
Salaries/service fees and  #i4 /MHE K
other benefits HAER 0.49 0.25 0.05 0.79
Bonus payments {EAL - - - -
Retirement benefits R AT H
scheme contributions i - - - -
Sub-total INGF 0.50 0.26 0.05 0.81

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Total Hst

RN AT E R e

Bl S AE B AN 7 ol L g Rl 5
ZHRFS -

2015

—E-1F

HK$ Million

BHEET

17.49

2014
— R
Chief Executive
Lee Seng Hui Mark Wong
FTBUAE; Li Chi Kong Tai Chun Total
2R 2R BN H
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBIT HEHIT HEIT AT
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #{T7EE%
Directors’ fees EFHA - - - -
Salaries/service fees and ¥4 /IRH % K
other benefits HAth A5 3.82 0.96 0.90 5.68
Bonus payments (Note) ~ fE4L (EfF) 6.17 0.43 0.56 7.16
Retirement benefits RIRAERHE
scheme contributions HE3k 0.05 0.04 0.04 0.13
Sub-total /NG 10.04 1.43 1.50 12.97

The executive directors’” emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

ERPIR AT S B B 5
LA 7] B AR A A B s 2 RS o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@) The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven
(2014: seven) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHTES
Directors’ fees A
Salaries/service fees and e Mg K&

other benefits o Ath 45 )
Bonus payments (Note) fEAL (FEf%)
Retirement benefits scheme AR ARAE A

contributions e
Sub-total /et

The non-executive director’s emoluments shown
above were mainly for his services as directors of the

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
10. E% - BEREREEEN 2 (K)

@ ENZENLtH(ZT-D0F: +£H)
ExzMEmT : (8)

2014
4R
Chairman
Arthur George
Dew Total
BV GHNS HEE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
[ER: v BN
1.02 02
1.27 27
2.29 2.29

RPN IR BA T P T S 1
SEAR AR A B A R S 2 iR

¥

Company or its subsidiaries. o
2014
“Z-NE
David Craig
Alan Stephen Bartlett ~ Steven Samuel Total
Jones i Zoellner HugE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
EE K HEBTT AEET HEETT
INDEPENDENT NON- BV 1T
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS E=
Directors’ fees EHEWE 0.01 0.01 = 0.02
Salaries/service fees and ¥4 /MRH % &
other benefits HAth g 0.48 0.25 0.05 0.78
Bonus payments fEAL - - -
Retirement benefits RIRAEFHE
scheme contributions HE3k = = =
Sub-total INET 0.49 0.26 0.05 0.80

The independent non-executive directors” emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Total i

E RPN IR AT 2 P
J%E%Ef’ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ[?ﬁ%z\ﬂ§$
A o

2014
“E—E
HK$ Million

AEET

16.06
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(@)

(b)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven
(2014: seven) Directors were as follows: (Cont’d)

Note: The amounts represented the actual discretionary bonus
in respect of the preceding year approved and paid to
respective directors during the year.

Certain Directors of the Company received remuneration
from the Company’s holding company or its wholly
owned subsidiaries. The holding company provided
management services to the Group and charged the
Group a management service fee, which is included
in share of management service expenses as disclosed
in note 49(a), for services provided by these Directors
as well as other management personnel who were not
Directors of the Company.

The management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management
personnel on the affairs of the Group and therefore
can be apportioned to the Directors mentioned
above. The total of such apportioned amounts, which
has been included in the above table, is HK$16.69
million (2014: HK$15.27 million).

Employees” emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included one (2014:
one) of the Directors, details of whose emoluments
are set out in note 10(a) above. The combined
emoluments of the remaining four (2014: four)
individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits S 4 T A AR A

Bonus payments fEAL

Retirement benefit scheme BARAEAFHE
contributions Kk

BE_F—RHEF _H=1T—HIERE
10. EE - EERSAREEEMNE (E)

@ EBNIENtH(ZFT-OF: £H)
EszMEm® : (8)

R < A IR ST A TR A e A AR B
AR BRI T fEAL 3 o

AR R T HORCAR A FE s ]
BOH RGN R 2 o B
I A S P SR AL BRI S - Sf ) AR 4 [
WCHRE, BRI s 2 T - %% A R AE R R
49(a) 55 2 IEAL A PR B 2 1 > 5
W% 5 ROl IR AR ) R HoAth
LR\ B R ARSI SAY o

BRI )2 S g N B A2
EH BB Z RHFHE > WL
oyl Eal#E S o ERHES 2 %%
e e 2 R A5 16.69 H BT (&
—JU4FE : 1527 H B #ETT) °

EEME

HEARBHEMZ N LEE—4% (2%
—PU4E : —4) EE > HM SRS
® B EE10(a) « HERUAZ (ZF
—PO4E : PU) N2 BG4 5 UE ¢

(b)

2015 2014
—B-RF T WA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HE I
19.2 21.8

68.0 65.1

1.0 1.1

88.2 88.0
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

BE_F—HET_HA=1+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, EMPLOYEES’ AND SENIOR 10. %
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Cont'd)

BERSREEEME ()

(b) EEME(HE)

The emoluments of the above employees, who

were not Directors of the Company, were within the

following bands:

HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000
HK$7,500,001 — HK$8,000,000
HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000
HK$27,000,001 - HK$27,500,000
HK$27,500,001 — HK$28,000,000
HK$46,500,001 — HK$47,000,000
HK$47,000,001 — HK$47,500,000

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

5,000,001 7C —5,500,000% 7T
5,500,001 7T —6,000,000% 7T
7,500,001 7C — 8,000,000% 7T
8,500,001t —9,000,000% JT
27,000,001 76 —27,500,000i% 70
27,500,001 76 —28,000,000% JC
46,500,001% 76— 47,000,000 7T
47,000,001 75 —47,500,000% 7T

(o)

Of the senior management of the Group, all seven
(2014: all seven) were the Directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosure

above.

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAA

FAE B A A FIE R 5 AE I

AN

AFLRL A E

Number of employees

EEAH

2015 2014
—E-RE T YL
- 1

1 —

1 —

- 1

- 1

1 —

- 1

1 —

4 4

EREEENE

AL R RE B R4 (%
—V4E L4 BAAFES
W 2 M R ER I £
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

11.

12.

INFORMATION ABOUT MATERIAL INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year. For information, a tenancy agreement dated 19th
November, 2013 entered into between Mr. Lee Seng Hui as
the tenant and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as the landlord expired on 18th November, 2015 and was
renewed by a tenancy agreement dated 19th November,
2015. The total rental of HK$3.9 million (2014: HK$3.9
million) received therefrom during the year ended 31st

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

11.

ARESARS » ZHFREGNTHNE
REZNER

AR A JBE 4 458 IRy B AR A JEE TR AT AT B[]
AN ~ PR 7] w HAT fa] B a2 7] 5R
[F] 25 Bt a8 2 ) Sl 20 7. 6 =l B o T AT
L E O ek M A KR RS 2 AT
HEERZY ~ EHEEEH o LT Pl 4t
27 AP S (TR BRFELN) BLAS N 7]
—MEEWE AR ERET) R T —=
E+—H L HFT LS - %D
R FE—HAE+— A+ H B
B EFE—HFtT— AT LH 2 HE R E
o mBEF-HETH=+—0H
IEFRERN > AREEIEGE.9E Bt (—F
—PU4E : 3.9 F BHTT) X e BB AL

December, 2015, is considered insignificant in relation to EZEEM S BAEK o
the Group’s business.
FINANCE COSTS 12. @EKA
2015 2014
—E-FF TR 4E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT [ER- 2
Continuing operations FEQEXK
Interest on following liabilities wholly DA £ ZEis HLAF N 28R 2
repayable within five years: AfEAE
Bank borrowings W|ATIHE 248.2 210.4
Notes e 231.5 238.2
Preference shares issued to non- ] FEHE R 2R A T 2
controlling interests e - 3.7
Other borrowings HAbfe £ - 3.1
479.7 455.4
Total finance costs FEATSIEB RN Z
included in: Pl R A A
Cost of sales and other direct costs B BLAS B HoAMh B 42 AR 225.8 192.8
Finance costs Pl AR 253.9 262.6
479.7 455.4

All finance costs were derived from financial liabilities not
at fair value through profit or loss for both years.

% P4 B2 i A il P AS T 20 Sl T 9
1R i Al A T E ER I 2 Sl A £ -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_EZ—HFETZA=1T—HILFEE
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBLATR A
2015 2014
—E-HF e Sgiitfe2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A EHETT
Profit before taxation from continuing 7€ H #4484
operations has been arrived W5 Z BRBLH
at after charging: i A 2 B
Auditors’ remuneration A ST < 9.2 4.2
Amortisation of intangible assets TR A fHE
Computer software (included in SR
administrative expenses) (FEAFTECE ) 1.3 0.3
Other intangible assets (included in HAh e & e
other operating expenses) (FFEAFH A= ) 6.3 6.3
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE S E
payments 8 0.2 0.3
Depreciation g 78.4 66.5
Expenses recognised for employee BB PE 2 8 B Iy
ownership scheme of SHK AT R R < % T 1.4 -
Impairment loss for amount due from  —MH & & A " KK 2
a joint venture (included in other WELRE 1R (FTA A
operating expenses) REHEm) 5.1 8.5
Impairment loss for available-for-sale  RJ it H} 5 4 il & 2 2
financial assets (included in other A R 1R (FHA oAt
operating expenses) REBH) 13.8 2.0
Impairment loss for interests in REE A F 2 AR
associates (included in other BB TR A=A
operating expenses) (Note 1) met ) GEm) 538.7 14.5
Loss on purchase of bonds issued W AR [ i AT 2 AR 0
by the Group (Note 2) Z 1R (GEA#2) 141.5 —
Net loss on disposal/write-off of e MEEYIZE ~ FRE R
property, plant and equipment 1R R 4.0 2.1
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3B /R4 A1l 1 #1 4 2k 118.2 98.7
Staff costs (including Directors’ BITHA (HiGESF
emoluments but excluding [ ERNRFELIN
contributions to retirement benefit e A ET S Ak K
schemes and expenses recognised AR B 5
for the employee ownership scheme JB A A TR
of SHK) w2 825.2 805.3
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13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)

and after crediting:

Dividend income from listed equity
securities

Dividend income from unlisted equity
securities

Gain on disposal of investment
properties (included in other
income)

Net realised gain on disposal of
a joint venture (included in
other income)

Net realised gain on disposal of
an associate (included in
other income)

Net realised gain on disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets
(included in other income)

Net realised gain on disposal of
subsidiaries (included in other
income) (note 43)

Rental income from investment
properties under operating leases,
net of outgoings of HK$20.9 million
(2014: HK$25.0 million)

Reversal of impairment loss on
interests in associates
(included in other income)

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

13. BRBLAER ()

2015
—ZE-HEF
HK$ Million
BEET

WEFFA :

T AR A S
A
FE LT A B A S
A
HEREYES
ek (EA
HAbIA)
WE—HEEAF
PARR 3N E REiE
(FFA A A)
HE—HBE AT Z
5 A 4 V4
(FEAHABILA)
e ESREE
£ B i A T AR
(FRAFAIA)
R E A 7l 2 EsE Bl g
TRAE (FEA AR A)
(FffE43)
WEHAREYZES
FHA WA > FBR
S H20.9H BT
(CFE—U4E : 250 HHsoT)
T [ AW A T 2
WE 4 2 ok (E s 18
(FEAABIA)

2014
A
HK$ Million

HEHBIT

3.5

1.0

5.7

19.0

15.9

191.3

17.0

16.1

2.8

0.8

12.9

1.8

176.8

7.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D) 13. BRBIAIERI ()
Notes: AL
1. SHK disposed of 70% interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary 1. RIZE—FENA > B &R G E
SHKFGL in June 2015 and classified the remaining 30% equity IS FL TR A AR B 2 70% HE A o B ASBR T
interest as an associate. Affected by the correction of Hong 30%JBHE S JEAE— M A wl R PR o 23| &
Kong and China stock markets during the second half of the Kb B R SR T 0 R R R AT IR R A > R
year, the carrying amount of the 30% equity interest in SHKFGL T 106 < 5 P 2 B 30% MR 2 R AL i
exceeded the recoverable amount at the reporting date that led o Bz AT ] 2 o DAECH BUBUE S o
to an impairment loss. The recoverable amount was measured A A [ <5 T A AR A A A I B A R 5 A )
at the value in use with a discount rate of 14.6% by estimating M A 2 R AR B 4 Yt B BUAE > DA ] o R (B
the present value of the Group’s share of future cash flows to be 14.6% M BLFHE o AER N 2 — 300 > A
generated by the associate. As part of the disposal, the Group B Sl 0 ik 4 Tl 2 ] 2 30% MR ARE A 52 — 3 T
was awarded a put option on the 30% equity interest of SHKFGL. HE o W2 BTk HEBRATAL (LU 25 596.0 11 & T
This put option recorded a valuation gain of HK$596.0 million G HR B 4 P T B BRI RS R o
classified under net gain on financial assets and liabilities.
2. In 2013, a securitisation fund owned by the Group issued bonds 2. ATE AR AR TR 2 IR G
to an independent third party investment fund which in turn sold BN = T OB TR AT A
units to investors in the PRC. The bonds issued by the Group’s SRR E TR B EE o AL S
securitisation fund were backed by bonds issued by a Singapore AL FE 4B g AT Z A% 25 T3 A — RUBT 3 b i A #
listed company. The Singapore company defaulted on the bonds. JITEEAT ZABAE 5 S o SN w g H A
In order to facilitate repayment to the PRC investors and to FHEH) o BT RN T B BE A - RBUEA]
minimise a potentially protracted and costly dispute, a subsidiary RES RIS RMFEERERZ M » AL —H
of the Group purchased the bonds issued to the independent BB 2 7 AF A LA 141.5 5 #us oo (B R A
investment fund for HK$141.5 million, being the original principal B SR ARAT R ) i ] 1] 5 288 N A 4 T
and part of the outstanding interest, during the year. This amount BATZ 5 o AT RAT H AR 2 |
is included in “Other operating expenses”. A judicial manager oo SEHINE A A E W BAEHE A - ALEIE
has been appointed to the Singapore company and the Group is VA A A7 77 5 AR - IR (1] 5 s I e HAth 2
actively pursuing all possible means of recovery of these funds and F o B A [E) 2 AR AT SR AE B AR FEA T HAllk
other costs. Any amounts recovered will in the future be included Al
in “Other income”.
14. TAXATION 14, BiH
2015 2014
—g-mE % i
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HEWETT
The income tax charged (credited) from 2 [ FHAE A B 2
continuing operations comprises: PrgBi s (G5 4) B4
Current tax A SHBLIH
Hong Kong it 174.6 168.8
PRC R 214.5 206.7
389.1 375.5
Over provision in prior years SBTE AR BB R (1.2) (1.2)
387.9 374.3
Deferred tax R AERIE
Current year AAE (290.4) (57.8)
97.5 316.5
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

14. TAXATION (CONT’D)

HE—

—hE+ " HA=1+—H I EE

14. BB (E)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for both years.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in the relevant
jurisdictions.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

T U I A0 A T IR 4 3 X4 A0 5 | U Uik
P 2 BLZ16.5%F1E

A HR R 2 8 2 W ZE AT R B A SE T AR R
A A R R B 25% o

A 1 HE A 7 4 2 BT
B P LA A5 B ] M 1 5 2 B 4B
i

loss as follows:

Profit before taxation (from continuing
operations)
Less: Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit attributable to the Company and
subsidiaries

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5%
(2014: 16.5%)
Countries subject to different tax rates
Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible for tax purposes

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

for tax purposes

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
differences not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of deductible
temporary differences previously
not recognised

Over provision in prior years

Others

Taxation for the year

Deferred tax of HK$5.0 million arising from the revaluation

AR B I B4 - 18 2 3R 8 7 2 BR BRI Tk
Flz ST -
2015 2014
—E—FEF B4R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEATT A&
B A Vs A

(3 A FRAg A8 2575 ) 2,972.8 3,001.5

W MEAL A 7 AR (1,290.0) (608.1)
FEAG A8 A R ESR (157.1) (171.9)
AR ) B B 2 )

JRE A ¥ 1,525.7 2,221.5
DI RIS BB %16.5%

(ZE—U4 : 16.5%)

FHE 2 BLIH 251.7 366.5
TR R B 2 B K (27.2) 41.2
] AR S 2

i TE Y 2 159.5 37.6
PHEBIRA Z

P JH R 2 (279.2) (91.6)
IR 55 e 48, 2 i T s 228 10.1 -
B Z B R MR RS 1R 2

T TE S 2 (12.4) (35.0)
KRHERR AT FUBLER R 2B

Bl 2 0.3 5.7
B 2 AR R

NN A= g

HiIE 4.1) (7.0
AR R A R A A (1.2) (1.2)
HAth - 0.3
AR BEFL IH 97.5 316.5

FER

(ASWIE7ES S EX g g//E )

gain on properties transferred from self-owned properties
to investment properties was recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year (2014: Nil).

F18 B A e 2 7 5 | B0HY 5.0 71 B 9 TR AE A
TEA Hofth 4 T i 28 AR (% — U4
i) -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 2nd June, 2015, SHK completed the disposal of
70% interest in SHKFGL. SHKFGL and its subsidiaries
carry out businesses in provision of wealth management
and brokerage services and corporate finance services.
The proceeds on disposal of HK$4,095.0 million were
received in cash. Upon the disposal, the fair value of the
remaining 30% interest in SHKFGL on the disposal date
of HK$1,644.0 million was classified as an interest in
associate and the amounts due from the subsidiaries of
SHKFGL were classified as amounts due from associates.
Such amounts included a 1-year shareholder loan of
HK$1,061.6 million (interest at 6% per annum for the
first 6 months and 8% per annum thereafter) advanced
by the Group to a subsidiary of SHKFGL. The loan was
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of SHKFGL and
a subsidiary of SHKFGL and was secured by a share charge
over the shares of SHKFGL owned by the controlling
shareholder after the disposal. The loan was fully repaid in
October 2015.

The profit from discontinued operations (the consolidated
profit of SHKFGL up to the date of the disposal and the
profit on disposal of SHKFGL) is analysed as follows. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss have been restated to represent those operations
that have been discontinued in the current year as
discontinued operations.

BE - F—HF+_H=1+—HIFF
5. CRIEEE XK

M EB—FHENATH » BB e
ST B 4 Pl AE ] 2 70% I HE o iR 4
Rl 4 (3] 7 LB N ) A R A B A L
AR LA S A 2ERE IR ES  375  HE
8 £ 4,095.0 F B i ok DA B 4 i o
ST L 4 T A [ R 30% HE 45 5% H B H
2N TAB(E1,644.0 [ W TR A FE
O3 KE B B N Rl 2 HERS o BB S A A
H 2 B} T8 A ) BT R R IR IR 43 2 B A 7
KR S KRR IE i AR 42 B 5T s 2
S Rl SE B T — ] B ] — T — A %
HAFEK1,061.6 H BT (R EAEF =R A
ANAEH 6% HAE 5 8%) o HMER > %8
K E BT 4 T A R P IS R R T i
SR — I E A RIS > DL R
JBE R HEAT 2 5 i 35 4 Tl 4 o) IS A e R
o ZEBHAONR _E—LFE+HE2HE
ﬁ °

PATF A2 B B 4% 1k K88 3605 2 i A1l R i
B4 AR B AR R R 2 AR i A LA
Ko B i 5 < P AR I 2 i ) 2 O3 A
HEaRaR WEHTRE RS > DK
FEMAEE KR ET /AL
REEERS -
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

Revenue
Other income

Total income

Cost of sales and other direct costs

Brokerage and commission expenses

Selling and marketing expenses

Administrative expenses

Net gain on financial assets and
liabilities

Net exchange (loss) gain

Bad and doubtful debts

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation
Profit on disposal of SHKFGL

Profit for the year from discontinued
operations

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

15. BARILEEEE(E)

2015 2014

—E—FF B4

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BHEBTT HEHIT

A 603.5 1,073.3
BRI N 0.3 152.1
LA 603.8 1,225.4
BB A R LA A (8.2) (25.4)
e B AR 4 (167.7) (236.7)
BB T T S I A (5.5) (10.8)
1T (199.1) (485.1)

ALV S= KT L&

A 2.1 2.5
BEE 5, (5180 Ui 45 V0 8 4.3) 5.7
SRR 11.9 (11.1)
At 58 7% 2 4.5) (13.3)
Al & B AR (4.8) (9.2)
= /NEIE 1.8 4.2
A HiT i A1) 225.5 446.2
BiTA (30.1) (55.9)
R B4R i Al 195.4 390.3
H B TG I 4 P £ 1] 2 Y5 ) 3,033.5 -
A C AR

AF TR A 3,228.9 390.3
JEAG T

AN F R 1,769.4 220.2

FEFE M £ 1,459.5 170.1

3,228.9 390.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

BE-F—HFE+—H=1+—HI14FE
15. BARILEE X (H)

The profit on disposal of SHKFGL included HK$802.4
million attributable to measuring the 30% retained interests
in SHKFGL at its fair value at the date when control was
lost. The fair value of the 30% retained interests is based
on a business valuation report prepared by an independent
qualified professional valuer, Norton Appraisals Limited.
The valuation used the discounted cash flow approach and
is based on certain key assumptions including an average
growth rate of 32.4% from 2015 to 2020, a sustainable
growth rate of 3%, a non-controlling interest discount rate
of 9% and a discount rate of 13.3%.

The cash flows from discontinued operations is analysed as
follows:

2015 2014

—E-EHfF —F—mE

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEER HEHIT

Net cash from operating activities KB SERS P e 2 BB TR 67.0 410.7
Net cash (used in) from investing & ) i EA 2

activities B A (9.5) 117.3
Net cash from (used in) financing BE ST T () 2

activities B3R 58.5 (80.0)

Net cash inflows BB AR 116.0 448.0

M S O 4 T 4 B 2 v A AU 45 45 8024
H TG IR [ A I 22586 5 4 il 4 1B
I HE B R T Et i 30% it B 25 2 N F
fEME o 30% 4 B HE 25 2 08 B 2 3= 0
T8 ST A B SE A (R AT 22 B A A PR
45 AT A ) SETSAG (RS A (E AT B
BER I > BIENE T EEERR > B
AT E SR R AR R
32.4% ~ FFAEBRER3Y  JEFERAE R T
1R 9% KA B2 13.3% °

DAL REER 2 B BT
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015
15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

The consolidated net assets of SHKFGL at the date of

disposal were as follows:

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Interest in joint ventures
Available-for-sale investments
Statutory deposits

Deferred tax assets

Trade and other receivables

Deposits for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment

Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries and a

holding company
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Bank borrowings

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and
a holding company

Provisions

Tax payable

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

Net assets disposed of

Net cash inflow arising on disposal
Cash consideration
Expenses incurred
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

15. BARILEEEE(E)
s SR EREN L E H 2 S EE T

R
FRBEE
L E RN Y& ]
T
REEAT 2 R
AJ I
e &
R SE R T
2 5 Ko HoAth JRE Sk TE

WY 2E ~ WS st
2

hBEE
ARt AR T (ELE P
EMEE

AT i ] IE

FENTFREK

I7] 2% B g 2 ) M — 2 e )
UG

5 5 B HAb IR

B M EY

RBEE
RATIHE
© 5 B AR A

R[] 25 B o 2 W) K — Y e 2 )

HIH
1t
AL

RBEEFE

FRBEME
RSB IH A fi
it

C & E T E

B A 2 B TR TR
BaUE
ErZER
C &S KB EEEY

HK$ Million
H #HIT

30.0
87.6
43.2
11.9
45.3

29

7.4

1.5

229.8

0.2
2.1
0.3

5.6
6,994.9
539.3

7,542 .4

4,095.0
(12.6)
(539.3)

3,543.1
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONT’D)

BE-F—HFE+—H=1+—HI14FE
15. BARILEE X (H)

The profit on disposal of SHKFGL is as follows:

o B BT A < Al B 2 s AT

HK$ Million
HEWIT

Cash consideration received O R AR 4,095.0
Net assets disposed of E & EETE (2,805.4)
Retained interest in an associate B A W) Z AR B A 1,644.0
Put right for the retained interest in an associate i 8 #1515 A R R B 4

procured on disposal* Rt HE * 111.0
Call option for club membership procured on A A B e

disposal AR e 9.3
Release of reserves and non-controlling interests i 8 RF48 5] it i %

on disposal e Rt 4 9.1
Transaction costs 5o A (29.5)
Profit on disposal of SHKFGL H B TR i 4 B ) 2 i ) 3,033.5

* The Group may, during the option periods (which are the periods
of six months commencing on the third and fifth anniversaries of
the completion date) or following the occurrence of certain trigger
events, exercise its put right to require the buyer to buy some or
all of the shares it holds in SHKFGL at a price per share equal to
the consideration per share paid by the buyer for the acquisition
of the 70% interest plus a pre-agreed annualised yield of 8.8%
compounding less dividends. Further details have been disclosed
in the Company’s circular dated 27th February, 2015, Company’s
announcement dated 2nd June, 2015 and note 26. The fair value of
the put right at the disposal date is determined by an option model
with certain key assumptions including a volatility of 56.0%, risk
free rate of 0.6% and equity growth rate of 4.7%.

Upon the completion of the disposal of 70% interest in
SHKFGL, the properties that were rented to the subsidiaries
of SHKFGL and classified as property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of HK$16.2 million before the
disposal were transferred to investment properties
measured at fair value of HK$132.5 million as the
properties were continued to be rented to the subsidiaries
of SHKFGL. The difference of HK$111.3 million between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the properties
was recognised in property revaluation reserve, net of
deferred tax of HK$5.0 million.

& A 2 (8] ] 7 s PR R 3 11 (B 52 B 3E 5 45 5B =9
AT M TR SR A ) > siE Rt
A T R AR AT LR - BORE R
B L i 0 4 T A B R A 2 A B A
By o 5 PR B0 B B 5 A B Rl A 70% HE
T T A 2 B IR FRA A - s A G52
8.8%THEAEE (FURRILE) o E—EFEH TR A
AR HMA T —HETH -t H 2R
AN A H BB R —FAE N A T H 2 A
FE26 KR o BRI HER A H 2 A FE (E
T DAY REASS TR 38 ] 7 T 2 AR R (LA A B
56.0% ~ M EEEF R 0.6% M HE RS 1R R 4.7%)
M E o

SER B BT I A M AE B 2 70% HE 2R 1R
A o B AR T T 3 4 i AE 1 2 I
NE AW - FE Kt (MR E
£516.2 0 EWI0) 2 Y EREEHE T 6
PR AR B 2 [ N R DR 2 RO
% WA FEE132.58 E# e >
G 2 MR E B A TE(E 2 [ 25 B
111.3 8 & oo (FNFREER 5.0 [ & i
JufR) R EE AL A TERR -
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16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from continuing and discontinued operations is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$4,122.5 million (2014: HK$2,023.8 million) and on
the weighted average number of 6,811.9 million (2014:
6,802.3 million) shares in issue during the year.

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per
share from continuing operations is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company from continuing
operations of HK$2,353.1 million (2014: HK$1,803.6
million) and on the weighted average number of 6,811.9
million (2014: 6,802.3 million) shares in issue during the
year.

From discontinued operations

Basic earnings per share from discontinued operations is
HK25.98 cents (2014: HK3.24 cents) per share which is
calculated based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Company from discontinued operations of HK$1,769.4
million (2014: HK$220.2 million) and the weighted
average number of 6,811.9 million (2014: 6,802.3 million)
shares in issue during the year. Diluted earnings per share
from discontinued operations for both years was the same
as the basic earnings per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s warrants because
the exercise price of those warrants was higher than the
average market price of shares for 2015 and 2014.

BE_F-AF T A=t —HIEFE
16. SREA

REFERCRIEREEL

R M BRI BRI
T 0 5 R) T R A AR % ) TS R RE A i
4,122.5 F ##T (—F—DU4E : 2,023.8H
B TT) ST N AT A 2 InHET- 4 B
6,811.9H BB (—FE—4 : 6,802.3H &
J&) FHE o

REFECEEK

A& [ AR AR 2 2 R IR AR R i 2
TIRIEAR B FR A 2 2 AR N A
JEAL Y A 2,353.1 H B G (—F—PU4E -
1,803.6 & & JC) AN E #4782
WE-1586,811.9 B & B ( & — PO 4E
6,802.3 A M) 5 -

RECRILEEEKE

A H B LR 2 B EAR R A
2598 WAl ( —F—PU4E : 3.24H641) >
TIAREEAR B B & R £88 2E 75 2 AN R R
JEAGHEAT,769.4 F B 0 (—F—IU4E
2202 H B IT) o AR BB T
TNFET-34%06,811.9 B B A% (—F—U4F :
6,802.3 F H %) 5HHE - ZWRFEERAE
He 11 B8 S 2 19 I 2 P LA R R A
B A

HI R AR 2 F) AR O RS 2 AT I % — T
AR AR - TR S o
i PR 21 M) 2 S R AT o % A AR

JEHERE: o
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17. DIVIDEND 17. RE
2015 2014
—E-EF TR Y4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT XYoo
Dividend declared and proposed H IR K BEIR S
Interim dividend (in lieu of a final TR AR AR
dividend) of HK6 cents per share HIRZ R E
declared subsequent to the end (RERBE)
of the reporting period el
(2014: proposed final dividend (DU : HER
of HK5.5 cents per share) AR B B 5. 5 U A1l 409.1 374.1
Dividend recognised as distribution ENTER I IRZ
during the year iids}
2014 final dividend of "R —PERBIRE
HKS5.5 cents per share TS5 @l (= — U4
(2014: 2013 final dividend of CR—EAERIARE
HK4.5 cents per share) 4. 58:A10) 374.1 306.1
Adjustment to 2014 final dividend CRPUAERIARE 2 R 1.0 -
375.1 306.1
The amount of the interim dividend (in lieu of a final BE-Z—-HMHEt+-_A=+—HILHE
dividend) for the year ended 31st December, 2015 has AR (R R E ) 2 88 - 12
been calculated by reference to 6,818,693,669 shares in B —_E—-ANE=H_+=HEB%fT2

issue at 23rd March, 2016.

6,818,693,669 LA o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_F—HE+T_H=1+—HILEE
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REME
Hong Kong PRC Total
&8 FE] et
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
A& HE I HE I
Fair value "?FE
At Tst January, A P 4E
2014 —H—H 7,071.7 141.3 7,213.0
Exchange adjustments [FEE b, o B - 3.7) 3.7)
Transferred from properties held for & 5 £5 1 8
sale LES 40.2 = 40.2
Additions Bt 2.5 33.9 36.4
Disposals HE (6.0) - (6.0)
Transferred to property, plant and $§T§’*§%¥ 5
equipment (note 19) B ( I}ﬁnf1 9) - (19.6) (19.6)
Increase in fair value recognised in E{‘i\ SRR
profit or loss &$1§{Eiﬁﬂ 390.3 3.0 393.3
At 31st December, A = Z—PU4E
2014 +=ZA=+—H 7,498.7 154.9 7,653.6
Exchange adjustments [ffE 5, 5 4 - (7.7) (7.7)
Transferred from properties held i E i
for sale LYES 119.6 = 119.6
Additions A0 6.5 16.9 23.4
Disposals HE (6.2) = (6.2)
Disposal of subsidiaries R E A A (640.0) = (640.0)
Transferred from property, plant g Y -
and equipment 75 B st 113.0 19.5 132.5
Transferred to property, plant and Eﬂ?"‘E%% R
equipment (note 19) At (FFE19) - (17.5) (17.5)
Increase (decrease) in fair value EAT fcﬁﬁ‘”Z"?
recognised in profit or loss {BAESE 0 (o)) 426.8 (7.8) 419.0
At 31st December, R R AR
2015 +=H=+—H 7,518.4 158.3 7,676.7
Unrealised gains or losses for the FERFEAER Z R
year included in profit or loss SRR A5 B4R
For 2015 TR AR 223.6 (7.8) 215.8
For 2014 TR 4R 390.3 3.0 393.3
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties on
the date of transfer and at the reporting dates have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out at these
dates by Norton Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent
and qualified professional valuers not connected with the
Group.

The fair value was grouped under level 3 and was
determined based on the investment approach, where the
market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed and discounted at the market yield expected by
investors for this type of properties. The market rentals are
assessed by taking into account the current passing rents
and the reversionary income potential of tenancies. For the
properties which are currently vacant, the valuation was
based on capitalisation of the hypothetical and reasonable
market rents with a typical lease term or direct comparison
approach. The discount rate is determined by reference to
the yields derived from analysing the sales transactions of
similar properties in Hong Kong and adjusted to take into
account the market expectation from property investors
to reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment
properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
18. REME (&)

A B EUE Y S R H L) RO il H
S92 S (L AR R BELAR S o G )l
TS B Tt (L A % 20 e i A B
AR A H ST 2 A ERE -

NFEEIRATES =81 T > MRS
EILMEE > BRI > WS R0 R] A R
o BT EAE 2 T3 AR Rl Sl 3 4 8
SRR 3 2 TR RIS B o B A T (EA <
R C 2% 2 BA T MAHA SR B AT
T o BERIZE B2 W o ASET IR
R K BT LR 4 2 T R - el ] S0 A
B SR EREBIEED - BRI 2
ERBBIYI L5 2 3 2 &5 R
fEE - WEAHAE > DSt AR EEZ
gi%iﬁ,ﬂ;ﬁ » AR BB YA 2

A A BE R T A (B 0l Sl eS8 By o A
AHSE N B ERE > W3R R S B tE T
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is

BWE_F-HFET_A=+—HILFE
18. REMZE (&)

R BARR AP R (E R A A B
AR m] BB I ] R % S BUE WS
PR CRR IR BT A B0 A (B i K2 i A
B o DURA-FEER RS 2 A
SRR (SR — 22 =4 &R

observable.
Investment properties
held by the Group in the Relationship of
consolidated statement of ~ Fair value unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) fair value (Note)
REAHBRARZ DYEE  and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) UNGIE RN
REBfERENSE R RRERKRIEGARE EATITERRAUE N EECBEGER)
Residential properties Level 3 Investment Approach
located in Hong Kong =%  #&%

(R E 2 fEEYE

The key inputs are

TEE AR

(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield generated ~ The higher the term yield,

R % by market average selling price and the market the lower the fair value.

(2) Reversionary yield
s %

(3) Monthly term rental
BAHS

(4) Reversionary rental

(] ik

average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of the building,
of 1% to 3% (2014: 1% t0 3.5%).

I R 119 239 (2% —UAF : 19%3.5%) -
M8 8] B LR T 2 R
(iRt vaAl SRS AT DUTS: S8R

=7

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with
the future rental, of 1.2% to 3.25% (2014: 1.2% to
4%).

PR F41.2% 83.05% (—F—I04E < 1.2%%
4%) > BEEATE LB TP EE R
TSI 2 1 2 W A R DA
P ikl

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the
average of the rental as stated in the existing rental
agreements with an average of HK$20 to HK$72
(2014: HK$19 to HK$68)/sq.ft./month.

#B B ARSRRARAHI 2 e T8 A
R0 ELE7 2T (“F 4 : 19T
Fo8iTC) L TG AR -

Reversionary rental for each unit is compared with
direct market comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factor, the range
of average reversionary rental is from HK$19 to
HK$69.5 (2014: HK$19 to HK$69)/sq.ft./month.

R RS R T GT EHRAET
A% B EAE R - e
FHEEN T8 51 R 9T E69. 587
(ZF—IEE 198 TE697 ) «

g > A PR
(g -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

Rl » AT
(AR -

The higher the monthly
term rental, the higher
the fair value.

AR - ATRE
L -

The higher the
reversionary rental, the
higher the fair value.

R - AR
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 18. REWXE(E)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the Relationship of
consolidated statement of ~ Fair value unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) fair value (Note)
RESHERRIRZ AYEE  and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) UNEIE DN bk
AREFERENSE £ fREEHRIEGARE EXTTEZAANE NEEZBE(ER)
Car parking spaces Level 3 Investment Approach
located in Hong Kong =%  #&#%
P i 2 i
The key inputs are
TREARS
(1) Reversionary yield ~ Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield The higher the
g% generated by market average selling price and the reversionary yield, the
market average rental from comparable properties  lower the fair value.
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with i ffltés i > AT
the future rental of 6% (2014: 6%). (BB -
s Ro% (—F U : 6%) - HEEAH
B i Y EE R eE L
W 2 e e o A MR AR 2 AR R
(2) Reversionary rental  Reversionary rental for each unit is compared with ~ The higher the
fifmie direct market comparables and taking into account  reversionary rental, the
of location and other individual factor, the average ~higher the fair value.
reversionary rental is HK$1,860 (2014: HK$1,850) Sl &l - ATE(E
unit/month. i o
B B S RE TG RS
A% BB LR R - FfEE
e R EAEH 8608 T (T4 :
1,850i87C) °
ALLIED PROPERTIES () LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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18.

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 18. REWH*E(ME)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the Relationship of
consolidated statement of unobservable inputs to
financial position Valuation technique(s) fair value (Note)
RESBBRARZ and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) TUREG A\ GiEE
AREFERENSE fREEHRIERARE EXTTEZAANE NPEEZBE(EH)
Commercial properties Investment Approach
located in Hong Kong =%  #&%

L B

The key inputs are

B N c

(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield generated The higher the term yield,

G % by market average selling price and the market the lower the fair value.

(2) Reversionary yield

ek

(3) Monthly term rental
FAMS

4) Reversmnary rental

(1 ik

average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of the building,
0 2.25% to 4.25% (2014: 2.25% to 4.25%).

MR 12.05%84.05% (CF—E : 2.25%
E4.25%) » BRI EHBYEL 15T EH
B T4 e e 2 A R D
i SRR/

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with
the future rental, of 2.75% to 4.75% (2014: 2.75%
t0 4.75%).

fRE A 142, 75% E4.75% (CE 04 : 2.75%
£4.75%) > SE B KB E L 5T E R
iS4t e 2 2 W R A o A et
kAl N

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the
average of the rental as stated in the existing rental
agreements with an average of HK$31 to HK$64
(2014: HK$30 to HK$65)/sq.ft./month.

%EMZﬁH etk fﬁﬁ*ﬂ*’]ﬁ)f HZBENTEH
BFHRB T R4 T (—F U4 m%m
F65170) L MG AR -

Reversionary rental for each unit is compared with
direct market comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factor, the range
of average reversionary rental is from HK$32 to
HK$71 (2014: HK$31 to HK$65)/sq.ft./month.

BEL 2 Bt e S S B B S

WA B U RAR R  BlRfe
?ﬂﬁl FEAGT IR TET 1T
EIE JETE65HETT) «

iR » AR
(g -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

e > A PR
(g -

The higher the monthly
term rental, the higher
the fair value.

BAMeNR  ATEE
W -
The higher the

reversionary rental, the
higher the fair value.

BB - AT
L
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 18. REWHE(E)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the Relationship of
consolidated statement of ~ Fair value unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) fair value (Note)
RESHERRIRZ AYEE  and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) UNEIE DN bk
REBfERENE E4 RREERRIEBAYE EATITERRAUE NYEECBEGER)
Godown located in Level 3 Investment Approach
Hong Kon F=H WE%
it &R
The key inputs are
TREARS
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield generated The higher the term yield,
G % by market average selling price and the market the lower the fair value.
average rental from comparable properties and MG - AT
adjustment to reflect the conditions of the building, (i «
0f 3.25% (2014: 3.25%).
MR R3.05% (—F— U : 3.25%) > X
Al T RS R e
PAl R ETELDUUL S3RE
(2) Reversionary yield  Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield The higher the
kg% generated by market average selling price and the reversionary yield, the
market average rental from comparable properties ~ lower the fair value.
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with it és i > AT
the future rental, of 3.75% (2014: 3.75%) [ -
fRsa 23 75% (T~ : 3.75%) - BEIE
B T E B R T R
g B A o A SR AR 8 2 MR -
(3) Monthly term rental - Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from The higher the monthly
BAME the average of the rental as stated in the existing term rental, the higher
rental agreements with an average of HK$7 (2014:  the fair value.
HKS$4.4)/sq.ft /month. BAMHGHR > APEE
FRN2 8 A HEERARATT 2 e 8N e
BFIR7EIT (CF U4 - 4.4%70) SRR -
(4) Reversionary rental ~ Reversionary rental for each unit is compared with ~ The higher the
(4 i direct market comparables and taking into account ~ reversionary rental, the
of location and other individual factor, the average higher the fair value.
reversionary rental is HK$6.1 (2014: HK$5.3)5q.ft/  EStla e » ATHEE
month. B
AL B S R E R S BRI
WEEENERE T MAIRER - BEHE
T8GR 1B (S F A 5380 -
ALLIED PROPERTIES () LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

18. REWE (&)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the Relationship of
consolidated statement of ~ Fair value unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) fair value (Note)
REAHBRARZ DYEE  and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) NI RN b
AEEFERENSE £ RERMRIEAARE EATUBRRAANE NPEEZBE(ER)
Commercial properties Level 3 Investment Approach
located in PRC F=H WE®

10 B 2 A

The key inputs are

TEE AR

(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield generated The higher the term yield,

ElR%

(2) Reversionary yield
(e

(3) Monthly term rental
BAMS

(4) Reversionary rental

(i

by market average selling price and the market
average rental from comparable properties and
adjustment to reflect the conditions of the building,
0f 4.75% to 6% (2014: 4.75% to 6%).

AR RA.75% 6% (" F T © 475%%
6%) » METEA KBy W5 T EE L
1135 S A W AR R Dt
Bk -

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with
the future rental, of 5.25% to 6.75% (2014: 5% to
6.75%).

fsl e 555.25% £6.75% (—F—4E : 5%%
6.75%) » EH A EHEYE L TG T EER
i85 FE9RE 4 7 A W el A e D St
A S 2 MBI -

Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from
the average of the rental as stated in the existing
rental agreements with RMB86 to RMB225 (2014:
RMB89 to RMB228)/sq.m./month.

B2 5 ARSHRARATTIZ N T8 A
FIkARMS6TE AR5 (—F U -
ARSI E AR H228TC) 2 FH MG H R, -

Reversionary rental for each unit is compared with
direct market comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factor, the range
of average reversionary rental s from RMB94 to
RMB210 (2014: RMB95 to RMB225)/sq.m./month.

B2 B @ B i S B AR L -
LA RN EREE - e,
FERRA T AR AR B4 AR
2107 (ZF— 94 - ARH957ZE AR B257T) -

the lower the fair value.
R R > AT
{ERAR -

The higher the
reversionary yield, the
lower the fair value.

s > AFE
(A -

The higher the monthly
term rental, the higher
the fair value.

BAMSNR  ATEE

The higher the
reversionary rental, the
higher the fair value.

BB - AT
i -
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18.

HE—

—hE+ " HA=1+—H I EE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 18. REWH*E(ME)
Investment properties
held by the Group in the Relationship of
consolidated statement of ~ Fair value unobservable inputs to
financial position hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) fair value (Note)
REERERREZ DYEE  and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) T BEE Y B
FREFERENE £ RERMRIZAARE EATURRAANE NHEEZBE(EH)
Industrial properties Level 3 Investment Approach
located in PRC FER BE®
DL e 2 T
The key inputs are
EEWARE
(1) Term yield Term yield, taking into account of yield generated ~ The higher the term yield,
R by market average selling price and the market the lower the fair value.
average rental from comparable properties and A SR > AT
adjustment to reflect the conditions of the building, i -
0f 4.25% t0 6.75% (2014: 4.5% t0 6.5%).
AR £44.05% 26.75% (~F —U4E © 4595
6.5%) » AETEA KBy W5 T EEL
1T 35 TSH A Z W R F E D t
BTN «
(2) Reversionary yield  Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield The higher the
lilenES generated by market average selling price and the reversionary yield,
market average rental from comparable properties the lower the fair value.
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with i R » AT(E
the future rental, of 4.75% to 6% (2014: 5% to 6%). (K -
R 3 A4.75% 26% (—F U : 5%%6%) »
8 G R B b B R Y
e 2 frn i A h R LA A A £ 2
AR -
(3) Monthly termrental ~ Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the  The higher the monthly
BAHS average of the rental as stated in the existing rental ~ term rental, the higher
agreements with RMBnil (2014: RMB130)/sq.m./ the fair value.
month. g AMEHR  AFRE
#EM2 AR RRARAITIZ HeEA i o
B R NRBEETT (%~ : ARB13070)
PR, -
(4) Reversionary rental ~ Reversionary rental for each unit is compared with ~ The higher the
(14 i direct market comparables and taking into account  reversionary rental, the
of location and other individual factor, the average  higher the fair value.
reversionary rental is RMB27 to RMB45 (2014: BEfsHE  AFERE
RMB46 to RMB132)/sq.m./month. i o
FE2 S S S BB AL
WA BRI LB RAINE - fRie
%ﬂ&ﬂt?ﬁ*k&%yﬁﬁkaﬁ%i
(CF—-mi  \RK46TEARKE132TT) -
Note: Except for an investment property with carrying value of HK$85.0 ff R THIET(E85.0H Bt (U4 :

153

million (2014: HK$92.0 million), there is no indication that
any slight change in the unobservable input would result in a
significantly higher or lower fair value measurement.

There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during both
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
investment properties pledged as security of the Group's
bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$6,087.5
million (2014: HK$5,160.6 million).

Details of the Group’s investment properties and other
assets being pledged to secure loans and general banking
facilities are set out in note 48.

92.07 fyitsot) 2GS} PP L BUR
A AT T A SR P o 5 o A e A
(LR R R I s D -

FIAETAL > SIf SN el 5 =4 -
T AR AR B E b SRAT S A5 T

R 2 &Y 2k 2 MR {E /5 6,087.5 A &
Woo (& — LA SHDGE%%E

AR [ gl B M — FBLERAT (5 T R 2 4%
W2 R A 2 R RO B 48
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y% - BERKXE

Furniture,
Leasehold land Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Hotel  andbuildings  improvements equipment vehicles
property gLt figer  BE 4B and vessels Total
BENE kEF 8 & RERH @3t
HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS$ Million HKS Million HKS Million
BEBT AEBT BEBT BEET &k AEBT
Cost R
At Tst January, 2014 RZZ—NE—F—H 608.5 406.9 101.6 265.9 34.2 14171
Bxchange adjustments B - (43) (24) (14 - (8.1)
Additions K - 1057 39.4 238 47. 235.1
Transferred from investment BRATENE
properties (note 16) (WrzE18) - 19.6 - - - 19.6
Disposalsfwrite-off e /s - 29) (3.6) ©9.1) (2.1) (177)
At31st December, REF—4
2014 +-h=F-H 608.5 525.0 135.0 298.2 793 1,046.0
Exchange adjustments S - (15.1) (6.5) (3.5) - (25.1)
Additions B - 74.3 40.1 35.9 58 156.1
Transferred from investment R
properties (note 1) (Bit1) - 175 - - - 175
Transferred to investment properties  #4% f )% = 22.0) = = = (22,0
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREA - - (413) (1654) (.1) (209.9)
Disposalsfwrite-off e /s - - (7.7) 9.7) (27) 20.)
At 315t December, REZ—HAF
2015 +-R=1-H 608.5 579.7 119.6 155.5 793 1,542.6
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTER
impairment A
At st January, 2014 RoZ-WE—-A—H 2786 214 411 158.2 238 531
Bxchange adjustments B - 03) (14 (0.6) - (23)
Provided for the year AERR 6.6 116 284 36.5 7. 93
Impairment loss reversed BB EER (10.5) = = = = (10.5)
Eliminated on disposalsfwrite-off Y& /S = (2.9 3.2) (7.8) 2.0) (15.9)
At31st December, REZ—4
2014 +Zp=F-H 274.7 29.8 64.9 186.3 29.0 584.7
Exchange adjustments S - 09 (3.8) (1.6) 01 (6.
Provided for the year AL 6.9 158 300 286 74 88.7
Impairment loss reversed IR (17.0) - - - - (17.0)
Transferred to investment properties B ZHEHIE - (10.2) - - = (10.2)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries £} & /2 e = - (33.1) (144.9) (1.8) (179.8)
Eliminated on disposalsfwrite-off  fHyE /S = = (4.9) 8.3) (1.7) (14.9)
At31st December, REZ—H4
2015 +Zh=F-H 264.6 345 53.1 60.1 33.0 4453
Cartying amounts KAl
At 31st December, REZE—T4
2015 +-R=1-H 343.9 545.2 66.5 95.4 463 1,097.3
At 315t December, REZ—WiE
2014 TZR=1-H 333.8 495.2 70.1 1119 503 10613
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

19.

20.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

The carrying amounts of hotel property and leasehold land
and buildings shown above comprise:

iR paES
TN W3k

Properties in Hong Kong
Properties outside Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, hotel property with
carrying value of HK$nil (2014: HK$333.8 million) and
leasehold land and buildings with carrying value of
HK$22.2 million (2014: Nil) were pledged as security of

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

19. Y15 ~ BB R&fE (&)

3 T 3 R R A R T

45

2015 2014

—B-RFE < F

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT HE T

572.2 577.7

316.9 251.3

889.1 829.0

AR AR - ASKE B SR AT S H A £ K
PR T (E A oo (& — U4 : 333.8
HEWIT) WS ERIRE(EA22.2H
BT (T —IU4E - ) Z A0S A b A8

the Group’s bank and other borrowings. T o
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 20. FEAME
The Group's prepaid land lease payments comprise: AR B FEAAE (45
2015 2014
—Z-a1fF e Sgitfe2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT A E T
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong FUWIRIPZHE T3 4.7 9.6
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FEWMERITEZ T
Non-current assets T i ) 4.6 9.3
Current assets ) EE 0.1 0.3
4.7 9.6
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

21. GOODWILL

Cost

At Tst January, 2014,
31st December, 2014 and
31st December, 2015

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost FiA

At st January, 2014 REZ—WE—H—H
Exchange adjustments Bt

Additions K

Disposalsfwrite-off i /it

At 31st December, 2014 R=E—NE+ZA=+—H
Exchange adjustments 3L

Additions K

Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AT

At 315t December, 2015 REZ-TE+ZA=F—H

Accumulated amortisationand 23R

impairment AE
At Tst January, 2014 REF—F—A—H
Amortisation charged for the year 47 EL 41 2 B8
Impairment loss HlEER
Eliminated on disposalshwrite-off i /iéiEs i
At 31st December, 2014 BEF-WéE+ZA=1—H
Amortisation charged for the year A4 Bk 2 #4
Eliminated on disposal of i R A L

subsidiaries Eaf
At 31st December, 2015 REZ-RE+-A=1—H
Carrying amounts RAEE
At 31st December, 2015 REF-REFZA=1—H
At 31st December, 2014 RZF—EFZA=+—H

BE_Z—FET_H=1—HILERE

21.

mE

HK$ Million
A E#IT
B
H_F—HE—A—H >
R -ET A=A R
—E R H = —H 2,488.9
22. BVEE
Computer software Exchange
EREH participation
Internally rights Customer Web- Club
Acquired  developed Raf Trademark relationship ~ domain memberships Total
BA AEmE SHE #E EFBR B8 EFeR #it
HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Million HKS Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HKS Million  HKS Million
Bibr  Albc mEEr Al ARk A&l Al msEx
1250 97.0 23 875.0 1,154.0 78.0 8.8 2,340.1
0.1) - - - - - - (0.1)
18.4 16,5 = = = = = 349
(3.3) (11.6) = = - - - (14.9)
140.0 101.9 23 875.0 1,154.0 78.0 8.8 2,360.0
04 - - - - - - (04)
1.4 6.6 = = = = = 6.0
(128.2) (108.5) 2.3) = = = 2.8) (241.8)
12.8 = = 875.0 1,154.0 78.0 6.0 2125.8
91.2 349 1.0 7.0 1,154.0 61.3 1.1 1,350.5
9.8 17.2 = = = 63 = 333
0.4 = = = = = = 04
(2.4) (8.4) = = = = = (10.8)
99.0 437 1.0 7.0 1,154.0 67.6 1.1 1,373.4
41 7.8 - - - 6.3 - 182
(101.5) (51.5) (1.0 = = = 0.2) (1542)
1.6 - - 7.0 1,154.0 73.9 09 1,237.4
112 - - 868.0 = 41 5.1 888.4
41.0 58.2 1.3 868.0 = 104 7.7 986.6
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’D)

23.

Other than the club memberships, exchange participation
rights and trade mark, which have indefinite useful lives,
the intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the following periods:

Acquired computer software 3-5 years
Internally developed computer software 5-10 years
Customer relationship 5.4 years
Web domain 10 years

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES

For impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives at 31st December, 2015 were

allocated to the following cash generating units.

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

202

23.

BILEER)

PRer BT eErel ~ 55 i 2 SR I i AR 40 (] S
FEFAEHSL T S T S ] % AR

EYNEH i Tgs 3% 54E
A1 50 B 2 S R A 5% 104F
% F iR 5.44F
A4k 104F
BHEREEEEAFHNEREEZ

BRI

MIETHEN > R-F - HF+ A
= F R L ] o A Y ST
GRS AN B g A R B o

Goodwill Trade Mark
[5ES [5g:
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF — T4 —E-AF — YL
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A EBIT BHEBT HEBIT
Consumer finance FLN 435 —
segment — UAF 5 Y A S 2,384.0 2,384.0 868.0 868.0
Investment and finance P e 4 o —
segment — SHK IR 104.9 104.9 - -
2,488.9 2,488.9 868.0 868.0
A A}LLEDﬁPgPE%rIEt? ()H.%.) ;.R!M/geg Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

23. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND

INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES (CONT’D)

The recoverable amount of UAF which is included in
the consumer finance segment, a cash-generating unit,
represents the value in use at 31st December, 2015 based
on a business valuation report on the UAF group prepared
by an independent qualified professional valuer, Norton
Appraisals Limited. The valuation used the discounted cash
flow approach and is based on a five-year performance
projection and certain key assumptions (updated with
latest market data) including an average growth rate of
20.7% from 2016 to 2020 (2014: 24.4% from 2015 to
2019), a sustainable growth rate of 2.8% beyond 2020
(2014: 2.9% beyond 2019), and a discount rate of 13.7%
(2014: 16.2%). The recoverable amount of UAF was
determined to be in excess of its net carrying amount.

The recoverable amount of SHK which is included in the
investment and finance segment has been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation
uses cash flow projection based on the financial budget
approved by SHK management covering a 1-year period
for both years at a discount rate of 11% (2014: 11%). The
recoverable amount was determined to be in excess of its
net carrying amount.

Management believes that possible changes in any of the
above assumptions would not cause the carrying amounts
to exceed their recoverable amounts.

BE_F—RHEF _H=1T—HIERE
23. BENEEEERAEHNERLEEZ

RE R (]

AR N 154358 2 B 4 e 2R B 07 5E Y
Bha S RO AT i (8] e AH AR R A4
+ o H=+—H 2 AMEE > TR
B M BB L R I PR A A PR
A S YN T B TS T SE S A (B 5 T e
FE o fHEME AT EBE SR > AR
FLAE A TE N DL R 25 T AR, (AT
WG HERE ) > A T NERE T
BT Z PR R20.7% (—F—
G DB AR E—NENTRE
A A%) B T FTARAR ) O] R R
2 8% ( FE—IUE : “F—IEHRE
2.9%) > MIFBFRE13.7% ( FE—PU4
16.2%) o 58P Bh-A BT 19 R i e 4 50 45
i 7 2y A A FLHR AT U -

FEASCE K i B8 2 Bk 2 m] i (]
R A EEREE - R EFEER - 58
A5 P 5 A ks A L Ak vhE 2 — 4 30 A 5
HRAMFEHZBHERBEN > FHE11%
(ZF—PU4E : 11%) o 15t Z AT i e 50
KR TR Jry 0 LM T T (EH o

EHLREALE o AT RS A] A B
53 A fok AR TR 0 L AT i [] S o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Listed securities (Note (i))
Unlisted shares (Note (ii))

Note (i):
Listed securities
Cost of investment
Share of post-acquisition reserves

Less: impairment

Fair value of listed securities,
at quoted price

HWE

24, REEE DT 2R

b S (GERR(G))
#tﬁ&%a%

LA G)
it
BeE A
HE S e G
W

J:ﬁ A #/\q:'fmﬁ ’
He

Management has reviewed the shortfall between the carrying amount of
a Hong Kong listed associate and the fair value of the associate at the end
of the reporting period. The management considers that the value in use
based on discounted future cash flows of the associate is higher than the
carrying amount and the fair value of the associate, hence, no impairment

needs to be recognised.

—hE+ " HA=1+—H I EE

2015 2014
—B-RF T g
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HEHIT
7,788.5 6,928.6
1,232.4 41.8
9,020.9 6,970.4
2015 2014
—E-—AEF TR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT HE I
3,441.2 3,441.2
4,356.1 3,513.2

(8.8) (25.8)

7,788.5 6,928.6
3,316.1 3,638.8
5 ] — T A 7 v T A ) ) R o B

fv’\i&iﬁﬁﬂiﬂ’ﬂ\¥ﬁﬁ2f‘ﬁﬂ/}%"ﬁ R o &
HEW ’A7&4&@%*%5@%mﬁ%@ﬁ’ﬂéﬁ)ﬂf‘ﬁf&ﬂé’
BT 2 WRIE R AP EE A o Bk SRS

{Eo
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BEE-NFETA=Z+—HILFEE
24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D) 24. NEtE AR 2w (E)
2015 2014
BT — A
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEER ()= 5TH
Note (ji): BaAOE
Unlisted shares FE b7 Ay
Cost of investment B A 1,751.6 24.0
Share of post-acquisition reserves JREA s S e 20.2 18.5
1,771.8 425
Less: impairment W BUE (539.4) (0.7)
1,232.4 41.8
Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st AEFMP _F—HFE+_A=T—HzE
December, 2015 are set out in note 55. B N T R R B EESS o
Summarised consolidated financial information of BEABE N R 2GRS EE R
material associates ‘
The summarised consolidated financial information of the ALE (B R N i%*fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/z}
Group’s material associates, Tian An China Investments B ([ R% ) Kok 4 Ml e B 2 556 B s
Company Limited (“TACI”) and SHKFGL, is set out below. R B G AR 3L o
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2015
BEwE(FE)FRAA — E — | 4 E R



for the year ended 31st December, 2015

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of
material associates (Cont’d)
(i) TACI ()
The summarised consolidated financial information
below represents amounts shown in TACI's
consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs. The results, assets and
liabilities of TACI are accounted for using the equity

HE-%

—hETH=+—HIF&EE
24, REEE QT 2R (E)
BEARBE DT 2 FE MK ERMM(E)

K%

T2 &AM TR BRI R %
H A7 T B R (AR 8 A i S S
KRR H2I| 2 B8 o REZ K
B EE KBTI RE R R AR
B R AR GEE) -

method in these consolidated financial statements

(Note).

Current assets B

Non-current assets i )

Current liabilities ) B

Non-current liabilities FRE AR

Revenue from continuing operations 3¢ [ fF AL EH 2 A

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o B R R 2 Wi e

Profit for the year from continuing e FESEET
operations A Vi )

Profit for the year from discontinued 2§ B4 IE & 3K 2
operations A J3E Vi A

Other comprehensive (expenses) AR BE HoAth 22 ThT (21
income for the year W ds

Total comprehensive income for the 74 2 H i 3
year Fik ]

Dividends received from TACI AR FEWORR % 1Y
during the year &5

2015 2014
—B-RF T4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HEHIT
13,020.2 10,388.5
18,540.9 18,143.1
(9,250.3) (7,858.0)
(5,156.5) (5,195.8)
2015 2014
—B-RF T WEg
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HEHIT
1,029.4 1,031.8
3,012.8 1,229.5
2,595.5 1,135.7
- 120.7
(758.4) 194.2
1,837.1 1,450.6
73.3 47.7
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

24.

A

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

_E 7
24, RBE N T 2= (])

—hE+ " HA=1+—H I EE

Summarised consolidated financial information of BABL AT LS E R (F)
material associates (Cont’d)
(i) TACI (Cont’d) (i) KE(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated il 4 A A A A T B e A BA TR R
financial information to the carrying amount of 2 vp T RSN T2 W 25 2 T T (B 2 3
the interest in TACI recognised in the consolidated BE
financial statements:
2015 2014
— —F 4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT T E#HETT
Net assets attributable to the owners — KZ I HENG
of TACI HEFE 17,138.3 15,445.2
Proportion of the Group’s ownership — AL H]jA K% 2
interest in TACI A HEE & L 1 48.66% 48.66%
Share of net assets of TACI JREAG K 2 7 VR E 8,339.5 7,515.6
Goodwill [l 1.8 1.8
Adjustment on acquisition of AW R 2R A
additional interest in TACI FE 25 T (614.0) (614.0)
Unrealised profit adjustments RS VS A o (20.7) (20.7)
Carrying amount of the Group’s AR REZZ
interest in TACI WE 25 2 BRI (EL 7,706.6 6,882.7
Note: The Group’s 48.66% interest in TACI gives the Group 48.66% FEMR AR R Z 48.66% HE I T AN 4R

of the voting rights in TACI. As at 31st December, 2015,
the board composition of TACI comprised five executive
directors, three non-executive directors and four independent
non-executive directors, totalling twelve directors. Of
these directors, a non-executive director of TACI is also an
executive director of each of AGL and the Company, and an
executive director of TACI is also an executive director of
AGL. China Elite Holdings Limited (“China Elite”, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company that held the 48.66%
interest in TACI) has resolved that whilst the Company’s direct
or indirect shareholding in TACI is less than 50%, China Elite
will not, without prior public notice required under applicable
legislation, exercise its power as a shareholder of TACI to seek
to appoint another director to the board of directors of TACI
who is or has within the previous twelve months been an
employee or a director of China Elite, its holding company or
any subsidiary of its holding companies.

The Group has considered whether TACI is a subsidiary
when preparing its consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31st December, 2015 in view of the provisions
of HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and has
concluded that it does not have unilateral ability to direct
the relevant activities of TACI based on the above facts and
circumstances, and accordingly, the Group continues to
account for its interest in TACI as an associate.

The principal activities of TACI are property investment and
development in the PRC and are strategic to the Group’s
activities.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H. %) LIMITED

BAwE (FR

R 2~ A

H A K % 2 48.66% B fE o A &
—HE+TH=+—H > REEREH
HAMITES - =4 ERTER XU
WL TER AT A E R -
TEZEEREE P B REFAITE
N 5 A A T S AR A W A E AT
HH S MRE—BRUTEHREH A
SEMABATE S - China Elite Holdings
Limited ([ China Elite] » 43\ & 4 & Mt
JEA T > R R Z 48.66%ME D) i
P> BN T A R B 1 B B A R A
HEDIA50% > HilChina ElitefE RARIER
FREBIAI G A AT A GRS
RERHRIINET] » FoRBAT T —ZEH
AR ZHES G > % E e+
{1 H &4 k0 48454 China Elite ~ H%E
JBe N ) A% B WATART a8 2 w0 0 0
Bok#H -

AR AR WA E = - HFE+ A
= — IR 2 AR S BB R R AR
A5 7 Vi A5 i A R HIV 2R 1 0 R BA S
TR | 2 MR35 8 R 22 1 o B
Al o MR RS R B > R R
A7 B8 77 1] 2 BE ) AT 45 7R K2 1 AH B i
B R > AR BRI K% 2 M
A R A TSR

RFZ 2 LR ZEBEE i R h AT 3
B B EE - BIAE B AT SR R
2,
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of

material associates (Cont’d)

(i) SHKFGL
On 2nd June, 2015, the Group disposed of 70%
interest in SHKFGL and classified the remaining 30%
as an associate. Details of the disposal are disclosed
in note 15.

SHKFGL is accounted for using the equity method.
The summarised consolidated financial information
of the financial performance for the year and financial
position at the reporting date represents the amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements of
SHKFGL adjusted by fair value adjustments made at
the time of reclassifying SHKFGL from a subsidiary to
an associate.

HE-%

—HE+ZA=+—HILEE

24, REEE QT 2R (E)

EABERNRAZEEVHRER R (F)

(i)

R VBIE [ 5E [5]

MR E—FAEANH T H > AREFENE
BB IL A AR [ 70% R > MSRR T
30% 5 BVE— M & A F R R o
HIA 2 GG R 54

TG < A O PR SR A AR - &3
o BB ORI 22 475 1 T A < il
A5 B A5G T HR T Y a4 B R B
Lt ¥t B2 BAB5HIRTL - Sl 4 i
BRI 0 KR 2 < 4 ) e R %
W E N RN TR 2 P E(E R -

163

2015

—ZE-0F

HK$ Million

BHEBAET

Current assets ) 6,036.4

Non-current assets it ) 879.7

Current liabilities i A & (2,258.0)

Non-current liabilities T B B (1,221.6)

Revenue e A 1,248.3

Profit from continuing PNEESFFSE- e

operations Z i ) 120.9
Post-tax profit from discontinued KECKILREER L

operations PR A% v Al 92.5

Other comprehensive expenses FHoAth 4 i 2 ) (2.4)

Total comprehensive income 2 T WA 4 AR AH 211.0

Annual Report 2015
—® R



164

for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BEE-NFETA=Z+—HILFEE
24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D) 24. RE QT 2w (F)
Summarised consolidated financial information of BABL AT LS E R (F)
material associates (Cont’d)
(ii) SHKFGL (Cont'd) (ii)  HriaAE 5 ] (4E)
The reconciliation of the above summarised financial e EA S A T L A T S 4 Rl 4
information to the carrying amount of the interest in > M IR BHEM T
SHKFGL is as follows:
2015
—E-afF
HK$ Million
BEET
Adjusted net assets of SHKFGL T IOR E <5  £ T  A E HE 3,436.5
Group’s effective interest AL 2 B A 30%
Group’s share of adjusted net assets 7 A [ A\ A R e VR 1,031.0
Goodwill A 607.7
Impairment (note 13) WA (F5E13) (538.7)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in A A [ A A A R A [

SHKFGL A o M T 1,100.0
Aggregate financial information of associates that are not BERTBEAZHE NN BERZE
individually material
The aggregate financial information of associates that are BB A B R 2 WA N T Y B G R 4
not individually material is set out below. A

2015 2014
—E-HF e Siitfe2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A #ETT
The Group’s share of profit (loss) 7 [ A AR 4F
for the year i F) (518) 30.6 (16.9)
The Group’s share of other A L [ R A AR 4 i
comprehensive (expenses) income HoAth 2w (2 )
for the year Wit 4.4) 22
The Group's share of total 7S 55 [ B A A 4
comprehensive income (expenses) 2T A ()
for the year AEE 26.2 (14.7)
Aggregate carrying amount of the ASEE A E A AT Z
Group's interests in these associates 45 2 B T AR 214.3 87.7
The Group has unrecognised share of losses of associates as ARSI 2 R AR EAG BB~ Rl R AT
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF e Siitfe2
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT A H##ETT
The unrecognised share of losses AF TR R e R A
for the year JE518 (0.4) (0.5)
Cumulative share of unrecognised losses 25 REAL A fERRE1H (25.2) (24.8)
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED Annua | epont 201
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BEF—HET_H=T—HILFE
25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. REEDQF ZER
2015 2014
—g-FE TN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A EE T
Unlisted shares e b ey
Cost of investment P& RA 154.3 155.3
Share of post-acquisition reserves JPRE AL o i 1% ft 2,035.5 1,910.0
Less: impairment W WiE - (2.3)
2,189.8 2,063.0
Elimination of unrealised profit U oA 52 B i ) (33.5) (17.6)
2,156.3 2,045.4
Particulars of the Group’s principal joint venture at 31st AEER_F-HE+-_A=+—HZE
December, 2015 are set out in note 56. L /N == A I A R
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1) LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of
material joint venture

The summarised consolidated financial information in
respect of the Group’s material joint venture, Allied
Kajima Limited (“AKL”), is set out below. The summarised
consolidated financial information represents amount
shown in AKL’s consolidated financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The results, assets

WE - FE—HE+_HA=1+—HILFEF
25. REE QAT 2D (E)

EXREGERRAZEEMBERL

A 4R O A 8 2 Al Allied Kajima
Limited ([ AKL J) 947 & A5 ORI 27
T o GEA IS E R AR AKLIY 45
B IR (R s B 75 15 M HI A )
R SR o AKLZ 88 - B LA
Tofl R SR R A A 47 B A R P AR o

and liabilities of AKL are accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

Current assets B
Non-current assets i )
Current liabilities i B=
Non-current liabilities B AR
The above amounts of these assets P HORERE LT
include the following: HH :
Cash and cash equivalents Bl K& EEY)
Revenue A
Profit for the year AR B Vi A
Other comprehensive expenses AR HAth 2 T
for the year #H
Total comprehensive income ASAE B A T AR
for the year K
The above profit for the year includes —_F %l A 45 3 345 F1] 1 4%
the following: T
Depreciation Ires
Interest income FE WA
Interest expenses F BB
Taxation i1

2015 2014
—B-RF T4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT HE I
365.5 578.5
4,495.8 3,778.5
(324.7) (299.6)
(573.3) (329.1)
292.2 335.8
2015 2014

e e
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HE I
697.2 712.3
237.4 277.7

2.4) (2.0)

235.0 275.7

60.2 61.6

1.2 1.5

9.9 8.7

28.8 31.6
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D)

Summarised consolidated financial information of
material joint venture (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of the above summarised consolidated
financial information to the carrying amount of the interest
in AKL recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Net assets of AKL AKLZ & #E

BE-F—HFE+—H=1+—HI14FE
25. REE QAT 2R (E)

BERGE QA ZREUHE R ()
At f o IS ORI B SRR A I B ok
7]

ki
P R AKLAE £ < SR THI (B2 AR

Proportion of the Group’s ownership A4 [l A AKL 2 #EA HERE i

interest in AKL LE 15
Share of net assets of AKL JEAG AKL ¥ 28 1+
Goodwill R
Unrealised profit adjustments oK B B i ) o B
Carrying amount of the Group's AR AKLIE SR 2
interest in AKL i T B

Aggregate financial information of joint ventures that are
not individually material
The aggregate financial information of joint ventures that

2015 2014
—E-—FEF R 4R
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H 8 TT
3,963.3 3,728.3
50% 50%
1,981.6 1,864.1
0.1 0.1

(33.5) (17.6)

1,948.2 1,846.6

ERTBEAZAERANNBERAE
AL A B E R 2 N R B S R A

are not individually material is set out below. ;I -
2015 2014
—E-hHF U
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HEHE T
The Group's share of profit for the year — 2<$5 ] fik A< 4F 5 35 A1l 38.4 33.0
The Group’s share of other A AL [ EAL AR A i
comprehensive income (expenses) JHAt 2 T i 2
for the year (&) 2.5 (38.6)
The Group’s share of total A A2 1B A AR 41 i
comprehensive income (expenses) TR (2 )
for the year K% 40.9 (5.6)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following tables provide an analysis of financial
assets and liabilities of the Group that are measured at

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

26. TREERER

7B T < P e A AR PR AS BRI R
BRI AR L - EER R > Hay

cost less impairment and at fair value subsequent to initial Hr i 3% o
recognition.
2015
—E-1f
Fair value
DMVEE Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  impairment Total
F-2 ] E=R BANKRAEE At
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET HBEER  AEEn  HEBR  BHEER
Available-for-sale financial assets Tt HESRHEE
Equity securities listed in B iz Bk
Hong Kong i 48.9 - - - 48.9
Unlisted overseas equity I E i ANEA
securities ey - - 39.7 16.2 55.9
Analysed for reporting purposes £ 2 H 1947 £
as non-current assets B EE 48.9 - 39.7 16.2 104.8
Financial assets at fair value EBRERENVEER
through profit or loss EEZEMEE
Held for trading investments FEHTE
Equity securities listed in EREANITPA S
Hong Kong fiigss 382.5 - - - 382.5
Equity securities listed FLSMOE iz
outside Hong Kong WA 5 242.4 - - - 242.4
Exchange-traded funds listed Bk bWz R
in Hong Kong BHE 88.0 - - - 88.0
Over the counter equity SisMBA A
derivatives TH - - 0.7 - 0.7
Over the counter currency GoME WA
derivatives TH - - 0.1 - 0.1
Forward currency contract EHEH A - - 6.3 - 6.3
Options listed outside FBLSMEE iz
Hong Kong e 3.6 _ _ _ 3.6
Unlisted overseas options LT MHE - - 0.4 - 0.4
Unlisted put right for shares F i i) VYN
in an associate Gli<rrsn - - 707.0 - 707.0
Unlisted call option for FEWZ B EER
club memberships i - - 9.3 - 9.3
Unlisted call option for s LAS e b i
shares listed outside fef 2 I i
Hong Kong AR N - - 25.9 - 25.9
Certificates for difference EEEE 88.1 - - - 88.1
Unlisted bonds issued by EinmEGZEL
listed companies &S - 359.6 - - 359.6
Listed bonds issued by FiAFEfTZ ki
listed companies (it - 488.4 - - 488.4
804.6 848.0 749.7 - 2,402.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Cont'd)
Investments designated as at fair
value through profit or loss
Unlisted convertible preferred
shares issued by an unlisted
company
Unlisted convertible bonds
issued by an unlisted
company
Unlisted overseas investment
funds

Analysed for reporting
purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Held for trading
Futures and options listed in
Hong Kong
Unlisted overseas options
Over the counter equity
derivatives
Over the counter currency
derivatives
Stock borrowings
Certificates for difference

Analysed for reporting purposes
as current liabilities

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
26. TREEREREE)

2015
—E-E
Fair value
DNEEE Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
F—R ot F={/ HEAMREE wst
HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAT HEBT HEAET HERT HEET
ERBRREDATEER
REZEREE(H)
BE HB R IRY
NHEERE 7S
— [ LA R T
b ANiE e
5 - - 267.8 - 267.8
— M LA R T
b ANk ¥
e - - 778.9 - 778.9
F LML E
e - - 2,286.8 - 2,286.8
- - 3,333.5 - 3,333.5
804.6 848.0 4,083.2 - 5,735.8
BEWEMTEZ
o
T G 3,484.6
MG E 2,251.2
5,735.8
EBRERRRATEER
REZERER
FHER G &
Hil Lz &
rdiif 2.0 - - - 2.0
3 Lo R - - 1.9 - 1.9
GAMEAAT A
TH - - 22.5 - 22.5
b TIN L e
Ik - - 0.9 - 0.9
NS - 120.1 - - 120.1
FlEEE 30.5 - - - 30.5
B 2w E R A
T IRER 32.5 120.1 25.3 - 177.9
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

BE_Z—FE+T-A=+—HILEE
26. TREEREE(E)

2014
“F-IE
Fair value
AT Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
F—H FM F=B RAMBREE st
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BT HHET HHEET AEET AHBET
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ At HESREE
Equity securities listed in il L fjAk
Hong Kong i 131 - - - 131.8
Unlisted Hong Kong equity securities JF - i & i A 4 - - - 04 0.4
Unlisted overseas equity securities 3t il oA % - - 35.5 52.6 88.1
Unlisted overseas investment funds 3 EiiisME RS - - 12.3 - 12.3
Analysed for reporting purposes AEHE R A
as non-current assets FRBEE 131.8 - 47.8 53.0 232.6
Financial assets at fair value through EBERERAFEER
profit o loss BereMEE
Held for trading investments FRER T E
Equity securities listed in (S ANIPAZS
Hong Kong Fieis 341.2 - - - 341.2
Equity securities listed FLISMbIE b iz
outside Hong Kong A5 72.8 - - - 72.8
Exchange-traded funds listed Frils Ll 2 5
in Hong Kong BELS 68.8 - - - 68.8
Unlisted bonds issued by FiARETZ
listed companies i - 25 - - 25
Listed bonds issued by listed FHARETZ
companies FiES - 181.4 - - 181.4
482.8 183.9 - - 666.7
Investments designated as at fair fh7E BBR R R AT
value through profit or loss BElmEE i
Unlisted convertible preferred —[HFE LA R BT
shares issued by an unlisted & BT
company IR - - 39.5 - 39.5
Unlisted overseas investment I LM E
funds B = = 831.5 - 831.5
- - 871.0 - 871.0
482.8 183.9 871.0 - 1,537.7
Analysed for reporting purposes as: £ 28t H A FIF{ 2 447 -
Non-current assets FRBEE 603.5
Current assets ME G 934.2
1,537.7
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Held for trading
Over the counter equity
derivatives
Over the counter currency
derivatives

Analysed for reporting purposes
as current liabilities

ERREREAVEER
B eRMaf
FHER 5 g
SR AR
IR
SRR
IR

RHEBRER TS
BRI

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
26. TREEREREE)

2014
—“F—f
Fair value
NTEE Cost less
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 impairment Total
R £ B BAMBR B Mt
HKS$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million

AT

H T AT HEET AT

- - 48.5 - 48.5
= 0.3 17.8 = 18.1
- 0.3 066.3 - 066.6
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Available-for-sale financial assets are intended to be
held for a continuing strategic or long-term purpose. As
there are no sufficient market comparables as input to
measure the fair value reliably, some of the unlisted equity
investments are measured at cost less impairment.

On the basis of its analysis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the equity securities, the Group has determined
that presenting them by nature and type of issuers is
appropriate.

Fair values are grouped from level 1 to 3 based on the
degree to which the fair values are observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
input other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include input for the assets or
liabilities that are not based on observable market data.

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during both
years.

The fair value of bonds under level 2 at the reporting date
were derived from quoted prices from pricing services.
The fair value of stock borrowings under level 2 at the
reporting date were derived from observable market prices
of the underlying securities to be converted.

The fair value of level 3 financial assets and liabilities are
mainly derived from an unobservable range of data. In
estimating the fair value of a financial asset or a financial
liability under level 3, the Group engages external valuers
or establishes appropriate valuation techniques internally
to perform the valuation which are reviewed by the
relevant management of the group companies.

BE_F-AF T A=t —HIEFE
26. TREEREREE)

] B < AR AR R
R o ph A 0 488 2 500 T 3 T LR
] SE R AP R E A g A By > SEeedE B
A1 E AT BR I (E R & -

BN IA R I ZNEE ~ R SRR A
A5 [ 7 LB AT AR RO 25 B
. o

AT TG A — =4 -

S — B P A R R AR R A B R
PTG i T 3 Y A (SR ) AR o

B4 > WU B A A AT (RIME RS ) 2]

B AN TR S B TR — S A 2 4
132 (B TR A ) LB A BB 15 o o

=R TEE RN R YR AL IR AR SR AT 8
G BIE 2 EE A M A ETT A
$ o

[ER(ERE S AN e L St Pl L 7
Lt

S HH - B M R AN PEE
JHe S AR RS e 2 ABRG o i A BCEE IS
ot B IRESE — Sat B 2 )Y 5
T g 2 F B R o 2 BB T G (E AR 1S
$ o

B EMEE AR A HEEEZ
A LB 2 AR RS ETE o fEfliat
B e ERESEmA R A PEE
[R5 o AR A [ 22 0 S Ao (il A0 78R 8 S
B ZAGETT IR LUEATAG(E - R EE S
F 2 AH B B B o
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BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 26. TRAEEREBE(E)

for the year ended 31st December, 2015

T RRUA B =R E R M E (A H)
2 E— LR -

The following table provides further information regarding
the valuation of material financial assets (liabilities) under

level 3.
2015
—E-1fF
Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs Input values Fair value
fhERf  FURRRABE BABBE AVEE
HK$ Million
BEET
Available-for-sale financial assets
IRHESHER
Unlisted overseas equity Discounted cash flow ~ Weighted average 5.0% 39.7
securities FHBER cost of capital
 Eng MR AR S il SREl NN
Average annual  HK$54.3 million
dividend pay-out 543 F BT
BETHRERS
Held for trading investments
BERSRE
Unlisted put right for shares in an associate Option model Volatility 66.5% 707.0
AN P il -Gl T R B
Risk free rate 0.6%
EREAR
Equity growth rate 3.1%
e R %
Unlisted call option for shares listed outside Option model Volatility 63.1% 25.9
Hong Kong MR R
LM B2 b ETirsl i Risk free rate 0.002%
e
Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss
EERERREREAVEERE ERMEE
Unlisted convertible preferred shares issued Discounted cash flow  Contractual price of ~ HK$267.8 million 267.8
by an unlisted company FHBER  animpending sale 267.87 EWETT
R E ANV pa AWEE T P B2 5 2 5 A B
Unlisted convertible bonds issued Market comparable ~ Recent transaction N/A 778.9
by an unlisted company approach price A
ANV E: Gra AW e i85 gk Bl 2 2k
Unlisted overseas investment funds Net asset value* N/A N/A 2,286.8
BN SR e B i N i N i
Financial liabilities held for trading
BERGABZERMAE
Over the counter equity derivatives Price quoted by N/A N/A (22.5)
BAMEATTE TR counter parties il y il
Y OE RN U
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

BE_F-AF T A=t —HIEFE
26. TREEREREE)

2014
—F—E
Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs Input values Fair value
fHEHAT AT AR AR NFEE
HK$ Million
HE#T
Available-for-sale financial assets
HHESREE
Unlisted overseas equity securities Discounted cash flow Weighted average 5.0% 35.5
I L IMEAE S Eipie R cost of capital
JIHEF-R B A A
Average annual  HK$43.8 million
dividend pay-out  43.8F T
BAETIIREIE
Unlisted overseas investment funds Net asset value* N/A N/A 123
LT R B T AN AN
Financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss
EEARBRRREATEEEEZEREE
Unlisted convertible preferred shares issued by~ Market comparable Price to sales 22.6 times 39.5
an unlisted company approach AR 22.6f%
— 7 AR E T2 b TR Mg EE  liquidity discount 50%
AREH
Unlisted overseas investment funds Net asset value* N/A N/A 831.5
F LT RS B T AN AN
Financial liabilities held for trading
REXZREZERAE
Over the counter equity derivatives Price quoted by N/A N/A (48.5)
MR ARTE TR counter parties YNl YNl
YR ERIE L
Over the counter currency derivatives Price quoted by N/A N/A (17.8)
MR TR counter parties Nl AH
TR ER
& The Group has determined that the reported net asset values * AL E - o B EHE AR IR TSN

represent fair value of the unlisted overseas investment funds.

The management believes that possible changes in the
input values would not cause significant change in fair

value of the financial assets and liabilities under level 3.

H 2 NFEE

EHLREAE o AR S B A E
=M E A AR A HEEE R

KT -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 26. TRAEEREBE(E)

The reconciliation of financial assets and liabilities under BEMATEERE T 2 elEE kAR
level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: HRWAT -
2015
“R-if
Recognised gains or losses
Balance at BERUEAER Balance at Unrealised
1t January Other 31st December ~profit or loss
i comprehensive R fortheyear
-B-B  Profitorloss income Purchase Disposal tZA=1-H R
PA5 BE AtRENE BE & JEh RERER
HKS Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion ~ HK§ Million ~ HKSMillion ~ HKSMillion  HKS$ Million
L EL AE#T BEdT (L L AE#T
Available-for-sale financial assets W HESFERE
Unlisted overseas equity securities 3k EifpsMi AR 3.5 - 42 - - 397 -
Unlisted overseas investment funds % ETifisbé A4 123 - 09) - (115) - -
Held for trading investments BER5RE
Over the counter equity derivatives — SAMRATE LA - 07 - - - 07 07
Over the counter currency derivatives  JAMETRTE T2 - 0.1 - - - 0.1 0.1
Forward currency contract ElEhas - 63 - - - 6.3 03
Unlisted overseas options K Lt - 04 - - - 04 04
Unlisted put right fo shares in AN AL
an associate R | - 5960 - 11 - 7070 5960
Unlisted call otion for club Lz efrek
memberships e - - - 93 - 93 -
Unlisted call option for shares lied i DLAMAIE L iRz
outside Hong Kong K Ed - 59 - - - 59 59
Investments designated as at ERARATRERE
fai value P2
Unlisted convertble preferred shares L i 4B oAt 395 205.2 - 81 - 267.8 205.2
Unlisted convertible bonds K LT - - - 7789 - 7789 -
Unlisted overseas investment funds ¥ E ARk 8315 1342 - 15609 (2394) 22868 80.2
Financial liabilities held for trading ~ HERZREZEBER
Unlisted overseas options K L - (19 - - - (19) (19
Over the counter equity derivatives ~ SEAMIEAf T (48.5) 260 - - - (225) 260
Over the counter curtency derivatives — JAMEHERA: T A (179 169 - - - 09) 169
ALLIED PROPERTIES (1) LIMITED Amme) Repers 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 26. TREEREEE)
2014
v 113
Recognised gains or losses

Balance at CHRiEdER Balance at Unrealised
TstJanuary Other 315t December ~profitorloss
i comprehensive B fortheyear
=f=R  Profitor loss income Purchase Disposal  +=A=+—FH L
L5 BE A R ik B AEEER

HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
FliT AT BT BT HEkT [i]. Yo [ 1o

Available-for-sale financial assets TlHESRERE

Unlisted overseas equity securities ~~ F i AM AR A 474 = (119 = - 355 -
Unlisted overseas investmentfunds £ L iisME A4 12, 70 2] - (69 123 -
Held for trading investments BER5RE

Over the counter equity derivatives — SAMRA T LA 14 (14) - - - - -
Unlisted overseas options ¥ LAt 0.1 0.1) - - - - -
Unlisted convertible honds K L b 34 76 - - (11.0 - -

Investments designated as at fairvalue 8 EBRATEERE . RE
Unlisted bonds issued by a Singapore #1851 i AR B 7

lsted company Lk L 455 (443) (1.0 - = - (#45)
Unlisted convertble preferred shares ¢ | ff A& ek - - - 395 - 395 -
Unlisted overseasinvestment funds % E AR B2 4660 96 - 4889 (2240) 813 97

Financial liabilities held for trading ~ BEXZBEZERER

Over the counter equity derivatives  BiMtA R LA (289) (19.) - - - (485)
Over the counter currency derivatives  SShEHEf: T2 - (I - - - (178)
Financial liablites designated ERARATRERE,
as at fair value SREE
Renminbi denominated asset-backed ~ ARHHELE
honds &% (42.9) 419 1.0 - - - 419
There was no transfer out or transfer in of level 3 in current I A i AL AREEL A B S = A o ANAE [H]
year. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and SR T | B 1) B B I A P
transfers out of level 3 as of the date of the event or change BN YN LS
in circumstances that caused the transfer.
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
Jﬂ\‘ BAME (BB ERD R S SO N
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_Z—HE T _A=1T—HILEE
26. TREEREE(E)

745 T < A R kO U R 2 B T (B A

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets at the

end of the reporting period were as follows: T ¢
2015 2014
—E-EE e SIS
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT H &S
Financial assets at fair value through BB A AR A P E R 2
profit or loss BREE
- Held for trading investments —BER G E 2,402.3 666.7
— Investments designated as at fair value — 48 € Sy B R 15 R T
through profit or loss EERM 2 FE 3,333.5 871.0
5,735.8 1,537.7
Loans and receivables under SRR IR B G 2 B K
non-current assets JREN R IA
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 K HoAth RN R IR
(note 30) (F5E30) 1,728.8 1,520.3
— Loans and advances to consumer finance ~ — FA A A& 5 Bk & #h a3k
customers (note 27) (FffzE27) 2,741.3 3,308.4
— Amounts due from associates (note 31) — W s A R GER (M 5E3 1) 64.9 64.7
Loans and receivables under current assets S8 /4 Vi 8 ' i 2 Ak M ME IR TE
— Bank deposits, cash and cash —SRITH > Bla Rk
equivalents (note 32) WA ZEEY) (Fft:E32) 7,890.2 5,385.3
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 K HoA E I K TE
(note 30) (Fi5E30) 2,138.5 7,749.1
— Loans and advances to consumer — RN BAT % 5 A0k e Bk
finance customers (note 27) (Bfr=E27) 6,080.7 8,083.3
— Amounts due from associates (note 31) — B N w KGR (B3 1) 171.3 116.0
— Amounts due from joint ventures S - UNEIUE
(note 31) (F$5E31) 9.2 9.9
20,824.9 26,237.0
Available-for-sale financial assets A 3t o 104.8 232.6
26,665.5 28,007.3
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial liabilities at
the end of reporting period were as follows:

BE_F-AF T A=t —HIEFE
26. TREEREREE)

75 45 ) 4 B AR i 0 R 22 R T
T

2015 2014
—EB-RfF —F 4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEAR EEAE
Financial liabilities measured at e A SR
amortised cost ERAfE
— Bank and other borrowings (note 38) — 84T S HAth B (B 5E38) 6,883.1 7,814.6
— Trade and other payables (note 33) — B 5 B AR SR (FRE33) 161.5 2,652.2
— Amount due to a holding company — R — A #E I w3k IE 5.7 6.2
— Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries — R [F) ZR B 2 R O - 5.2
— Amounts due to associates — RN ) K IE 5.5 5.4
— Amounts due to joint ventures — REB/INTIFHIE 0.1 75.1
— Notes (note 39) — 2548 (Fff5E39) 3,531.4 3,708.5
10,587.3 14,267.2
Financial liabilities at fair value through IR A R A EEE
profit or loss EEAE
— Held for trading —F e S g 177.9 66.6
10,765.2 14,333.8

At the reporting date, the Group had no financial assets
and financial liabilities that:

— are offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position; or

— are subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreements that covers similar
financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

Further details on financial risk management of financial
assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 42.

R B A E AR T 5
EMAE

—  ALEEAR S MR DR C AR
59

— TSR AT AR R A 5 D B
L4 T 2L KA (0L i sl AR PR > A
7 B AR S B 45 B 51K DL 3R AR 4R

S RVEE KA SRR s —
TR B EE42 -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS

Loans and advances to consumer
finance customers
Hong Kong
Mainland China

Less: impairment allowance

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

Movements of impairment allowance during the year were

as follows:

At 1st January

Exchange adjustments

Amounts written off

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Amounts recovered

At 31st December

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

27. BAMBEFERR BN

2015 2014
— e Sl UTES
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT H T
NG b7 - BN
PE T
T 6,839.9 7,081.6
HH B A b 2,932.3 5,066.7
I PR A (950.2) (756.6)
8,822.0 11,391.7
2 2 B T E 2 A
FE T & 2,741.3 3,308.4
B EE 6,080.7 8,083.3
8,822.0 11,391.7
SRR E R 2 BB AT
2015 2014
—E-—RF A
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT HEHEIT
H—H—H (756.6) (599.2)
FE b3 19.1 5.1
L A 1,363.7 738.9
AR o5 R 2 BUH (1,446.9) (787.2)
iz [|] K IE (129.5) (114.2)
wt+—H=+—H (950.2) (756.6)

For the collective impairment assessment, the management
of UAF has taken into consideration of the recent bad
debt written off information net of the recoveries for Hong
Kong and China loan portfolio balances at year end.
Based on historical loss experiences, the management of
UAF considers that the allowance sufficiently covered the
write off balances net of bad debt written back. During
the year, the management of UAF closely monitors any
changes in credit loss pattern and behavior of borrowers
and the overdue loan portfolio in view of the more volatile
economic environment in PRC during the year through
tightening the loan growth and the lending policy.

All the loans and advances bear interest at market interest
rates.

Al A A RAEL IR - S P 5 A 5 2 A L
TR B 25 T 31 A s S B B AL A 2 3
LT i e < SRR R o H A
ZARRAE S > 5N P 2 P R
J o WRAE AR 2 2 400 ToR 2 S R A R
FEIER o SN > SRR AP B AR IR DLAE 4F A
B ) o YN G B L A A W R
BRI R R B EOR  #U) B EEK
B B RNAT 2 Z AR TS L DL ROR

HALE o

P AR S BRI H T R
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

The loans and advances to consumer finance customers
have been reviewed by the Consumer Finance division
to assess impairment allowances which are based on the
evaluation of collectibility, aging analysis of accounts
and on management’s judgment, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection statistics of
individually significant accounts or a portfolio of accounts
on a collective basis.

The following is an aging analysis for the loans and
advances to consumer finance customers that were past
due at the end of the reporting period but not impaired:

Less than 31 days past due B3 H

31 to 60 days 31%260H

61 to 90 days 61%90H

91 to 180 days 91H £180H
Over 180 days 180H Lk E

The loans and advances to consumer finance customers
categorised as unsecured and secured, are as follows:

At the reporting date, loans and advances to consumer
finance customers consisted of HK$7,803.9 million
unsecured (2014: HK$10,015.6 million) and HK$1,018.1
million secured (2014: HK$1,376.1 million). The table
below summarises its credit quality (gross balances net of
impairment allowances):

Credit quality EEEX
Neither past due nor individually f7 28 301 A1
impaired WA

8L A1 (L

Past due or individually impaired

BE_F—RHEF _H=1T—HIERE
27. RABKEFERRBR(E)

FAN B 5 % 5 80 3K B sl o R N B 05 o
B > ST El PERTAG ~ BRES o AT L2 PR
B (CBLA R B R P BRI S AL
?%Hﬁ%%&i@&%&?ﬁ%@%) LARFA Bl (E
A o

DUTR £ 77 i 32K 2 21 39 (8 S el 2 AL
SR 2 5 B e B Z Betie  A

2015 2014
—E-RF —E P4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEABT EX- o
571.2 805.2
147.0 278.3

124.7 101.6
397.6 232.8

103.5 36.9
1,344.0 1,454.8

FANBA 5 % 5 83K I BRIy SR 2 A
A > 250

S S =l R NG b - A Bk v O E T G )
FH LI 3K 7,803.9 1 BT (=& —Y
4 1 10,015.6 | B ) KA K A K
1,018.1 A kT (—F—VU4E : 1,376.1H
B IE) o N MR HAR B R (AR
JE R )

2015 2014
—E-fF ZE—Y4E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT H #HIT
7,420.9 9,936.9
1,401.1 1,454.8
8,822.0 11,391.7
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BE-F—HFE+—H=1+—HI14FE
27. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CONSUMER 27. AABEEEEBZ R (E)

for the year ended 31st December, 2015

FINANCE CUSTOMERS (CONT’D)

The amount and type of collateral required depend
on an assessment of the credit risk of the customer or
counterparty.

The main types of collateral and credit enhancement
obtained are as follows:

— for personal lending, mortgages over residential
properties; and

— for commercial lending, corporate guarantees,
charges over real estate properties, pledge of shares or
debentures over the borrower’s assets.

In general, the loans and advances which are granted
on a secured basis, are made to the consumer finance
customers with sufficient amount of collateral provided
by them. Management requests additional collateral as
appropriate in accordance with the underlying agreements,
and monitors the market value of collateral during its
review of the adequacy of the impairment allowance.

Estimate of fair value of collateral is based on the valuation
techniques commonly used for the corresponding assets at
the time of borrowing.

It is the Group’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties
in an orderly fashion. The proceeds are used to reduce
or repay the outstanding loan balances. In general, the
Group does not retain repossessed properties for business
purposes.

In respect of the secured loans and advances to consumer
finance customers with the carrying amount of HK$819.1
million (2014: HK$970.9 million), the fair values of the
collaterals of such loans and advances can be objectively
ascertained to cover the outstanding amount of the loan
balances.

The carrying amounts of the loans and advances to
consumer finance customers approximate their fair values.

JIr e HEAT R BRI AT % 5 B 5 T
A5 BBt Al 1 DL E

JIT A o e A B B %) 32 RN
B

—  EURMEAEK > LMETYISETE - &

—  EPARSEAEE > DIARSESMR - SiE
WIZEAEH ~ O S BRSSO B A
SRR -

— i o RV RE R B B
Ao T AS AT BRI T R A i 2 FA B B
B o L A T Ry B SRAR YR AT B
e (F H RO MEAT - 7 et ol (488 2 75
ARSI > BEECHEAT AT (E -

TR i AP (RS A e B — i
A0 P AR R S o A (L X T e

AL 977 BHEA 7 5 B R o BT
5% TR A o i 2 A PR R A5 B8R
;ﬂ’iﬁﬁ% » ARSE A IR B VM S
B &

FRER T (E £ 819.1 F &k oo (T —PU4E -
970.9H Btk o0) 2 A KR A M & P &
K EGKT T > AH B B ER B 2 K
2N TAEE T BB E 7 2 DA T B3k &G
R RAEESH

FANBA 5 20 5 8 3R M B GaR Z BRTHT (B BRLFL 2
PE(E AR o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

28. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets and
liabilities of the Group recognised and movements thereon
during the current and prior years:

At st January, 2014
Exchange adjustments
Recognised in profit or loss

At 31st December,
2014
Exchange adjustments
Disposal of subsidiaries
and joint venture
Recognised i equity
Recognised in profit or loss

At 315t December,
2015

BEZ-FEF A=+ —HIERE
28. ELEFIE

AR B A AR T BB A AR T AR Y 22
EIEBLIHE 2 I A (DL AR B A B a0 T

Undistributed
Accelerated Provisions earnings
tax  Revaluation and  Unrealised  and others
depreciation of assets  impairment gin  RDKBAR  Taxlosses Total
MERERE BEEf; HERAE RERLE 2h HEER gt
HKS Million~ HKS Million ~ HK§ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK§ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million
BEET BEBT Bk BE®T BE®T HE®T BEET
RZF—ME—A—H 2744 1811 (255.1) 402 106 (1105) 1407
B iR (0.1) (0.8) 3.8 (1.3) 0.1 0.1 1.6
i el 13.8 01 (117.8) 287 (2.7) 17.8 (60.1)
REZ—E+ZA

==f 266.1 180.4 (369.1) 67.6 7.8 (92.6) 62.2
I 5 e 0.2) (1.6) 204 3.2) - 04 15.8
RN &

AELT (59.0) 01) 109 (13) 5.0) 15.1 (394)
iy 2o - 50 - - - - 50
R 9.8 (4.0) (297.6) 5.6 (0.1) (3.6) (289.9)
REZ-TE+ZN

==f 2387 179.7 (635.4) 66.7 27 (60.7) (226.3)

For reporting purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the underlying subsidiaries.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

ESERIH B 15
EIE B IH &

SRS H S - T IRIEBUIHEE M A
i L 7 B B JB8 22 RS o LAR A SR 1
RS s BT AR AT SE R TR A5 B 0 A -

2015 2014
—B-RF T WE
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEAT H &I

3171 347.2

(543.4) (265.0)
(226.3) 82.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

28. DEFERRED TAX (CONT’D)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unrecognised deductible temporary differences of HK$5.3
million (2014: HK$31.0 million) and estimated unused
tax losses of HK$1,255.3 million (2014: HK$1,490.0
million) available to offset against future assessable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
HK$383.7 million (2014: HK$520.1 million) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$871.6 million (2014: HK$969.9 million) of
losses due to the unpredictability of future assessable profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses included a sum of
HK$1.5 million that will expire during 2017 to 2020 (2014:
HK$3.5 million will expire during 2015 to 2019).

Under the Law of PRC on Enterprise Income Tax,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1st
January, 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary differences attributable to
accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$897.8 million at the end of the reporting period (2014:
HK$1,131.7 million). The taxable temporary differences
have not been recognised as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

There were no other significant temporary differences that
are not recognised arising during the year or at the end of
the reporting period.

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
28. JEZEBLE (&)

P & RN Y g 3 T 5
RF 50 55 5.3 F B s T (& —JU4E : 31.0
S G ) B AT K S R B I R Uk A1 2 A
s AR B B JE B R 1,255.3 | BT (—
E—PU4E : 1,490.0 @ E#E L) o H gk
383.7 A H T (—F—DU4E : 520.1 @ &
Wo0) 2 Ll iR e s AR A B T E o
R B G R A BB s A - ROl S R
T 871.6 A B H TG (—F —IU4E : 969.9
HEW L) R IEER A E - RiER
BEEBREEHER —E—tFE T &
FEBI 2 FRTE .5 E BT (PO
Beh =B —FAE R SRR 2 0E
3.5H #EH D) o

MRS 2 ATAARE > A BT\ 4E—
H—H AL » ZEE A B S A 7 45t A1
IR AR AFE OB - IR > I
4 el v T 2 ) 1) 2 i R IR i ey 2
#H897.8 H EmHE T (—FE—4E : 1,131.7
HE WG N 4R A B E PRI RL
TEHS A o A A 42 (o] T 2 ol 438 [ Jify o 2 %
Z WREH] > 17l RF 25 B R RESS A & e ] R
AR ] > [R] Ih SO A R L i IR 2 o

AR B O R > S A R R 2 E
PN
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WE - FE—HE+_HA=1+—HILFEF
29. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND OTHER 29. #HEYEREMEE

for the year ended 31st December, 2015

INVENTORIES

Properties in Hong Kong, at net

WE 2% - BT s

realisable value FE

Freehold property outside BN KA EREYZE >
Hong Kong, at cost A

Other inventories Hith i &

In 2015, the use of certain of the Group’s properties
previously held for sale with a net realisable value of
HK$119.6 million (2014: HK$40.2 million) was changed,
evidenced by the properties being rented out under
operating leases during the year and were therefore
reclassified as investment properties.

The freehold property outside Hong Kong represents a
property in the United States of America. The Group has
the intention to sell this asset. The freehold property is
included in the Group’s sale of properties and property
based investments for segment reporting purposes (note 6).

At 31st December, 2015, the carrying value of properties
held for sale pledged as security of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings amounted to HK$44.1 million (2014:
HK$163.7 million).

2015 2014
—B-RF  —FNE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT H &I
44.1 163.7

135.0 135.1

0.1 0.1

179.2 298.9

A —HAE > AT AREEZ I TRRA ]
I E5119.6 A # s o (—F— U4 :
402 F E#sIT) Z R EY L HiE D A
W BB E RN E A
SR UE B A A G2 o

T IR I 2 A SERE 248 — TR A 55 F
EL G R 2 W3 o S 4 [ B O
B oo K AEREY EH T EHRE MEA
ﬁ%@z&%%%&ﬁ%%%%z&%m
(FffzE6) -

AN E—FAEFA=+—H - B
A4 1 H BT (R U4 © 163.7 1 EH
IG) Z A EY EC IR > E A AN SE E R
17 F H A S B 2 SR A o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_EZ—HFETZA=1T—HILFEE

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30. EZREMEWRE

2015 2014
—B-RF T g
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT H &I
Trade receivables — accounts receivable L& 5 Rk — 5k A 285 fr ~
from exchanges, brokers and clients AR F T 2 FE R 185.2 1,841.8
Less: impairment allowance T WA (2.7) (14.1)
182.5 1,827.7
Secured term loans A HEHA BB 3,123.7 2,857.0
Unsecured term loans SESEA A B Bk 425.7 553.6
Less: impairment allowance W WA A (95.9) (4.8)
3,453.5 3,405.8
Margin loans 27011 €N - 3,903.0
Less: impairment allowance W I E R - (119.9)
- 3,783.1
Notes e 125.8 52.1
Other receivables oA B WA X IE
Deposits 4 79.2 76.5
Dividend receivable on behalf of REF Lz
clients JES IS - 61.0
Payments on behalf of customers” R F A 21.3 0.3
Claims from counterparties and 658 5 B F 2 R K
other receivables Al B s K I 22.0 62.9
Less: impairment allowance W SRR (17.0) -
105.5 200.7
Trade and other receivables TS A 2 B 7y T A
at amortised cost JE K IE 3,867.3 9,269.4
Prepayments FEATFHIE 37.6 26.1
3,904.9 9,295.5
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B2 E T Z T
Non-current assets FE V) & 1,728.8 1,520.3
Current assets T 2,176.1 7,775.2
3,904.9 9,295.5

Payments on behalf of customers represented payments made by the

Group to reimburse the beneficiaries of the guarantees (“Holders”)
for losses the Holders incurred because the customers failed to
make payments when due in accordance with the term of the

corresponding debt instruments.

FREF A Hi %5 5 R B £ BRORAL B 5 T 5L
Z BRI B S S AT > A G AR D 4
Rz 24 N (TRA N BT A d e E A 2
%k -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_Z—HFET_H=1T—HILFE
30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 30. E5 R HMBEWRIEGR)
The following is an aged analysis of trade and other PATF A7 ik H 32 B ) B HC A R ek I
receivables based on the date of the invoice/contract note RIFFEE AL IR WIE 2 R4
at the reporting date: B
2015 2014
—ZE-0F TR AR
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT EX: Yoo
Less than 31 days DIR31TH 19.0 1,834.2
31 to 60 days 31%£60H 8.2 10.0
61 to 90 days 61£90H 5.6 5.8
91 to 180 days 91%180H 3.6 6.5
Over 180 days 180H DA | 0.9 25.6
37.3 1,882.1
Term loans, margin loans and trade and  3If SEHREA > A5 3K ~ 7525 K
other receivables without aging* L 58 5 B H A USRI 3,945.6 7,526.1
Less: impairment allowances W WA (115.6) (138.8)
Trade and other receivables FEAHRSH A 2 B 5 Je
at amortised cost Al B KA 3,867.3 9,269.4
& No aging analysis is disclosed for term loans financing, as, in & EHEEL R - BN AR EE R
the opinion of the management, the aging analysis does not give BRI M R 3R AN K > IR L oI e 0 3 A 1)
additional value in view of the nature of the term loans financing G BREA AT o
business.
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED Annua | epont 201
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BE-F—HFE+—H=1+—HI14FE
30. EZREMEWEE)

for the year ended 31st December, 2015

30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

The gross amount of impaired receivables at the reporting
date and the movement of impairment allowances during
the year were as follows:

TR S8 2 9 (L R WA TR AR 4 T Bk
(EfH < BT

Trade Other
receivables receivables
FEW  Termloans Margin loans Hity Total
B SR BHER FH M PErFRIE @t
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
HEWSTT H BB HEVTT HEWBT EFA 5
At 31st December, R-E-1%&
2015 +=A=t+—-H
Gross amount of impaired ol (B e i 210E
receivables b 3.3 320.4 - 23.0 346.7
Individually assessed impairment {4 i (E
allowances M
Balance brought forward e (14.1) 4.8) (119.9) - (138.8)
Exchange adjustments HE 50, R - - - 0.6 0.6
Amounts written off b 0.1 4.4 9.5 - 14.0
Amounts recognised in profitor B HERZ
loss A 2.0 (95.5) - (17.6) (111.1)
Disposal of subsidiaries Bt A ) 9.3 - 1104 - 119.7
Balance carried forward fayed Oy 2.7) (95.9) - (17.0) (115.6)
Net carrying amount of impaired  ELJi{E R FIEZ
receivables R T3 0.6 224.5 - 6.0 231.1
At 31st December, R F— 4
2014 +ZA=+—H
Gross amount of impaired BTl T EeE
receivables ) 16.0 6.3 148.2 0.5 171.0
Individually assessed impairment  {H Rl 5FA4 i (E
allowances i
Balance brought forward Yy (21.5) (4.8) (155.6) 23) (184.2)
Amounts written off s FE - - 54.3 ~ 54.3
Amounts recognised in profitor  RIBZ R
loss FH 7.4 - (18.6) 2.3 (8.9)
Balance carried forward LT (14.1) (4.8) (119.9) = (138.8)
Net carrying amount of impaired B ii{EREUFUEZ
receivables HR 1A 1.9 1.5 28.3 0.5 32.2
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 ®WE - F—HFE+_A=+—HILFEE
30. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 30. B R H M EWRIE (&)
Impairment loss on trade receivables, term loans and other A R A 1] S T L R R R 5 IR
receivables is recognised in profit or loss after review by A~ AR R H Al R S T B A DL A%
the management of the relevant group companies, based (AR R 5y IRk~ A B % A g
on the latest status of trade receivables, term loans and WAt VB 1 S50 1 L S ST A AT B S 2N i A
other receivables, and the latest announced or available BT 0 B R E 2 e R - e
information about the underlying collateral held. i PHERD o
The following is an aged analysis of the trade and other PUTR £ 77 AR 2 A (E S 2 & %)
receivables that were past due at the end of the reporting T HAth FE S R I 2 BREA 43T
period but not impaired:
2015 2014
—E-HF YA
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT HE I
Less than 31 days D31 H 11.2 188.4
31 to 60 days 31260H 3.6 242.1
61 to 90 days 61%290H 4.7 6.4
91 to 180 days 91%£180H 1.1 19.2
Over 180 days 180H LA E 0.9 38.3
21.5 494 .4
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables at T BN AR S 2 B 5 N EAth JRE s R TE
amortised cost approximate their fair values. 2 R T (R BN B (B AR ©
Further details on financial risk management of trade and B 5 Ko LA R ir s T 27 4 il Rl o A B A —
other receivables are disclosed in note 42. R E A M RE42
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2015
BEwE(FE)FRAA — E — | 4 E R



for the year ended 31st December, 2015

31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND JOINT 31. B¢ QAT REE AR

VENTURES

@

Amounts due from associates

Advances
Less: impairment allowance

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets
Current assets

Gross amount of impaired advances
to associates

Individually assessed impairment
allowances
At Tst January and
31st December

Net carrying amount of impaired
advances to associates

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

() BEQTRMK

2015 2014
—B-RF T g
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT H HE T
B 253.3 197.8
W R (17.1) 17.1)
236.2 180.7
7 2 B T E 2 A
FE L) & 64.9 64.7
T E 171.3 116.0
236.2 180.7
Wi ] R L I (E
Rk 17.3 17.2
1 Bl Ak
T ETEA
W—H—H K&
wt+—H=+—H (17.1) (17.1)
A/ ) BAGER L i (L
S T V5 EL 0.2 0.1

Annual Report 2015
—® R



190
for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BEE-NFETA=Z+—HILFEE

31. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES AND JOINT 31. BB NTIREE DNAI R (&)
VENTURES (CONT’D)

(i) Amounts due from joint ventures (i) EEATIXI
2015 2014
—E-RE e Sgutfes
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE I
Advances IR 9.2 18.4
Less: impairment allowance W BB - (8.5)

Analysed for reporting purposes as T 2 EE B AT
current assets BinEh g E 9.2 9.9

Gross amount of impaired advances &8/ "1 EGKE
to joint ventures 3 (EL A B - 8.6

Individually assessed impairment AR EFA Bk (B

allowances A
At 1st January w—H—H (8.5) -
Amounts written off TS K IH 13.6 -
Amounts recognised in profit or loss AR % R 2 A (5.1) (8.5)
At 31st December w+=—H=+—H - (8.5)
Net carrying amount of impaired BB TR E W
advances to joint ventures R T (B - 0.1
The impairment is recognised when there is objective A A B TR S A B A F B s A R R
evidence of impairment (such as unsustainable operating AT i ] 85I % B A A B 4R (1) 4 4F
loss) after the Group’s evaluation of the collectibility of RSB TR) BN WA R 7 G R
amounts due from associates and joint ventures.
Further details of amounts due from associates and joint BE o~ m BB s A Rl KOR R
ventures are disclosed in note 49. AR EE49 o
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K) LIMITED
A BoBE (BRE)ERD A S SO N
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BEF—HET_H=T—HILFE

32. BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  32. $817E% - B4 RELZEY

2015 2014
—E-RF —E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT A EET
Bank balances and cash RATH R I B & 2,994.7 2,964.5
Fixed deposits with banks with a term A =i A R 211
within 3 months ZARAT E AR 3,394.1 1,427.4
Cash and cash equivalents B& RIS EY 6,388.8 4,391.9
Fixed deposits with banks with a term  FAPY 2 | A H k2|11
between 4 to 12 months ZARAT E IR 1,501.4 993.4
7,890.2 5,385.3
The carrying amounts of bank deposits, cash and cash SATAER ~ Bl KB & 55 (E ) 2 MR i R
equivalents approximate their fair values. HHEEAE -
Further details on financial risk management of bank AT - Bl M8 &5 (A 2 & R PR
deposits, cash and cash equivalents are disclosed in note O — L R UL FaE42 o
42.
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
A BoEE (BRE)ERD A AR G AN
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

33. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts payable to exchanges,

brokers and clients

Dividend receivable on behalf of clients %% 5 i Bt FE Uk ik S,

Other accounts payable

Trade and other payables
at amortised cost

Accrued staff costs and other accrued

expenses

WERS 32 5 BT ~ KEAC B
%P iRk

H A RE AT K

PRI A 2 B 5
HABREAT R

JEAT B T RA K
HAbRER T

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and other
payables based on the date of the invoice/contract note at

the reporting date:

Less than 31 days
31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 180 days
Over 180 days

Accrued staff costs, other accrued
expenses and other payables

without aging

Drv31 H
31Z60H
61%290H
91%180H
180 H LA |

WE - FE—HE+_HA=1+—HILFEF
33. EZREMENTE

2015 2014
—E-FHEF —F s
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT H &I
19.8 2,316.1

- 61.0

141.7 275.1

161.5 2,652.2

193.4 243.9

354.9 2,896.1

VAR Z TR s H I 2 B 5y I HoAt BB A TR
MIRR R E X B FWIE 2 iR >

ol AR 2 REAT B T RUAS

HAbRER 2 B
HAbREAT R

The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables at
amortised cost approximate their fair values.

B
2015 2014
—EB-fHEF —F—ue
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT HE I
70.8 2,482.1
9.1 9.0
7.2 11.5
0.2 9.6
0.6 3.9
87.9 2,516.1
267.0 380.0
354.9 2,896.1

RS A FHE 2 B 5 B AR AT SRR AR

T B EL PR (R A
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_E L&+ _HA=1t—HIL&EF
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. A
Number of
shares Value
ROEE EE
HK$ Million
A EE T
Issued and fully paid: E#AT RAE ¢
At Tst January, 2014 W _E—U4E—H—H 6,802,420,707 1,360.5
Shares repurchased and cancelled W 1] Rz G 8 A4y (100,000) -
Transfer from share premium and HRIE B Hs 2w e o1
capital redemption reserve upon the JBE IR I3 T LT
abolition of par value under the B Ay v A 2
new Hong Kong Companies LA I ] fett
Ordinance LLErS = 2,855.7
Exercise of warrant subscription rights 7 5% B b a8 52 8,085 —
At 31st December, 2014 and R oE—NE+_H=+—H
Tst January, 2015 R =—F—hF—H—H 6,802,328,792 4,216.2
Exercise of warrant subscription rights — 17{# 58 I 76 58 B 17,122,877 34.3
At 31st December, 2015 BoEF-REFH=+—H 6,819,451,669 4,250.5
35. WARRANTS 35. AR ERE
1,390,623,317 bonus warrants, on the basis of one warrant W _E——4FNH > 1,390,623,317 /4L
for every five shares held, were issued to all shareholders ?F'J B R A H AT M B T 56— 13
of the Company in June, 2011. The warrant holders were RO IBOHE RS < L HE 9 %Zl-‘/\jAﬁﬂﬂxﬁ
entitled to subscribe in cash for one fully paid share at an Q:i**ﬁi/\ﬂ T=HEZ /\E/\
initial subscription price of HK$2.00 per share, subject to A+=H(GaFEEMH) Eﬁﬁﬂa'ﬁ > wok
adjustment, at any time from 13th June, 2011 to 13th June, RERSRRA A AT 345 2005 T ( T?nﬂﬁ
2016 (both days inclusive). A R R A DA B 4 R — IR AU R R
o
During the year, 17,122,877 (2014: 8,085) warrants Eﬁq » 17,122,877y (ZF—DU4F : 8,085
were exercised, resulting in the issuance of 17,122,877 1/\ i Ey\% Zgﬁﬁ A B 2.00 #5
(2014: 8,085) ordinary shares at a subscription price of R EEE1T17,122,877 i (—F—1W
HK$2.00 per share. Accordingly 1,373,448,805 warrants E : 8,085 W) EEmE o Bk > R F
were outstanding at 31st December, 2015. Exercise in —HA4FE+_H=1+—H > 1,373,448,805
full of the outstanding warrants would result in the issue 13 R JBOHE A% 0 R AT o i i R AT B 2 58
of 1,373,448,805 additional shares with an aggregate HQ%%BJE%%I @ BB A B AT
subscription value of HK$2,746,897,610. 1,373,448,805 Bt % 1y » AR MEEME 5

2,746,897,61045 IC °

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

36. ANALYSIS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 36. HEftt2EWES(Z2H) 20
(EXPENSES)

Non-
controlling
Attributable to owners of the Company interests
ANARRER FERER
Property  Investment Capital Share of net
revaluation  revaluation and other assets of
reserve reserve  Translation reserves Accumulated  subsidiaries
L RE reserve EXR profits  FEEHIE Total
Effmfs EffRGE  EXRE  REtRE  ZWER LIF4E st
HKS Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million  HKS$ Million
GEkT  AEEr AEET AAEr AEBr fEkEx ARdEx
For the year ended BE-%-1F
31st December, +=A=t-AH
2015 3
Available-for-sale financial assets Wkt E 2l ERE - (1.8) - - - (44 (6.2)
Reclassification adjustmenton M/ H &R E
disposal of subsidiaries o - (4.0 (1.0) - - @1 9.1
Reclassification adjustmenton R~ A& AR
liquidation of a joint venture ~ FE#/M A% - - (0.6) - - 0.5) (1.1)
Revaluation gain on properties 4% fhifdt 61.0 - - - - 503 1113
Exchange differences arisingon &N EH IR
translation of foreign operations 2 FE S £ - 0.3) (109.7) - - (237.1) (347.1)
Share of other comprehensive {5/ 7 Al
income (expenses) of associates 2T (&) - 58.0 (430.6) - 0.4 0.2 (372.0)
Share of other comprehensive — FEfG A /A
income (expenses) of joint Hlb2
ventures (&) - 14 (1.9 0.7 - 1.1 13
61.0 53.3 (543.9) 0.7 04 (194.5) (622.9)
For the year ended BE-Z-ME
315t December, +ZA=t—H
2014 I3
Available-for-sale financial assets At & 2 EE & = 03 = = = 3.1 34
Reclassification adjustment on M /A % b
liquidation of subsidiaries EHEAE - - 02 - - 0.2 0.4
Reclassification adjustmenton i~ FHBHE/A &
disposal of an associate GEE DL - 02 9.0 - - - 9.2)
Exchange differences arisingon BN EHIRATT
translation of foreign operations & 2 [ - - (51.0) - - (111.4) (162.4)
Share of other comprehensive  FE{EHBE A I HA
income (expenses) of associates AT (%) - 97.4 0.7) - - - 9.7
Share of other comprehensive ~ [EfHAE/A T Al
expenses of joint ventures 2HEN = (21.1) (0.4) (0.6) = (17.5) (39.6)
- 76.4 (60.9) (0.6) - (125.6) (110.7)
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED Ammel Reper: 2615

—F — HFE W



for the year ended 31st December, 2015

37.

38.

RESERVES

Property revaluation reserve ) E A
Investment revaluation reserve P& Al A
Translation reserve BEE 52 i 45
Capital and other reserves A R A ft
Accumulated profits LRl
Dividend reserve e 5 Mt A

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank loans RITER

Other borrowings HAb 5

Analysed as: 55y
Secured A HEFT
Unsecured A

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAA

BE_F—HET_HA=1+—HILFE

37. @&

2015 2014
—B-RF T4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT B EBIT
335.0 274.0
431.4 376.1
131.9 699.5
21.0 23.0
22,098.6 18,326.3
409.1 374.1
23,427.0 20,073.0

38. |RITRHEMEE
2015 2014
—B-RF  FWE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT (B
6,848.1 7,814.6
35.0 -
6,883.1 7,814.6
584.4 859.9
6,298.7 6,954.7
6,883.1 7,814.6

Annual Report 2015
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38. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Bank loans are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year
More than one year but not

exceeding two years
More than two years but not
exceeding five years

Bank loans with a repayment
on demand clause are
repayable as follows:

Within one year

More than one year but not
exceeding two years

More than two years but not
exceeding five years

Other borrowings repayable
over five years

Less: Amount repayable within
one year shown
under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

|ATEFMEEBRIT

ZORBFEIE X — 4R
—4E L E{EAER
[E=
YA LA _E B AN 2
ik
HAHEORIR RS2
AT R AER IR
L
—AEN
—AELL B R
MI4F
M4 LA EEAS AR
2

PR TR B2
HAhfi &

B AR — RS
RRE E
KA

—AEAR B 2 FKIH

38. SRITREMEE (&)

2015 2014
—g-HF _—FUE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BRBT s
1,995.1 4,152.2
2,240.9 1,434.3
2,027.7 1,851.7
73.2 350.0

65.2 17.2

446.0 9.2
6,848.1 7,814.6
35.0 =
6,883.1 7,814.6
(2,579.5) (4,528.6)
4,303.6 3,286.0

Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

38.

39.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT’D)
The Group’s bank loans and other borrowings that are

denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars
are set out below:

US dollar B
Renminbi N

Further details on financial risk management of bank and
other borrowings are disclosed in note 42.

Details of the assets of the Group pledged to secure bank
and other borrowings are set out in note 48.

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

38. SRITREMEE (&)

AL L ST UG 2 B W 9 (E 2 SRAT B

B HABAS BN T -
2015 2014
—B-hF — & E
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT H T
451.5 306.3
- 298.3

SRAT S H A 2 < B B B 2 3 — 2

R B IR 42 -

AL T SR AT R MBS B 2 R R

TR BRE48

SRAT P HoAt 55 2 S T (B B P{B (B AR

approximate their fair values.

NOTES

US dollar denominated notes

(“US$ Notes”)

6.375% US dollar denominated
notes maturing in September
2017 (“6.375% Notes”)

3% US dollar denominated notes
maturing in December 2017
(“3% Notes”)

Renminbi denominated notes

(“RMB Notes”)

6.9% Renminbi denominated
notes maturing in May 2018
(“6.9% Notes”)

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

%“0

ETEE
(I EHED
R oE—LENLARI
6.375%3% TG 2245
([6.375%24% |)
AT —HAE T HEI
3% TC i
([3%224% 1)
NR g2
(T NRWERE )
T F— N4 A B3 2
6.9% N\ R =y
(16.9%Z24# 1)

2R BT T
B F
FE By

2015 2014
—B-RF T WE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT HE I
2,476.4 2,624.1
459.6 455.8
595.4 628.6
3,531.4 3,708.5
78.3 71.3
3,453.1 3,637.2
3,531.4 3,708.5
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39. NOTES (CONT’D)

The US$ Notes were issued by Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) Limited, a subsidiary of SHK, under a US$2 billion
guaranteed medium term note programme. The US$ Notes
are guaranteed by SHK. The 6.375% Notes are listed on
the Stock Exchange and are issued to professional investors
only as described in the pricing supplement dated 17th
September, 2012 and the offering circular dated 13th June,
2012.

During the year, the Group purchased part of the 6.375%
Notes with a total nominal value of US$19.4 million
(2014: US$9.3 million) from the market at a consideration
of HK$153.5 million (2014: HK$75.9 million). The
nominal value of the 6.375% Notes outstanding after
eliminating the intra-group holdings was US$315.8
million or equivalent to HK$2,447.5 million at the
reporting date (2014: US$335.2 million or equivalent to
HK$2,600.1 million). The fair value of the 6.375% Notes
after eliminating the intra-group holdings based on the
price quoted from pricing service at the reporting date was
HK$2,597.2 million (2014: HK$2,737.8 million) which
was categorised as level 2.

The nominal value of the 3% Notes was US$60.0 million
or equivalent to HK$465.0 million (2014: US$60.0 million
or equivalent to HK$465.4 million) at the reporting date.
The fair value of the 3% Notes measured by discounted
cash flow approach at the reporting date was HK$462.5
million (2014: HK$448.7 million) which was categorised as
level 3.

The RMB Notes were issued by UA Finance (BVI) Limited,
a subsidiary of SHK, under a US$3 billion medium term
note programme. The RMB Notes are unsecured and
guaranteed by a non-wholly owned subsidiary.

During the year, the Group purchased part of the 6.9%
Notes with a total nominal value of RMB5.0 million from
the market at a consideration of HK$6.4 million. The
nominal value of the 6.9% Notes after eliminating the
intra-group holdings was RMB495.0 million or equivalent
to HK$590.8 million (2014: RMB500.0 million or
equivalent to HK$624.9 million) at the reporting date. The
fair value of the 6.9% Notes based on the price quoted
from pricing service at the reporting date was HK$595.4
million (2014: HK$644.2 million) which was categorised as
level 2.

WE - FE—HE+_HA=1+—HILFEF
39. EE (&)

B 5 2 B8 A " Sun Hung Kai & Co.
(BVI) LimitedR 42015 35 JoiE (4 b 1 2 i
BATRIBEEAT T E o0 YR o Eon
T IR ALYE(R o 6.375% =i A b
o N = F— AR LA £ H B 2 E
M TN AT EHR s
BRI T > {5 ) B SE PG B AT o

ER - AL LI153.5 0 Eilkn(ZF—n
4E 759 H BT 2 AVEAETT B A
{1940 8 EIG(ZF—U4E : 93 F
HETT) 240 6.375% 248 o s H
W > RINBREE M ERE 2 BEE > Mk
6.375%5 95 2 HI{H £315.8 H # 35 Juei A
HR2,447 5 BT (T F—U4E 1 335.2
A ST EUM A 2,600.1 B EHETT) © iR
s H Y > Z8FNBRAE I M A 2 %
HR 9 2 8 R i fE 4% » 6.375% 152
NFAEE 5 2,597.2 B B C (—F—
412,737 8EEMIL) » NFAE K -

RS HH > 3% 2248 2 10 {H 5 60.0 A &
T EA B A 465.0 B BT (—F —1
4 0 60.0 B & 3£ ICEAHE R 465.4 B B
JG) ° 3%ZEHE IR H B LA BB 4 3 7
TR R 2 N PAEE A5 4625 B I (—
F—IU4E : 448.7 A B IC) - HEAS =
e

N B = i E e 3 2 B R A B UA
Finance (BVI) Limited » #R#E30f&3ETH
BB AT R BT o AR IR 5 AR IK
P K% g — [H] IF 2 it Ja s mI VRS AR ©

FER > REFEDMRE6.4H BE TR S
BABEES NRE5.0H & T2 o
6.9% 225 o RS H ) > ALEFn R &
Frfr 2 ZPE4% > 6.9% 2295 2 1 (H B AR
#495.0 H & o B AH & 2 590.8 B H Vs IT
(T F U4 NRH500.0F 15T Bk &
R624.9H B TT) o N H I > RIEE
18 RS AT R A AR > 6.9% 2295 2 N & (H
£5595. 4 H St (—FE—U4 : 644.2H
BEHSTD) > A K -
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40. PROVISIONS

41.

At Tst January,

2015
Exchange adjustments
Additional provisions for the year
Amount utilised during the year
Amount paid during the year
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31st December,
2015

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as going concerns
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

40. 15
Employee
benefits Others Total
EEEF Hith st
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT BHEBTT BEBTT
T E— AR
—H—H 58.9 16.5 75.4
[ifE b2, i - 0.2) 0.2)
A N ERS M 76.2 6.1 82.3
AN LB A - 0.2) 0.2)
AN B AR (89.3) - (89.3)
H B e 2 (21.2) (13.2) (34.4)
R E—TAE
+—-HA=+—H 24.6 9.0 33.6
2015 2014
—E-FF e 112
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBTT H H T
B B W TAE 2 A
T A 32.2 62.6
JE i Eh & £ 1.4 12.8
33.6 75.4

41. EXRBRER

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include bank and other borrowings, amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries and notes) and equity attributable to owners of
the Company comprising issued share capital and reserves.

S T 0 A 0B A AT 6
WE(R A S TR T 4524 AR A0 86 40 7
W o 5 5 4 7 S T B R B
FERFEAREE -

A [ 1Y AR SR LA B (AR SRAT I
oAt £ &~ K [R] AR MR 2% m) RO DL R SR
15%) BLAR /Y ) AR AL HE AR (45 384T B
A K fikifle) o
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41. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Gearing ratio

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

The Group’s management reviews the capital structure on
an ongoing basis using gearing ratio, which is the net debt
divided by equity. Net debt includes the Group’s bank and
other borrowings, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and
notes less bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
The equity comprises all components of equity attributable

to owners of the Company.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:

Bank and other borrowings
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Notes

Less: Bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents

Net debt

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company

Gearing ratio

AT S HARE
UNGIEN () VACIE/ e
SR

B AT > Bl
LB G EY

B

AN R R B A
fE i

BEAAMER

41. EXEBEE (&)

EXR/HLE

7R 1 L T O T R R A R LR (RIS
B LA AR ) 15 A AR ZEN - (S
R AL AL B SR AT ML AE B - KA
24 WF B8 > LKA DA K SR R R SR A T A ok B R
ERBLEEEY o AR EREA L RO

fh A 2 2 A5 (E AL A 0 o

RECGE AR EAR BT

2015 2014
—E—RF R4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:Y
6,883.1 7,814.6

- 5.2

3,531.4 3,708.5
10,414.5 11,528.3
(7,890.2) (5,385.3)
2,524.3 6,143.0
27,677.5 24,289.2
9.1% 25.3%
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the financial service business and
sound risk management is a cornerstone of prudent and
successful financial practice. The Group acknowledges
that a balance must be achieved between risks control
and business growth. The principal financial risks inherent
in the Group’s business are market risk (includes equity
risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management
objective is to enhance shareholders’ value while retaining
exposure within acceptable thresholds. Risk management
is managed and controlled through relevant group
companies.

The Group’s risk management governance structure is
designed to cover all business activities and to ensure all
relevant risk classes are properly managed and controlled
by relevant group companies. The Group has adopted
a sound risk management and organisational structure
equipped with comprehensive policies and procedures
which are reviewed regularly and enhanced when
necessary in response to changes in markets, the Group's
operating environment and business strategies. The
Group’s relevant independent control functions play an
important role in the provision of assurance to the relevant
board of directors and senior management that a sound
internal risk management mechanism is implemented,
maintained and adhered to.

HE—

42.

—HEFZA=t—HILERE
TREREE
< IR BS SEAS By A A Ja By > R ERT S — 1
T3 B SR B B R A SE AR AL )
OBl o AR I RS L Fae A BB SE B 0 R

W Rl BRE B o ACEE J Y SES 77 E /) 152
<o LBy 7 T 355 LBy (BLAE BC S JL B ~ A
2l i b SRR JEB ) ~ A B B X B
Sp AR o A B Y Ja R B AR BT T
S50 JE B = B T 432K 22 85 - [R] ey
B R R BOR B o JaBR A HE T2 AR B
ARSI B -

745 B R B I 2R S TE R 35 P A SE S
EE) > LLREGR T A A BRJELBR S A R A
BB AR ZAEER B - AEFED
PR AN — IR 2 35 1) Ja gy i B B AR AR - Sl
BT 52 5 O BOR XA TP > A BBOR R A2 )7
GEMETRE > WA THERREET S
Je AR A B 8 TR 22 5 Bl B SE A SR T A
58 o AN YA B 8 S B A I BE AR T
W5 o 1o R R o R A EEJEF&’{%E
Bt~ AE AR S R T A A RS P gt R
il o
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@) Market Risk

(i)

Equity Risk

There are many asset classes available for
investment in the marketplace. One of the
Group'’s key business undertakings is investing in
equity and is concentrated in the investment and
finance operating segment. Market risk arising
from any equity investments is driven by the
daily fluctuations in market prices or fair values.
The ability to mitigate such risk depends on the
availability of any hedging instruments and the
diversification level of the investment portfolios
undertaken by the segment. More importantly,
the knowledge and experience of the trading
staff of the segment managing the risk are also
vital to ensure exposure is being properly hedged
and rebalanced in the most timely manner.
Proprietary trading across the segment is subject
to limits approved by senior management of the
relevant group companies. Valuation of these
instruments is measured on a “mark-to-market”
and “mark-to-fair value” basis depending on
whether they are listed or unlisted. Value at
Risk (“VaR”) and stress tests are employed in the
assessment of risk. Meanwhile other non-VaR
limits such as “maximum loss” and “position”
limits are also set out to restrict excessive risk
undertakings. VaR and stress tests are approaches
which are widely used in the financial industry
as tools to quantify risk by combining the size of
a position and the extent of a potential market
movement into a potential financial impact.

The Group’s market-making and proprietary
trading positions and their financial performance
are reported daily to the relevant senior
management of the group companies in the
segment for review. Relevant internal audit
also performs regular checks to ensure there is
adequate compliance in accordance with the
established market risk limits and guidelines.

WE - FE—HE+_HA=1+—HILFEF
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@)

™5 Ek

(i)

ST

T35 A A D m] BEBUE 1Y
Al > T A SR B P AT 2 RS
Z— PR E R R E K
ERSERF R o AT EE B
7 A 22 T 3 e DR T AR
DB AR BB T - 82 A0 5% 55
Bt ) BE T AP A 75 TR A AT AT 3 oo
TH RSy E8 P A BUE AL B 9 7
AU - HHEAE - 7 H0ELT
Lo 2 B TR A B m e Y
R B KB - e R B A B
RO IRF R T 8 2 o RE K o
W2 BB R IEEHZ AN 4
2N E) 2 e A L A 2 BRAE R
il > AP RZSF TH Ay B ek
TR TS AR | e A
TSR E o Sl Bt ey (11 JL
Bar (L ([ B AE J) K JBE 3 Bt o [
5 > e HLA I L Fag e FR R 4
[ i E R 1R T PR LA FR il
o T 36 1 68 PR B, o o (L JRE
3 B < B SE G (8T > 2
B A REE < B KB T L
BuBELEZEEYE > AR
LBz TA -

AREE A EETISEE & AE
HEE B R RO R  Bs R
4 H MR T SN SR F A R 2
] v A B LA (2 ) - AR
AL T 7 A% 70 IS B A i E
A > FELR TS A8 <F W] T 35 Ja R
BRAF S 4551 o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BEF—HET_H=T—HILFE
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 42. TRIEREE(H)
(@) Market Risk (Cont’d) (@ ™WHBER(E)
(i)  Equity Risk (Cont’d) (i) REE ()

The table below summarises the overall financial N P MR BRER B T 4 s B AR
impact on the Group arising from market EER RIS - Y
movements in global equity indices. The analysis B I T i B R IR £520% >
is based on the assumption that equity indices v Ho At s DR A AN B > TITAS SR
move +20% with all other variables being held ) BT A A e T BB 2 S5 f) o 48
constant and all equity instruments undertaken BN LB RS o

(i)

by the Group moving simultaneously. Declines
in the indices are expressed as negatives.

At 31t December, 2015 At 31st December, 2014
R-2-2F+-R=t-H REF-MEFZA=1-H
Potential impact on Potential impact on
Potential impact other components Potential impact other components
on profit or loss of equity on profit or loss of equity
for the year Hin A for the year B s AR

KERREROREVE  HALEERE  AFNRRRCERVE  WplERvE

0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 20% 0% -20%
HKS Million HKS Milion HKS Million HKS Million HKS Millon HKS Million HKS Million HKS Milion
FB%n EREn EEAT EEEn  AMkx  lEx Al AlEn

Local Index REH 2350 Q772 9.8 08 361 (1300 264 (264
Overseas Index MY 6664 (773.6) 79 (79) 1684 (2364 99 9.9
There is no material financial impact in the form BRERIBC T 4 B Bl S A A F AR 4R
of profit before taxation for the year for the Group JEE 14 RS i v ) S 1 K P
arising from market movements in the global B o BT S5 B J 58 T i L
equity indices. Futures, options and knock-out 1z W - IR R BRAE I RE DL H
options are hedged by other derivatives in view oA A T RS -

of the volatile markets and wide trading ranges.

Interest Rate Risk (i) FIFm 7

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss due to changes GES W RIES L RIGIE 75
in interest rates. The Group’s interest rate Z IR o A B [ B ) R L i
risk exposure arises predominantly from term A B 1 iR B 2 A TGR
financing in the investment and finance segment DA B FL N B 5 53 8 2 Fh N B 55 2%
and loans and advances to consumer finance F RS RS U\ﬁfﬁ T S HABAE
customers in consumer finance segment and £ AEEERE X - HNTER
bank and other borrowings. Interest spreads igé\%%ﬁA%?é?Z/fﬁ@J V3
are managed with the objective of maximising oK o

spreads to ensure consistency with liquidity and
funding obligations.

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED A IR @ DS
A BMAatE (FB)A nnual Repor

B2 A SF R E R
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42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d)
(ii) Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

At 31st December, 2015, assuming that market
interest rates moved by +50 basis points (2014:
+50 basis points), the profit before taxation
for the year for the Group would have been
HK$10.6 million lower or HK$11.9 million
higher respectively (2014: HK$2.0 million
higher or HK$2.6 million higher respectively).
Assets and liabilities bearing interest below 50
basis points are excluded from 50 basis points
downward movement.

The exposures of the Group’s financial assets
(liabilities) bearing variable interest rate to cash
flow interest rate risks and the earlier of their
contractual repricing dates and contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

BE-F—HE+ - H=1+—HI14FE
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@)

hiEER ()
(i) FIFE Bz (4E)

WoE—HEFA=+—H >
116 T 5 1) 2R 2 5 )y 2% 0 Jsk 50 1M
B (2 —04E - g5 R ES
T) o RIS R M A A 4F BE B BR B
i3 A A% 20 A0 10.6 B B G
s BT 11.9H BT (—F—1
AR ETF2.0F B TE b
2.6 EHIL) o WA 501 BT
2 55 ) AN B HE R AL 5018 B
T2 EERAME -

ALE H IR A R EE B W A A
FE (BR) T 3 4 i A R R b
M A& R a0 XA #3
H R0

On
demand
or less than
3 months
BREX 3 months 1 year Over
EEIIR to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
MR 3MEAEIE 15555 SENE @t
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
HEBT AEET HEBT HEBL HEBT
At 31st December, R-B-1&
2015 TZh=t-H
Loans and advances to BABEZF
consumer finance B
customers K 981.9 - - - 981.9
Bank deposits, cashand ~ $RfT7E5K BlE R
cash equivalents Be%EN 2,243.8 - - - 2,243.8
Bank and other borrowings 7 R H Al fE & (6,848.1) - - - (6,848.1)
At 31st December, T = F— 4
2014 +ZA=+—H
Loans and advances to MAMEER
consumer finance =04
customers B3k 1,198.7 - - - 1,198.7
Term loans AR 0.1 = 68.0 = 68.1
Bank deposits, cashand ~ $R{75k > Ble R
cash equivalents RS EY 20218 - - - 2,221.8
Bank and other borrowings 7 R LAl fE £ (7,326.4) (100.0) (90.0 - (7,516.4)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

42. cRiEBEE ()

TG E kR ()

(i) FIRE iz (45)
AR 48 [ 4 [ 5 A 2R s R A i E
B (BB ) T A 18 (E A 2 E
B > mEAAEHEEH KRG

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d) @)
(i) Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)
The exposures of the Group’s financial assets
(liabilities) bearing fixed interest rate to fair
value interest rate risks and the earlier of their

contractual repricing dates and contractual B H P RENT
maturity dates are as follows:
On
demand
or less than
3 months
REX 3 months 1 year Over
EEIOR to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
38R MEARIE 15855 SENE it
HKS$ Million HKS Million HKS$ Million HKS Million HKS Million
AEBT AEBTL BEBT AEBTL BEBT
At 31st December, R-E-1%&
2015 t=A=t-H
Amounts due from associates B/ Rl K 2K - 4.8 - - 4.8
Loans and advances to RABMHEF
consumer finance Ba Rk
customers B 27596 3,098.9 18536 1280 7.840.1
Bonds included in financial  E A BB
assets at fair value ATEERE
through profit or loss SRR B - - 602.0 246.0 848.0
Term loans A 224.8 1,272.1 1,956.6 - 3,453.5
Notes included in trade ATABS R A
and other receivables B Zh - 125.8 - - 125.8
Bank deposits, cash and Bl BER
cash equivalents HESEY 3,808.7 1,091.8 - - 4,900.5
Notes o (71.6) (6.7) (3,453.1) - (3,531.4)
At 31st December, et
2014 TZH=1—H
Amounts due from associates B /AR K2 70.0 43 = = 113.2
Loans and advances to MAMEEF
consumer finance R
customers #3 3,407.1 44269 2,150.2 208.8 10,193.0
Bonds included in financial ~ #F A BB L
assets at fair value ANTEERE,
through profit or loss TREE LB 21 6.5 1753 - 183.9
Term loans R 4262 1,518.9 13926 - 33377
Notes included in trade and ~ 3F A5 5 R
other receivables L - = 52.1 = 52.1
Bank deposits, cashand ST BlAR
cash equivalents HEEEY 1,951.6 825.9 = = 2,777.5
Bank and other borrowings ST R fE & (63.1) (235.1) - - (298.2)
Notes ok (64.4) (6.9 (3,637.2) - (3,708.5)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(@ Market Risk (Cont’d)
(iii) Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings
or capital arising from movements in foreign
exchange rates.

The Group’s foreign exchange risk primarily
arises from currency exposures originating from
proprietary trading positions, and loan and
advances denominated in foreign currencies,
mainly in Australian dollars and Renminbi.
Foreign exchange risk is managed and monitored
by senior management of the relevant group
companies. The risk arises from open currency
positions are subject to management approved
limits and are monitored and reported daily.

At 31st December, 2015, assuming that the
foreign exchange rates moved 5% (2014: +5%)
with all other variables held constant, the profit
before taxation for the year for the Group would
have been HK$18.9 million higher/lower (2014:
HK$4.1 million higher/lower).

(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or
counterparty to meet settlement obligations. As long as
the Group lends, trades and deals with third parties,
there will be credit risk exposure.

The Group’s credit procedures, governed by the
relevant executive committee of the relevant group
companies, sets out the credit approval processes
and monitoring procedures, which are established in
accordance with sound business practices.

WE - FE—HE+_HA=1+—HILFEF
42 cHEAMERE(E)

(@ TIBEE(E)
(iii) SE R B
471N R JoRL gz 7 411 IO 2R 4k o 36 227 )
BB A B 2 JE R

ALEH SRR E B H A
HEIHE AR SN S E
RG> EEBBTT RN
B o S SRS Fh A B 42 2 )
Z AR B P e B o b
WK & 472 A 2 1 HE SR BR ZE
3% o A8 PR A 2 BRAE IR ) - S
RS H 3 FL B R ) HORE R <

AR —-HEFH=1+—H>
TREANEEZR LN IR 45 5% (—
FE—PU4E B RWEIRA5%) > BT
A H AR AR AN > QA EE [
A AR BE 2 BB R A A T
L FH18.9T EHs T (—F—1
o BT NREATEET) o

(b) FEEE
&P B 5T REEIT ST
AFEEE R - — BAEE KT
F=T7 o W25 REE - WEh
R JaE

AEEE SR (AR EE AR A
BHITZ B GAE) SRR B &
EETEIT o 2SRRI T4k v AR 151
M 5E °
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

The table below shows the maximum exposure
to and concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure is shown in gross value before the effect of
mitigation through the use of collateral agreements.
The percentage figure next to the gross value reflects
its concentration.

HE-%

—HE+ZA=+—HILEE

42 eHEAMERE(E)
b) SERRE)

RS fo e 5 BB S R PR
He e JEU g LA SRR BB - MR R B8
I o e B LR PO S - MB{ELSE Y
7 BT R R -

2015 2014
—E-Ef TR A
HK$ Million %  HK$ Million %
BEER HEHIT
Maximum credit exposure BEaiEERR
Loans and advances to FhNIIE % F Rk
consumer finance customers PE-TN 8,822.0 37% 11,391.7 41%
Bank deposits, cash and cash ~ ${17/73K ~ Ble K
equivalents B a%EY 7,890.2 33% 5,385.3 19%
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HA s R 3,867.3 16% 9,269.4 33%
Bonds included Ft AR g BRAR AT
in financial assets at fair EEEE SMEE
value through profit or loss 2fE&F 1,626.9 7% 183.9 1%
Loan commitments BRI 1,157.4 5% 1,611.6 5%
Amounts due from associates  BEE /AR Kk 236.2 1% 180.7 1%
Guarantees s 139.2 1% 31.7 0%
Amounts due from joint ventures A7/ R K3 9.2 0% 9.9 0%
23,748.4 100% 28,064.2 100%

The maximum credit exposure at the Group level is
spread between “loans and advances to consumer
finance customers” and “bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents”, which represent more than two
thirds of the total exposure. The breakdown and aging
analysis of “loans and advances to consumer finance
customers” and the breakdown of “bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents” are disclosed in note 27
and 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Loans with strategic clients are all properly authorised
by the relevant executive committee of the relevant
group companies and with other controls in place to
monitor their performance.

Concentration risk of loans and advances to consumer
finance customers is managed by reference to
individual customers. The aggregate credit exposure
in relation to the ten largest outstanding consumer
finance customers, including corporate entities and
individuals, before taking into account any collateral
held or other credit enhancements, at 31st December,
2015 was HK$465.9 million (2014: HK$684.5
million) of which 77.1% (2014: 88.7%) was
secured by collateral. There was no recent history of
individual impairment allowance recognised.

A5 [ P T 3 00 B e A 0B 2 A i
[ AN BB % 5 B0k N e | BT 8R4
Tk~ BeRE&EEY |2 W > b
MR EE =02 = o [ A NMHER
R R B BGR | 2 A E R RS A A K
[ERATTEEK  Ble R &SEY 12 M
H R 47 A IR B 527 %32 »

BT AR RS 2 B A R £
AR Z BT ZE B GRS > I
e 37 At A A 4 it DA B 5 LB A 1
UL e

FANATE B 5 SR S gk 2 4 v JEB
RREE R 2 P o R & — A4
+ZHA=+—H > EERRERFA
W (G5 7 B AR ) A B
45 B JE B A8 AE CREHRE A 2 AT 3K
R sk A T 98 45 RS ) £ 465.9
HEW T (- F U : 6845 H #
W) > HAH77.1% ( FE U4
88.7%) H LA S AEME O] o AT HAME 4
THERRAR P B A A o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b) Credit Risk (Cont’d)

(0

The unsecured loans and advances to consumer
finance customers of the Group include second
mortgage loans in respect of which the Group are
not entitled to the first charge of relevant mortgage
properties. The management considers that the second
mortgage loans are classified as unsecured loans due
to the impediment in repossession of the mortgage
properties and the practical difficulties to ascertain the
residual collateral value after claim by first mortgagee.
The carrying amount and the loan commitments of
the second mortgage loans are as follows:

Carrying amount R T
Loan commitments BHORYE

Liquidity Risk

The goal of liquidity management is to mitigate risk
that a given security or asset cannot be traded quickly
enough in the market to prevent a loss or make the
required profit. Another goal is to enable the Group,
even under adverse market conditions, to actively
manage and match funds inflow against all maturing
repayment obligations to achieve maximum harmony
on cash flow management.

The Group manages its liquidity position to ensure a
prudent and adequate liquidity ratio. This is achieved
by a transparent and collective monitoring approach
across the Group involving the management of the
relevant group companies.

HEZE

—hE+ " HA=1+—H I EE

42 cHEAMERE(E)
b) SERRE)

(o)

A [ AR A 2 FA N B 50 5 Rk
BOELAE R o E AR [ A
A AH B 42 48 W SE R0 26— 1T« B
i R — AR RO o B SRR AT
Ko PR Wi 3% 1 ) S AT A IR A > K
TES— MR ARBERE BB T
# ARERE 8RN IRAEAE o kB2

B TR (B S B RORIEUN R
2015 2014
— TR PU4E
HKS$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HE#EIT
466.2 975.0
23.6 413

VLY A F R BRI
SfC B A KUHEE T 45 1 B 2 AL
HEL 2 SIS T R U JL 5 7
A B R AE AR I By B T
A BLITAT B P 5
SERMA - WRFIBLE R AL
REIERBELE -

AR B A A B R UL - R A
B TEAR 2 B B 4 LA o ASE ]
A B 4 1 % ) A P DA v s B R S 4
7 SOEAT B -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015
42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)
The exposure of the Group’s contractual undiscounted
cash flow for the financial liabilities and their
contractual maturity dates are as follows:

209
BE-F—HFE+—H=1+—HI14FE
42 eHEAMERE(E)

(0 "EBELERE(E)
7 4 (9] <5 Rl 15 T P 0 R AT BB
G MEHLEFIHE W

On demand
or less than
90 days 91 days to 1 year to Over
RERY, 1year 5 years 5 years Total
H190H 9IBEIE 15555 SENE it
HK$ Million HKS Million HKS Million HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BE®T BEBT [ 390 [ 350 [ 390
At 315t December, 2015 R-B-EE1tA=t-H
Bank and other borrowings* HGUEL 1,789.9 8824 44992 - 71715
Trade and other payables B4 RN SR 1615 - - - 1615
Amounts due to a holding K—[FFER A
company FH 57 - - - 57
Amounts due to associates U N 5.5 - - - 55
Amounts due to joint ventures RABNAFE 0.1 - - - 0.1
Notes Ty 85.0 1258 3,734.2 - 3,945.0
Guarantees* o 14.6 1140 139 - 1425
Financial liabilities at fair value FRBGRSEATEERR
through profitor loss ZEmafE 177.9 - - - 1779
At 315t December, 2014 R-Z—WEFZR=1—H
Bank and other horrowings* @[%ﬁ&%f%% 3,99.1 640.0 34238 - 8,059.9
Trade and other payables B 5 RN SR 26522 - - - 2,652.2
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries AH?W%’A A R
and a holding company YN 114 - - - 114
Amounts due to associates ﬁ’%/A Iﬁ 54 - - - 5.4
Amounts due to joint ventures RASNTHE 75.1 = = = 75.1
Notes L 89.9 1329 4157.5 - 4360.3
Guarantees* R 113 17.1 38 - 32
Financial liabilities at fair value FRRRRERATEERR
through profitor loss ZEmAf 66.6 - - - 66.6
& Bank and other borrowings with repayment on demand clause g B e B SRR AR A0 SC 2 SRAT S A 1 £

are classified as on demand in the above analysis although the
demand clause has not been exercised.

* The amounts included above for guarantees are the maximum
amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantees.

T Ll 23 AT v 0 R e SR AERE o SR
LIRS AR BATHE o

o U EREZHEARBAA T A S —
J7 AT R 1) A 4 I8 2R I 2 AR v 2 oK 4
e
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

43. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

WE—F—HFE+ A=+ —H IR
43. HEKEB AT

On 25th June, 2015, the Group disposed of two indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries (“Disposal”) engaged in
property holding business and investment of securities
business respectively to an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of AKL, which is a joint venture of the Group
with a net realised gain on disposal of HK$15.9 million.
The Disposal does not constitute a disposal of business and
accordingly the gain on disposal is eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the joint venture.

The details of the disposal of subsidiaries are stated below.

HE—HEANAZTHE > ALE LS
4 (] 0 T 2 45 W) 3 B R BB S 2
k2 EME R ([ HHEHEIE]) > TAE
B — W58 AFAKLE &2 —RHEEE
Mg~ o 2 AR B IAR R 25 15.9
TEETT o R S IE A A TH RS
& Bt HERBCREBEAEERZS
BN Al 2 REAR OB o

H R 28 R 2 FEAERSANT o

HK$ Million
A E#HETT
Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE
Investment property* EVS-C/E 4 640.0
Deposits for acquisition of property, WIS ~ R R 2
plant and equipment o 1.4
Trade and other receivables 5 5 Be H A REUSCGHRIE 0.1
Trade and other payables B 5 K HABRE AT KT (1.0)
Deferred tax liabilities R AEA TE B A (32.8)
607.7
Total consideration RAUE (640.5)
Transaction costs 52 5 AR 1.0
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o B R W 2 Wi (31.8)
Unrealised gain ARSI 5 15.9
Net realised gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B W) 2 A B i TR AR (15.9)

The net cash inflow arising on disposal was the cash
consideration of HK$640.5 million.

* The investment property was revalued before the Disposal and
the fair value gain was HK$203.2 million, which is included in
the amount of HK$419.0 million of net increase in fair value of
investment properties in note 7.

8 B 15 BL G A R 2 B8 (UH 640.5
F BT
© B th B R T A AT

BN 25203.2 F EH#TT » Rt AMEE7 A&
H N TEERSINTFAE419.0 8 BT -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

44.

45.

46.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During 2014, Allied Properties Resources Limited (“APRL"),
a subsidiary of the Group, had signed an underwriting
acceptance form (“Acceptance Form”) with an associate of
the Group. According to the Acceptance Form, AUD2.2
million (or equivalent to HK$15.3 million) being the
subscription amount owed by APRL to the associate for the
subscription of shares in an Australian listed company was
offset against the indebtedness owed by the associate to
AP Finance Limited, a subsidiary of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
guarantees as follows:

BE-F—HFE+—H=1+—HI14FE
44. FEFRERS

i AR AL E KB A F Allied
Properties Resources Limited (I APRL ) i
AR AR B — R N B T L B B AN SR A%
(TR RAE ) o MBI RME > APRLEL
AR — [HIL I L Tl 2 ) 2 JB A T A O B
N Z2.27H BIRTT (S E N 5.3 ik
JC) AR RNOE > BEZ I E N ] A5 KA AR
Bft & /A W AP Finance Limited 2 fE B8

45. AREE
REREHIR > AREEEER ZRENR -

2015 2014
—g-EE T
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT HEWIT

Indemnities on banking guarantee BT — M B HEN
made available to a regulatory body SRAT RS TR B IR - 1.5

Financial guarantees under loan BB ENZ

guarantee business* B R 139.2 30.2
139.2 31.7
& The Group had provided guarantees to lenders of its loan guarantee * A E RS TR BET 2 &) > IR

customers to guarantee the repayment of debts owed by the loan
guarantee customers to their lenders. At 31st December, 2015,
the outstanding guarantee amount was HK$139.2 million (2014:
HK$30.2 million).

i B AR 2 AR i I LB 2 S o A
F—hEFTHA=1—H » ZEEBZERE
139.2 B L (ZF—IU4E : 30.2H S T) -

COMMITMENTS 46. i
(@) Capital Commitments (@ BARAE
2015 2014
—E-FHF e S UGS
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BERETT [ER- A
Capital expenditure contracted CER A ERAE
but not provided for in the LG BB HR R A Y
consolidated financial statements GRS 3.0 16.3
Capital expenditure authorised but  CAZHEMH R AEL:
not contracted for in the BRI
consolidated financial statements EARRSZ 155.0 =
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46. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Operating Lease Arrangements

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

46. 7ENE (&)

(b) EEBENRH

As lessee

Minimum lease payments under

operating leases recognised
for the year

Land and buildings

Others

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

TEAARFIN

2015 2014
—B-HF T
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBT HEW G

TAARAE BERERR A B

HESFA 2 I

FH&) 2 E

b S S 179.9 214.7
HAthy 0.2 13.7
180.1 228.4

TR AR - AR BARRAS W] R A8
BARATHY T B 2 S A 2 A AR
ARYE B ARFH A FIEA T

as follows:
2015 2014
—E-REF T4
Land and Land and
Buildings Others Buildings Others
T REF Hith i BT HoAts
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBET BEET X X
Within one year N 158.1 0.1 211.9 8.2
In the second to FBER AR
fifth year inclusive (B4 H W) 149.6 - 3712 0.2
Over five years TAEM B - - 39.1 -
307.7 0.1 622.2 8.4

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by
the Group for its office premises and office equipment.
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from
one to five years. The lease commitments include
rental payable to a holding company of HK$0.4
million (2014: HK$0.1 million), an associate of
HK$1.9 million (2014: HK$5.8 million) and a joint
venture of HK$33.1 million (2014: HK$15.1 million).

KT AT SRR AN AR M s A E W)
RN E BT 2 f 4 o FHAYZ
EM—RGRE S — S TAEARSE - fHE
RS 0GB AT — M A Bl 2 L4
0AFEEIL(—E—VU4E : 018 &
WoT) ~ AT — MBS AR 2 H41.9
HHEEIT (F V4 : 5.8 [ Bk
Jt) MIES—H A E A F 2 4331
HEB T (O E P4 - 15.1 @3 B
JG) °
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

46. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Operating Lease Arrangements (Cont’d)
As lessor
Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$216.1 million (2014: HK$205.7 million). The
property held has committed tenants with lease terms
and rentals are fixed at one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
46. 7iE (&)

(b) HEHNLTHE)
1EA N
FER B W S A 521617
Bk T (B —U4E : 205.7 1 B
Jt) o sz Y2 e AP A&
F > TSR R E 2 A — 2
ﬁz o

TR IR - AR B R B R A
AR A FIR B P 5T 2 5 4

2015 2014

—B-RF T4

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BHEET A EHETT

Within one year A—4ER 155.7 164.4
In the second to fifth year inclusive 25 — 245 TL4F (145 5 E W 4F) 81.7 86.3
237.4 250.7

The lease commitments include rental receivable from
a holding company of HK$5.9 million (2014: HK$0.9
million), associates of HK$0.1 million (2014: HK$0.1
million) and a director of the Company of HK$4.1
million (2014: HK$3.4 million).

(c) Loan Commitments

PR RS L6 Bl — I FE R s w) 2 L
£5.9H @\t ( F U4 : 09H
BWOD) ~ MRS AR 2401 H
BT (U —P04E - 0.1 H E ki oe)
KBNS FEHZ A 4.1 H &
Jo(E—U4 : 3.4F EWn) o

(0 BEFEE

2015 2014

—E-—FRF R4

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BHEBT HEE T

Within one year AN 1,021.7 1,611.6
In the second to fifth year inclusive 45 — 255 FL4F (45 & W 4F) 135.7 —
1,157.4 1,611.6
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46. COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

(d) Other Commitments

On 16th December, 2015, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group entered into the sale and
purchase agreement to acquire approximately 23.9%
of the total issued share capital of APAC Resources
Limited, which is listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1104), at a consideration
of approximately HK$484.0 million. A refundable
deposit of approximately HK$48.4 million, being
10% of the consideration, was paid upon the signing
of the sale and purchase agreement.

The balance payment of approximately HK$435.6
million, being 90% of the consideration would be
paid at completion. The transaction was completed
on 29th February, 2016.

47. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group under provident funds managed by independent
trustees.

The retirement benefit cost charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents contributions paid
and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the schemes. Where there are employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the terms of the schemes,
the contributions payable by the Group are reduced by the
amount of forfeited employer’s contributions.

The schemes have been closed in December 2000 to new
employees as a consequence of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance introduced by the Hong Kong
Government.

From 1st December, 2000 onwards, new staff in Hong
Kong joining the Group are required to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The Group
is required to contribute 5% of the employees’ salaries,
while the employees are required to contribute 5% of their
salaries to the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefit schemes operated by the PRC government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

WE—F—HFE+ A=+ —H IR
46. AIE(E)

(d) HfthEig

RFE—FAEF+ZH+NE > AEE
2 M3 A EMHE A FFT L B ek
DA A 8 e R VR AT PR ] (— P A B
TR ER BT Z AT > BRAAREE
1104) ZFBE BITALI23.9% > 14
fE#)484.0F BT - WRELESL
48.4H & oo (RIEZ10%) > B
ZR] B G kRS A o

R AH 4 435.6 A # oo (BIfLE 2
90% ) #% 1A TE BLIRE SZ A © §% 38 o i
F—NETH T ILHER »

47. EEEF

AR Iy P A 7 B R B R e Rl
FOBRAE G H o 52551 # 2 B B AL
R PR > BSLAT IR B S AR REA F
P B2 N4 -

F A7 5 18 i 22 1R AR R I B S 5 AR 4R
P 2t R R P 4 S B 3T A5 B A 3
A o i B 5 22 B R RAR A AR
HEtE > AARIERT B 2 ek > A4 R
AR R - A & -

7S 7 v SRR AT 5 ) B < A
Bl > AR EMR —FTFE+ ZARER
TR B AR Al w8 o

H o RmETE T H—H#E > LR EED
TR AR A [ 2 B TR e $4 28 A B il
NEEEEH (MRS ) o AREH KR
B4 B ZE I AR R EE A E RN E B
5% PR o

AR R AE P B S 2 B 4 ) 2 AR B 2
I B A B 2 B AR AR AR A 2 B o
IS BB 20 W) T 4% L AR A T 4 T
BRI T K SR BRAAR A o
AR BRI AR A ) 2 SRR 2 A i 4
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Annual Report 2015
=% - R



for the year ended 31st December, 2015

47. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONT’D)

Expenses recognised in profit or loss for the contributions
to retirement benefit schemes for the current year
amounted to HK$123.1 million (2014: HK$110.0 million).
The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in the course
of the year ended 31st December, 2015 was HK$0.5
million (2014: HK$1.6 million).

Under the employee ownership scheme of SHK (“EOS”),
which was formally adopted by SHK on 18th December,
2007, selected employees or directors of SHK group
(the “Selected Grantees”) were awarded shares in SHK.
Following management’s recommendation of SHK, shares
of SHK were granted to the Selected Grantees subject to
various terms including, amongst other things, the vesting
scale whereby awarded shares of SHK will vest and
become unrestricted in various vesting periods. During the
year, 0.3 million shares (2014: 1.7 million shares) of SHK
were awarded to Selected Grantees under the EOS. The fair
value of the services rendered (by reference to the market
value of awarded shares at grant dates) as consideration of
the shares awarded during the year was HK$2.2 million
(2014: HK$8.7 million) which will be amortised to profit
or loss during the vesting period. The amount expensed
during the year in respect of shares awarded under the
EOS was HK$0.5 million (2014: HK$10.0 million).

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 23rd July, 2012, it was resolved that a director’s service
agreement entered between SHK group and a director
of SHK’s subsidiary for a term of ten years be approved.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement,
SHK group has granted the director of a subsidiary an
option (“Option”) to subscribe for or purchase up to 20%
of the issued capital of a new company (“Newco”) to
be established to hold all equity interests in subsidiaries
incorporated or to be incorporated in the PRC for money
lending businesses in the PRC (“PRC Subsidiaries”) at an
exercise price which is determined based on the aggregate
carrying amount of shareholders equity and shareholders
loans proportional to the shareholding to be taken up by
the director of a subsidiary at the time of exercise of the
Option. Prior to the period before the Option becomes
vested, the director of a subsidiary is also entitled a bonus
calculated based on the performance of PRC Subsidiaries.
The transaction constituted a very substantial disposal and
a connect transaction and its details were disclosed in the
Company’s circular dated 29th June, 2012.

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
47. BERA(E)

A AF B AR AR R 44 R 7E 1 2 T R
ZEMA123 1 BB ( U4
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WIEE RN TR EFE+— H+/\HIE
KRN 2 HroE g B A w1l ([ 8 &
AR HEA SH8) ) > st A > K08 E
B ([ R ) 5T S i
By o BB HBHEER > nEEK
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

47. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONT’D)

48.

The fair value of the Option on grant date of 23rd July,
2012 was HK$255.1 million which was calculated using
the Black-Scholes pricing model and carried out by Norton
Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent and qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. The
inputs into the model include an underlying asset value
of PRC Subsidiaries as at the grant date of HK$1,018.1
million, risk free rate of 2.74%, volatility of 39.25% and
expected option life of 5 years. No share based payment
expense is recognised in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December, 2015
(2014: Nil) since one of the vesting conditions for the
Option is the successful completion of the establishment
of the Newco, the date of which, in the opinion of the
management, could not yet be estimated with reasonable
certainty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
investment properties, hotel property, land and buildings
and properties held for sale with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$6,153.8 million (2014: HK$5,658.1 million),
listed securities belonging to the Group with fair values
of HK$nil (2014: HK$69.3 million), and listed securities
belonging to margin clients with fair values of HK$nil
(2014: HK$1,563.5 million) together with certain securities
in respect of a listed subsidiary with investment cost of
HK$276.6 million (2014: HK$276.6 million) were pledged
to secure loans and general banking facilities to the extent
of HK$1,242.4 million (2014: HK$3,093.0 million) granted
to the Group. Facilities amounting to HK$584.4 million
(2014: HK$859.9 million) were utilised at the end of the
reporting period.

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

47.

48.

EBEER (&)

WA 2 N THEE AR B = — A
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Wy (AR AT o B i A R
FF [ B B S D A B2 H A 22 MR B A
1,018.1 H & ~ MEREA%R2.74% ~
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B R —-FET A=+ B IR
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

During the year, the Group entered into following

wWE_L-HnFET_H=1t—HIFE
49. BEALR B REH
GRS SR UNS S AT DN

Note:  Apart from the tenancy agreement entered into by
a subsidiary of the Company and the Sharing of
Administrative Services and Management Services
Agreement entered into by the Company and a subsidiary
with the holding company, none of the above related
party transactions constitutes a discloseable connected

transaction as defined in the Listing Rules.

significant transactions with related parties. 5
(@ Summary of transactions @ REH=E
(Income)/Expense
CINVET:
2015 2014
—E-hfF —F 4
HK$ Million HKS$ Million
BEET X
A holding company —EZERAE
Share of management service JREAG 5 BRI
expenses (Note) 2 (GEMR) 27.2 24.2
Share of administrative expenses (Note) MEIETTEE F (GEF) 0.6 0.6
Rent, property management and air- 4 ~ YIEE IR RE X
conditioning fee and other property FL At P SE A B ARG A
related service fee income (Note) (GEfF) (6.5) (6.5)
Fellow subsidiaries BRMEBAR
Interest expense .52 H 13.4 14.8
Associates BN E
Interest income B A (34.8) (10.1)
Facility arrangement fee income and ~ Bi& % HE# WA K
underwriting fee income (EEEE- O 0.5) (5.2)
Insurance premiums received in the SRt OR B QR AR 255
course of provision of insurance A IR
brokerage services 15 B 0.1) (1.3)
Rent, property management and 4 ~ PRI K
air-conditioning fee income LR LN 1.5) (0.3)
Rent and property management fee 4 K W) B 4.7 4.9
Manager’s fee RPN (2.5) (2.3)
Service fees income R e A (3.6) -
Brokerage expenses KesL A 1.7 -
Service fees expenses 5 2 ) 4.2 =
Insurance premiums paid EAt PR 5.7 —
Joint ventures EE AT
Administration, management, P R R R
consultancy and agency fee income fCHEZ A (12.2) (15.8)
Rent, property management and 4 ~ PSR K
air-conditioning fee ZE TR 21.7 19.7
Manager’s fee EHAEH (1.3) (1.4)
Consideration received from H B R 2 W E WO
disposal of subsidiaries Z g (640.5) =
Director of the Company FARES
Rental income GEEA N (3.9) (3.9)

i

WA 2 ] — [H] Wi o 2 W) T 7 2 AR 65
ok A B A A ) e — [ g 2 ) BELAZE e
N IR SL 2 AT B R HRARES  fi
Wiha sk > DAL BR A =22 5 S AS JE
TR R B R RE 2 2T 4 R B 2 5
5 o
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONT’D)

(b) Key management personnel compensation

Short-term benefits FaHAAE A
Post-employment benefits IRARAEF

Certain key management personnel of the Group
received remuneration from the Company’s holding
company or its wholly-owned subsidiary. The
holding company provided management services to
the Group and charged the Group a fee, which has
been included in the share of management service
expenses as disclosed above in part (a) of this note,
for services provided by those personnel as well as
others who are not key management personnel of the
Group.

The management service fee is calculated by
reference to the time devoted by the management
personnel on the affairs of the Group and can be
apportioned to the above key management personnel.
The total of such apportioned amounts, which has
been included in the key management personnel
compensation above for 2015, is HK$18.7 million
(2014: HK$17.4 million).

BE_F-AF T A=t —HIEFE
49. BEATR S R&EER(E)

b) FEEFEEAESHE

2015 2014
—E—RF R4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT ER:Y
54.4 47.5

0.5 0.4

54.9 47.9

ASE A T R B BREA A Rl
e 2% ) L 4 g 2 m AL 5
FREIBLN ) 1) A SR SR RN B Y B A
RS > %8 O IERAE LR RE (a) BT
I 2 MBS BB B > LA AR
B5h 25 ERAE TN B B HAt R A 4R
LIRSS 82PN = P/t

SHEE TS UUETE A BA AL EE
BT R R E 2% > KT DL
THEEZEEFEEEANE - 250
Fil AR AE Y 2 — H A8, 7 H BT
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(CONT’D)

(c) At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

the following material balances with related parties:

A holding company — [
Associates L E /N
Joint ventures SN
Fellow subsidiaries [A] 25 B A )
Director of the Company AN EER

The above amounts are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group in the
following ways:

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates | /N N
Amounts due from joint ventures A% /A 7 KK
Trade and other payables

YN =Nk e
RGBS Al HIE

Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to joint ventures

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries /X [r] 2 [t & /A 7] 2K JE
Notes held by fellow subsidiaries [ & [t &g /A Fl A < 4%

Notes:

i) As at 31st December, 2015, the amounts due from (to)
associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand, except for an unsecured short-term loan to an
associate of HK$44.8 million, which bears interest at 6% per
annum and is due for repayment on 30th June, 2016.

(i) As at 31st December, 2015, the amounts due from (to) joint
ventures, fellow subsidiaries and a holding company are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

5 5 B HA USRI

52 5 B Fo At EA K IH
Amount due to a holding company /K — [H]#E /A & 2 E

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
49. BEALRH R&EER(E)

(0 RBEEHRR FEEREEALEU

NEREEER :
2015 2014
—2-RF T
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT B EWBIC
(5.7) 6.3)
233.3 177.9
9.1 (65.3)
(210.7) (217.3)
1.3) (0.5)
24.7 (111.5)

At BRI AR 5 05 AR AR I 2 &

GEMBRUERANALE
2015 2014
—E-FF —E—4E
Notes HK$ Million HK$ Million
A fif BHERETT HEWHIC
2.7 3.0
(i) 236.2 180.7
(i) 9.2 9.9
(1.4) (0.8)
(i) (5.7) (6.2)
(i) (5.5) (5.4)
(i) 0.1) (75.1)
(i) - (5.2)
(210.7) (212.4)
24.7 (111.5)

SR

(i) REFB—HET-HA=1—H > Z%

F () /A w) 308 A A4 - 8
JEN B R R AE R o M T — I A
A48 F ) H T MR A 3 B (AR 6
AR EFTE > WA —E NN
H =4 H @) R4 -

T 4
=T

¢
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

49.

50.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(CONT’D)

(d) During the year, (i) short-term loan of HK$1.6
million (2014: HK$6.3 million) was advanced to an
associate; (ii) long-term loans of HK$340.0 million
(2014: HK$4.0 million) were advanced to associates
and HK$340.0 million (2014: HK$14.3 million) were
repaid by associates; (iii) 1-year shareholder loan
of HK$1,061.6 million (2014: Nil) was advanced
to an associate and HK$1,061.6 million (2014: Nil)
was repaid by an associate (note 15); and (iv) 6%
unsecured term loan of HK$nil (2014: HK$41.2
million) was advanced to an associate and HK$63.9
million (2014: HK$68.0 million) was repaid by an
associate.

(e) During the year, a non-interest bearing loan of
HK$75.0 million (2014: Nil) was repaid to a joint
venture.

(f) During the year 2014, short-term loans of HK$300.0
million were advanced from a fellow subsidiary and
HK$600.0 million were repaid to a fellow subsidiary.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16th December, 2015, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement to acquire approximately 23.9% of the total
issued share capital of APAC Resources Limited, which
is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1104), at a consideration of approximately HK$484.0
million (“Acquisition”). On 29th February, 2016, all of
the conditions of the sale and purchase agreement were
fulfilled and the Acquisition was completed. Following
the completion, the Group owned approximately 23.9%
equity interest in APAC Resources Limited.

BE_F-AF T A=t —HIEFE
49. BEATR S R&EER(E)

50.

) R () B 1 — N F S

(e)

ERT.6 0 EmEIT (- F—UE : 6.3
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B 340.0 A B o (F— U4 ¢
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Amounts due from

Current assets

subsidiaries

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from

subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Amount due to a holding company
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

ERBRE
AT
A 72 B
0 NS

RBEE

B 5 B At WG IR
W) 2 ] R

He kBREFHEY

RBEE

B 5y Je HAtEAS SRR
R — MR R 7R
R e 2 vl

REBEEFE

REERABAR

BRAK it
JieA
it i

B

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23rd March, 2016 and are signed on its

behalf by:

Arthur George Dew
IERE
Director

HF

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

51.

KA A Z BRI &
2015 2014
—B-RF T NE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT HE I
0.5 0.5
1,403.7 1,223.5
9,292.4 9,681.0
10,696.6 10,905.0
0.7 0.7
1,339.6 589.8
677.1 260.8
2,017.4 851.3
1.7 1.4
5.7 4.9
57.8 58.8
65.2 65.1
1,952.2 786.2
12,648.8 11,691.2
4,250.5 4,216.2
8,398.3 7,475.0
12,648.8 11,691.2

AN E BB AR DL R AL g i —F — N4
=A A= A KA 8 > A T 5

EHAREE

Li Chi Kong
Z=5HI
Director

HF
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At 1st January, 2014

Shares repurchased and
cancelled

Transfer upon the abolition of
par value under the new
Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance

Dividend paid

Proposed final dividend

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

At 31st December,
2014

Adjustment to 2014 final
dividend

Dividend paid

Interim dividend declared

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company

At 31st December,
2015

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
owners of the Company at 31st December, 2015 are
represented by accumulated profits and dividend reserve
totalling HK$8,398.3 million (2014: HK$7,475.0 million).

for the year ended 31st December, 2015

52. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

REZ—NF—A—H
AE)E
ey
R A
S
e
i
EfHE
RS
AR AR ER

et

A=A
FZH=F-H
“F RN E

VA
EfBE
RS
AR AR ER

WAl

S
e

BE_F-HFE+_A=+—HILFE

52. ARTE 2 f#E

Capital

Share redemption  Accumulated Dividend
premium reserve profits reserve Total
RORE EARERE CHp RER®E act
HKS Million HKS$ Million HKS Million HKS Million HKS Million
ELLom AEkT AEkT [ S L1
2,670.8 184.9 5,967.5 306.1 9,129.3
- - 0.1) = 0.1
(2,670.8) (184.9) - - (2,855.7)
- - - (306.1) (306.1)
- - (374.1) 374.1 -
- - 1,507.6 - 1,507.6
- - 7,100.9 3741 74750
- - (1.0 1.0 -
- - - (375.1) (375.1)
- - (409.1) 409.1 -
- - 1,298.4 - 12984
- - 7,989.2 409.1 8,398.3

RoF—AE+_HA=+—H  AXH
15 i NN o Pl - e
8,398.3 A Es L (- FE—U4F : 7,475.0A
B ) 1Y B R K B A 250 -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BEF—HET_H=T—HILFE

53. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 53. RIERRZIRE
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group AEEEEEAFERESNFZEWES
that have material non-controlling interests GRS
The consolidated profit or loss allocated to non-controlling N BT IR IR i 2 A 1E AR SO

interests during the year and the accumulated non-
controlling interests in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31st December, 2015 are as

SE R S H 2 AR
WRKAFHZ LRI T

follows:
Profit allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
AWFFERER 2 EF RatFERER
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RfE ZUFE ZB-RFE TNF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEET T BT BEAET HEET

SHK FaTey BrE 1,981.7 1,051.2 11,628.4 10,499.5
Other subsidiaries having HAHEA I

non-controlling interests W te 2 B A F - 0.3 7.4 7.4

1,981.7 1,051.5 11,635.8 10,506.9
Summarised consolidated financial information of SHK is B EE LR G B SRR EE S T o
set out below.
2015 2014
—B-hF R4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEEBT A TS

Current assets it Bl 17,612.0 21,746.8
Non-current assets JE B & 14,757.1 11,014.0
Current liabilities TE A S (2,779.9) (7,047.2)
Non-current liabilities I E & fE (7,998.4) (7,046.3)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests 37 /s 42 e 5 22 Js B 227.9 82.0
Revenue from continuing operations & [ fFAEAS S 27 2k A 4,174.1 4,177.9
Revenue from discontinued operations 78 [ B4 1F 4885 2675 2 A 603.5 1,073.3
Profit for the year $¢WMU

— continuing operations FRE AR A% 2T 889.5 1,409.4

— discontinued operations — E‘%}ﬂ:%“%ﬁ% 3,228.8 388.8
Other comprehensive expenses AR BE HAt 2 TH]

for the year 2 H (249.2) (197.5)
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 54. T EMBATEN
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at RoFE—HFET_H=1T—H  &AAFE
31st December, 2015 which have their principal place of LB ITEHAN N FEME AR E
operations in Hong Kong are set out below: BN -

Proportion of ownership interest

Paid up BERER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT AR/ to the Group Principal activity
WELAR ERERE WELARERE rEEES IREH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—g-1f —“ZF-UFE Z2-EFf —FT[f
HK$ % % % %
T
Alaston Development Limited USS1 100 100 100 100 Property holding
B EREEL/E S
Allied Real Estate Agency 2 100 100 100 100 Real estate agency
Limited HuE U

Bt A s A R R A )

AP Administration Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Provision of management
and consultancy
services

AR (AL P T P R

AP Corporate Services Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Provision of corporate

services
R RIS

AP Development Limited 2 100* 100* 100 100 Investment holding

B e MU B R A R BB

AP Diamond Limited US$1 100 100 100 100 Property trading and

EF holding
WISERE K%
AP Emerald Limited US$1 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
1% BRI
AP Finance Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Money lending
fi
AP Property Management 2 100 100 100 100 Building management
Limited e
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_EZ—HFETZA=1T—HILFEE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 54. S EHBATER (E)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BERERR 2L
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT KRR/ to the Group Principal activity
WEAF EERA WEAREA FEEES FRRE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—R-1F Z“ZWF —B-1EF ZEFNF
HK$ % % % %
3
Best Melody Development 5,000 100 100 100 100 Property holding
Limited YR
i B R R ]
Conrad Security Limited 1 100 100 100 100 Security and guarding
BRREARR services
G {8
First Asian Holdings Limited 2 100 100 32 32 Investment holding
IR AR BELER
Florich Development Limited 10,000 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
REBRARA BB
Front Sail Limited 5,000 100 100 100 100 Property holding
A R A SRR S
Gilmore Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
ESCEIES
Hillcrest Development Limited 20 100 100 100 100 Property holding
ERRCETE S
Hi-Link Limited 200 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
Integrated Custodian Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
SRR/ S
Itso Limited 2 100 100 55 55  Investment holding,
securities trading and
financial services
PR EFRER
R
Jaffe Development Limited US$1 100 100 100 100 Property holding
L ERRCEE S
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE
54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 54. XEMEARER (&)
(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BERERR 2L
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT N to the Group Principal activity
WELAR ERRE WELARERE FEEES FREH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—g2-1F “F-mUFE Z2-1F —“Z[F
HK$ % % % %
T
Kalix Investment Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
EREEL/ES
Kennedy (Nominees) Limited 10,000 100 100 55 55 Nominee services
REAMRHE
Mainford Investment Limited 1 100 100 100 100 Property holding
HREEH R ERER/ES
Mightyton Limited 10,000 100 100 100 100 Property holding
EREER/E S
Oakfame Investment Limited 2 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
BEBEHRAA BELER
Ontone Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Hotel operations and
FIREEA RN property holding
LS Y SRk /ES
Plentiwind Limited 15,000,002 100 100 55 55 Investment holding and
trading
RERERIEE
Polyking Services Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Building maintenance
R s A PR 2 and cleaning services
TR SOF R
Protech Property Management 5,000 100 100 100 100 Building management
Limited and security guarding
TR E BA R A A services
SR SIVE (e
San Pack Properties Limited 10 100 100 100 100 Property holding
I B REA R AR EREER/E S
A ALLIED PROPERTIES (1K) LIMITED Annua | epont 201
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 54. S EHBATER (E)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BERERR 2L
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT KRR/ to the Group Principal activity
WELAR ERRE WELARERE FEEES FREH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—g2-1f “Z-QNFE Z2-1EF —ZT[F
HK$ % % % %
T
Scienter Investments Limited 20 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
and provision of
loan finance
BEPER BRI A
SHK Finance Limited 150,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
it B el A fE$t
SHK Financial Data Limited 100 51 51 28 28 Financial information
HB A A A PR A 7 services
FIES itk o7
SHK Investment Services 1,000,000 100 100 55 55  Asset holding and
Limited leasing
BENELHE
SHK Securities Limited 20 100 100 55 55  Asset holding and leasing
BESHELHE
Sierra Joy Limited 2 100 100 100 100 Property holding
EREER/ES
Sun Hung Kai & Co. 8,731,004,462 55 55 55 55 Investment holding
Limited** Ereceidle
HUBHEA PR A+
Sun Hung Kai Credit Limited 250,000,000 100 100 48 32 Money lending
(formerly known as Top Asia [Eic
Finance Limited)
BB EEA IR A (R Top
Asia Finance Limited)
Sun Hung Kai Securities 60,000 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
(Overseas) Limited BErE
FB RS (50 AR
Sun Hung Kai Securities 3,000,000 100 100 55 55 Provision of trustee
(Trustees) Limited services
HBAEE S (fF50) AR A HRAE(F REMA

Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BWE_F-HFET_A=+—HILFE
54. TEMBATER(H)

(CONT’D)
Proportion of ownership interest
Paid up BEERERER LA
issued Held by
ordinary the Company/
share capital subsidiaries Attributable
Subsidiaries BRERT N to the Group Principal activity
WELAR ERRE WELARERE FEEES FREH
2015 2014 2015 2014
—g2-1F “F-mUFE Z2-1F —“Z[F
HK$ % % % %
T
Sun Hung Kai Strategic 2 100 100 55 55 Investment holding,
Capital Limited securities trading and
HBERIE EAA R ] financial services
BT - BEHER
SR
Sun Hung Kai Structured 137,500,000 100 100 55 55 Securities trading and
Finance Limited provision of loan
FBAEA A AR A finance
aigr B A MR R
Sun Hung Kai Venture 2 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
Capital Limited REHR
Texgulf Limited 20 100 100 55 55  Property holding
ERERT/E S
Tung Wo Investment 10,000 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
Company, Limited HEHE
RIAMBEARAR
United Asia Finance Limited  1,502,218,418 58 58 32 32 Consumer financing
S S B A IRAR CYN b
Wah Cheong Development 25,100,000 100 100 55 55  Investment holding
Company, Limited REHR
FEREEARAA
Wineur Secretaries Limited 2 100 100 55 55  Secretarial services
R A RA R AR
Yee Li Ko Investment Limited 58,330,000 100 100 55 55 Property holding
ERR LA RA ERXER/E S

With the exception of Alaston Development Limited,
AP Diamond Limited, AP Emerald Limited and Jaffe
Development Limited, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, all the above subsidiaries were
incorporated in Hong Kong.

% Alaston Development Limited ~ AP
Diamond Limited ~ AP Emerald Limited &
Jaffe Development Limited i 5% & Ji % #¥
st s o - DL B A HEE A R M TE R
B FEMGE -

Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

(CONT’D)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st
December, 2015 which were incorporated and have their
principal place of operations outside Hong Kong are set

54. TEMBAREFR (&)

BB A=t —H o AT
Al LS R S S 1
HUISE 1 BEAM I 2 5% A )

out below: wr
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share BRERR LA
operation capital Held by Attributable
Subsidiaries AL/ BRERT  the Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HELR R EERE  A0E/KELANE AR IERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1F C-F-WNF -E-E§f C-FWF
% % % %
Allied Properties China Limited ~ Cayman Islands Us$1,000 100 100* 100 100 Investment holding
M 1,000%72 BEIR
Allied Properties Resources Limited  British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
FRELHE %% BRER
Boneast Assets Limited British Virgin Islands Usst 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
KRR 1% BRER
Hing Yip Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Uss1 100 100 55 55 Property holding
BERRAR A FRELHE %% LRI
Kenworld Corporation Republic of Liberia Usst 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
TR X7 sk
Kima Pan Asia Offshore Fund Cayman Islands Investment fund
~ Management shares REHE 1,000 US$1 shares 100 - 55 - REES
ER 1,000 1 %7
- Participating shares 7,392,805 USS0.001 shares 100 - 55 -
S5k 7392 805 0001567
~ Class B participating shares 130,780.7344 100 - 55 -
BoKIH Sk US$0.001 shares
130,780.7344i%
0001 %7
Lakewood Development United States of US$1,000 100 100 100 100 Property held for sale
Corporation America 10007 HRLEE
xH
Rossworth Global Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 5 55 Investment holding
ERELHE 1% BEER
Shipshape Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 5 55 Investment holding
ERELNE 3 BRER
SHK Asset Management Holding ~ British Virgin Islands US$3,400,001 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
Limited RRRARE 340000172 BEH
Sing Hing Investment Limited Briish Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 55 55 Property holding
HASEARAR ERELHE 1% Fr
ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.) LIMITED Annual Report 2015
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_F-HF+_A=1t—HILFE

54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

54. TEMBEQREFR (&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L] L it
operation capital Held by Attributable
Subsidiaries AEL/ MRERT  the Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
HEAR FRAES EERE  XDE/HRAARE AREEE IZRE
2015 2014 2015 2014
“8-5F ZF-WF ZR-EF CRF
% % % %
Sun Hung Kai (China) Investment  People's Republic of RMB50,000,000 100 100 5 55 Corporate marketing and
Management Company Limited China B 850,000,0007 investment consultancy
MEE(TR) REEHARAR  FEARIAE [ el
Sun Hung Kai & Co. (BVI) Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 55 55 Financing
KRR b3 HE
Sun Hung Kai Capital Limited British Virgin Islands US$t 100 - 55 - Investment holding
ERELHE 1% BRER
Sun Hung Kai International Bank ~ Brunei Darussalam SGD10,000,000 100 100 55 55 International banking
[Brunei] Limited ok 10,000,000 3% 76 business
BT
Swan Islands Limited British Virgin Islands US$503,000,001 100 100 5 55 Investment holding
FRRLRE 503,000,001 %7¢ BEH
Swanwick Global Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
KRR k3 BRER
SWAT Securitisation Fund" Luxembourg RMB29,968,900 100 100 55 55 Securitisation fund
ke ARH29,966,9007C Eil 5
Top Marker Limite- British Virgin Islands Us$t - - - - Investment holding
KRELHE k3 BRER
Treasure Rider Limited Cayman Islands US$11,000 86 - 48 - Investment holding
R 11,000 7% BEHR
UA Finance (BV) Limited British Virgin Islands USs1 100 100 32 32 Financing
KRR k3 Ci4
UAF Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 5 55 Investment holding
KRR 1% BEER
Zeal Goal International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$t 100 100 55 55 Investment holding
KRR k3 BRER
LEWRRETRE RSN PeoplesRepublicof  RMB200,000,000 70 70 3 22 Money lending
ARAT China 200,000,007 fik
i AR LA
REEGRB B SRR B Peaple’s Republic of US§60,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
fRLA China 60,000,000%7C fik

g AREHE

Annual Report 2015
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

231

BE_Z—FET_H=1—HILERE

54. TEMBAREFR (&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L § Sl
operation capital Held by Attributable
Subsidiaries e/ BRERT  the Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal actvity
HELT ERAE EERE  XDF/KEAFHE AR IEEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
B2-1f CFE ZB-RF CRNE
% % % %
KEEHE G AR A People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 3 32 Financial consultancy
China AR H1,000,0007 AR
& INe i
K B SRR AT People’s Republicof ~ HK$250,000,000 100 100 3 32 Money lending
China 250,000, 000170 [
GEINR L
T MRS RAR Peoples Republic of  RMB500,000,000 80 80 26 25 Money lending
China ARH500,000,0007 fe
i \RALHE
AR AL MR SRR A R People's Republicof  HK$350,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
China 350,000,000 70 ik
(& INe i
AV AR Bk RAR  People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 32 32 Financial consultancy
China AR H1,000,0007C AHHER
EINE L
(SR (RYDARAT  People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 100 100 32 32 Financial consultancy
China ARH50,000,0007C AR
i \RALHE
BTG SR (LB ERAR  People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 70 70 23 22 Financial consultancy
China AR H1,000,0007 TR
(& INe i
SRR EHA(RIERAA  People’s Republic of RMB25,000,000 100 100 3 32 Financial consultancy
China ARH25,000,0007 AHHER
EINTEIL
REDBIMEESARAR People’s Republic of ~ RMB500,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
China ARH500,000,0007 fe
IS
RETH GO HERAR People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 - 32 - Financial consultancy
China AR H1,000,0007 AR
i AREHE
FRAMBRERMESS  People'sRepublicof  RMB300,000,000 100 100 32 32 Moneylending
HRAA China & H300,000,0007C [
EINE
F R ESAERAR People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 3 32 Financial consultancy
China B H1,000,0007 HHEH

L INSEIL
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BE_F—HE+T_H=+—HILFE

54. TEMBEQREFR (&)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share FRERZ LA
operation capital Held by Attributable
Subsidiaries iYL/ BECHT  the Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal actvity
HEAT EBAEY BERE AL/ WELARE AREEE IERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
Z2-1f CF-NE ZB-3F CFNUE
% % % %
TR VEESARAT  People's Republic of RMB200,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
China & #200,000,0007C ik
GEINE
TR EHARAR  People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 = 3) - Financial consultancy
China ABH1,000,0007 HHER
GEINR
IR BE MEBHARAT  People’s Republicol  RMB200,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
China AR8200,000,0007 fi
N
WRETB G BAAARAT  People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 3 32 Financial consultancy
China B H1,000,0007 HT R
E N
B WA A VR People's Republic of US$50,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
HRALA China 50,000,000%7¢ (a1
EINR
BETRA G AR AR People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 32 32 Financial consultancy
China AR H1,000,0007 AR
i \R LA
VRN SE gt A e A RN Peaple’s Republic of RMB600,000,000 100 100 b)) 32 Money lending
China R #600,000,0007C A&
GEINE
AT VERTHERAT  People’sRepublicol  HK$350,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
China 350,000, 000170 (158
GEINR
THTB A A RAT  People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 - 3 - Financial consultancy
China AEH1,000,0007 BRI
i \R LA
TGS EINERAT  People's Republic of RMBS, 000,000 100 - 32 - Financial consultancy
China B H5,000,0007 HEER
GE N
HBEE R b People’s Republic of RMB50,000,000 100 100 55 55 Asset management
ELERARAA China AEH50,000,0007C KErd
EINE:
TBRRBEIER (BB HMAR  People'sRepublicof  RMB300,000,000 100 100 32 32 Loan guarantee
China B 300,000,000 Sl

iEING ]
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

233

BWE_FHFET A=+ —HIFE
54. TEMBATREN(H)

(CONT’D)
Place of Paid up issued Proportion of ownership interest
incorporation/ ordinary share L] L il
operation capital Held by Attributable
Subsidiaries iR/ BREBT  the Company/subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
(il P RS BERE AL/ WELARE ASEEL ITEH
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-1F CF-NE ZE-IE CFUE
% % % %
TN A R AT People’s Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 32 32 Financial consultancy
China 1,000,000 BB RRY
i \ R
BT ELEERMMESR  People's Republicof  RMB200,000,000 100 100 32 32 Moneylending
HRAH China \E#200,000,0007 [
GiE I |
T T R S B People's Republic of ~ RMB300,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
HRAH China EH300,000,0007 b
G INSE
W AR AR People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 32 32 Financial consultancy
China 1,000,000 BEHRRY
i \RAL AT
Vi B A People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 100 100 3 32 Financial consultancy
HRAH China ARH1,000,0007 BRI
GiE N1
16 0 A Peaple's Republic of  RMB300,000,000 100 100 32 32 Money lending
NEEHERAR China EH300,000,0007 [
G INSE

Kk

These shareholdings represent the proportion of ownership interest
held directly by the Company.

These subsidiaries are listed in Hong Kong and further details about
them are available in their published accounts.

The subsidiary is a fund established and created under Luxembourg
laws. As the Group holds all the issued units of the fund, it is
classified as a subsidiary.

Although the Group has no equity interest in Top Marker Limited, it is
classified as a subsidiary of the Group as the Group can control the
composition of its board and is exposed to its variable returns. The
Group's investment in Top Marker Limited was HK$188.9 million at
the reporting date.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

o RZEE RO RN AN W A B HERE AR 2 H
1 -

o AEINE S A AU BT o A B %A M A
Z FAREREROR A Z B H A -

A 72 WOF g ) 5 LR I AR BB VR T Al 57 2 B
TR AR SE B A P A B T R e B - RIS %
HENBR—HIEAH -

@ HEAAEEE A Top Marker Limited i B ASHE
gt > {E P A A G B R i SE g I AL S SR
TR ) [ e o IR IGO0 A A B T R A
Al o AR A - AL M Top Marker Limited
ZBER188.9T HHETT -

ERFTHN R Ty E R A A
ORI - BRSSO R )
AW E A R o SRR 5 A B
J& A RIFEE G ERIRINITR -
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for the year ended 31st December, 2015

55. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

56.

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates at 31st
December, 2015 are set out below:

HE=

R L o |

=1+—HIEEE

55. FEBENTER

B

TR

—HEF+F A=t HZAERE
OSFEVERHNR

Place of Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights
incorporation/ RERRERREEZLA
operation Held by Attributable
Associates Rl subsidiaries to the Group Principal activity
BERT EBAES WELRARA REEES IREHR
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-RF  “EF-NE ZR-1F TN
% % % %
Dragon Mining Limited* Australia 24 24 4 24 Cold producer
] HERLER
Sun Hung Kai Financial British Vngn Islands 30 - 17 - Wealth management and
Group Limited BRE G h R brokerage business
MEEERERARAR P A
Tanami Gold NL* Australia 32 32 32 32 Gold mining operations and
B mineral exploration
R RBEH RIRE IR
Tian An China Investments Hong Kong 49 49 49 49 Investment holding
Company Limited** & REHR
REHASEHRA T
3 These associates are listed in Australia and further details about & PSRN A FIE N BT - A B A R 2

them are available in their published accounts.

**  This associate is listed in Hong Kong and further details are available

in its published accounts.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURE

Particulars of the Group’s principal joint venture at 31st
December, 2015 are set out below:

56.

—RHE IR 2 WREH A -
A A TR BT AR R E

k%

FEEEUR LA 2 HRH A
L%Fﬁﬂ”ﬁ)ﬁ%%?&ﬁiﬁ‘ﬂiifﬁ%ﬁﬁ
HORE > s AR SR I
ARG y,.é,,_-%/\j o HEHFH S5 th FLAdG
BATFIRN - &S ERRRITRE -
TEGELNTEN
RoE—RE T = HZAERE
HEBEAFERIT

Place of Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights
incorporation/ FRERZRAZRZ U
Form of business  operation Held by Attributable
Joint venture structure R subsidiary to the Group Principal activity
RELT RRRRYA  RBHEM WEAARE AREES IERE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1f “F-E —%-1f e Salllki2
% % % %
Allied Kajima Limited Incorporated ~ Hong Kong 50 50 50 50  Property and investment
UL ik holding
WE LSRR

Annual Report 2015
=% - R



Results

Revenue*
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings
per share

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity
Non-controlling interests

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

*

£
A

AR B 1

TR 7 -
AL AR
R £t

REREA
BRI

BERAR

B
A

s AR AR
TRt

A A R
FEfG 1 42

Financial year ended 31st December,

BE+tZA=t-BLUMHFE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
R ZEF-_f —F-=F —F-NE Z—B-1F
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
ER-AE HEBIT HEBIT HEBIT BHEATRT
4,047.9 4,233.0 5,092.5 5,645.0 5,198.0
2,676.8 2,602.6 2,477.9 3,075.3 6,104.2
1,950.5 1,710.4 1,594.4 2,023.8 4,122.5
726.3 892.2 883.5 1,051.5 1,981.7
2,676.8 2,602.6 2,477.9 3,075.3 6,104.2
27.15 24.67 23.44 29.75 60.52
HK cents #{ll HK cents #fill HK cents #fill HK cents #fll HK cents &4l

At 31st December,

R+=B=t+—H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F——F ZF--F ZF-=F “"F-NFE C—B-FF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
ER-E R HEBIC HE®IT BHEATRT
38,235.0 41,960.9 44,747.6 49,977.0 50,817.3
(10,040.9) (11,721.6) (12,892.5) (15,187.8) (11,510.5)
28,194.1 30,239.3 31,855.1 34,789.2 39,306.8
(8,403.8) (9,346.6) (9,311.4) (10,500.0) (11,629.3)
19,790.3 20,892.7 22,543.7 24,289.2 27,677.5

Included revenue from both continuing and discontinued operations.

* o EHRR A R R DA RS 2 A
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Particulars of major properties held by the subsidiaries and joint
ventures of the Group at 31st December, 2015 are as set out

below:

AL 2 WA F KB B A A R AR
ToA=t AR EEY SRR T

Effective %

Gross floor held by
Lease area (S.M.) the Group Stage of
Name/location expiry Type EEMmE AEE completion
B8R w5 Vi) (FHK) BEilAE% 55 A P BR
Hong Kong
i
Park Place 2056* R 3,475 100.00 Existing
7 Tai Tam Reservoir Road BAYE
Hong Kong
HERI5E
i
KIFKIEE7 9%
Allied Cargo Centre 2047 G 46,594 100.00 Existing
150-164 Texaco Road BAYE
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
i @EF' L
R
L 150-164 58
60 Plantation Road 2066 R 639 100.00 Existing
The Peak, Hong Kong BAYE
A LLITH
TR 605%
Orchid Court 2049 R 791 100.00 Existing
38 Tung On Street RAEY)E
Mongkok, Kowloon C 201 100.00 Existing
LT ] RERYES
JUBERE A
L3859
The Redhill Peninsula 2056* R 596 100.00 Existing
18 Pak Pat Shan Road BAY
Tai Tam, Hong Kong CP 7Y 100.00 Existing
AL B (Phase IV)
fRi YN HAY)E
HZELIE18%% (B Pa)
China Online Centre 2026* C 15,680 100.00 Existing
333 Lockhart Road BAYE
Wanchai, Hong Kong
HH B A A L
FIEIT
B Sii3335%
St. George Apartments 2081 R 10,287 100.00 Existing
No. 81 Waterloo Road A
Ho Man Tin, Kowloon CP GORE 100.00 Existing
L VRPN EREEYES
JUREAT SCH
TSR

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAIA



Name/location

£/ A

Lease

expiry
% F 58

Type
k2|

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EEEE
(FHK)

Effective %
held by

the Group
REE
BHEE%

Stage of
completion

5T AP BR

Hong Kong (Cont’d)
&EB(E)

Ibis Hong Kong North Point
138 Java Road

North Point, Hong Kong
HA AW AL A
AL A

I HEIE 13858

No. 239 Jaffe Road and
Nos. 10-12 Stewart Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
FHBT

A 23955 )
B T10E 1295

No. 9 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong
LAEPN L L

Allied Kajima Building
138 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
W5 o = R L
AT
hATHI138%E

Novotel Century Hong Kong
238 Jaffe Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

A & I AT S

A AT

w2 23848

Tregunter Tower 3
14 Tregunter Path
Hong Kon
AR ] 45 3 e
S

HFARAEEAE 1458

Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road
Hong Kong

i 8 L
HBE185%

] Residence

60 Johnston Road
Hong Kong
7w

T

HE L FoE0E

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED

BAWE(FER) AR

»

G

2083

2027+

2854

2047

2047

2051

20537

2054

6,825

5,083

1,277

20,442

27,364

745

2,970¢

50

100.00

50.00*

100.00

50.00*

50.00*

100.00

55.34

100.00

Existing
BAYE

Demolition
preparation in
progress**

PrBREEA

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BAY=

Existing
HAYE

Existing
BAYE

Existin

BAYE

237
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Name/location

B A

Lease

expiry
% F H8

Type
S]]

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EREEE
(FHXK)

Effective %
held by

the Group
REE
BHEE%

Stage of

completion

5T AP B

Outside Hong Kong
BRI

FM 2100 Road and
Diamond Head Boulevard
Harris County

Texas, U.S.A.

2 E

Sofitel Philippine Plaza Manila
Cultural Centre of the
Philippines Complex

Roxas Boulevard

Pasay City

Manila, Philippines
SEHRE RS e

Tian An Centre

No. 338 Nanjing Road West
Huangpu District

Shanghai

People’s Republic of China
PN YN ]
e A RILHE

ity

B [

P A P 3388

Shenzhen Tian An Cyber Park
Futian District

Shenzhen

People’s Republic of China
GRYI| K 22 U I,

EEE Y NEREE e i)

el

i [

Tianjin Tian An Cyberpark
Zhangjiawo, Xiqging District
Tianjin

People’s Republic of China
PNE NS (T
e A RILHE

PNE

P R K

Freehold
e

2041

2044

2052

2060

R

13,875,262%

73,866

1,873

3,812

2,040

100.00

50.00*

55.34

32.20

32.20

Existing
BlAYE

Existing
BlLAYE

Existing
TR ELY/ES

Existing
RAEYE

Existing
SRR /B S



Lease
Name/location expiry

8 HE % F 58

Type
k2|

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EEEE
(FHK)

239

Effective %
held by

the Group
REE
BHEE%

Stage of
completion

5T AP BR

Outside Hong Kong (Cont’d)
BREINE)

Optics Valley International Plaza 2043
No. 889 Luoyu Road

East Lake High-Tech

Development Zone, Wuhan

People’s Republic of China

e B

SIEINEE I

B ALY

190 T A 5 [

HE WG 889 %

The Shuncheng Office 2046
Wouhua District

Kunming

People’s Republic of China

NESRIE S Il

e \ RIEA B

B

LRl

Block 2 of No. 101 building 2061
Cuibai Road, Chunhuilu Street

Dadukou District

Chongging

People’s Republic of China

EE N\ R AL B

R

R [

R B A R B 1

101 5821%

Times Centre 2046
No. 160 Zhengyang Road

Chengyang District

Qingdao

People’s Republic of China

GEAVE P

FEE N\ R AL B

)

Ik 1

IEFG B 160%E

43, Beizhan 1st Road 2044
Shenhe District

Shenyang

People’s Republic of China

e N R

%

{9 [

ALt — 4358

A ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMITED
BawE (FEE)FRAA

1,535

1,237

2,978

1,317

2,038

32.20 Existing
BAY=

32.20 Existing
TR ELY/ES

32.20 Existing
BAYE

32.20 Existing
BAYR

32.20 Existing
BAY=
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Name/location

B A

Lease

expiry
% F H8

Effective %

Gross floor
area (S.M.)
EREEE
(FHXK) =1

Type
k2|

held by

the Group

REE
#=EE %

Stage of
completion

5T AP B

Outside Hong Kong (Cont'd)
ERBIHNE)

Huagiang Plaza

Lixia District

Jinan

People’s Republic of China
R 5

e \ R ILHE

il

J& T Ik

SFC Sincere Centre

No. 99 Wuyi Road
Yuzhong District
Chongging

People s Republic of China
SFCHH % -0
FHEE N\ RALFIEY

HEE

i [

T—p%99%%

Sincere Centre

No. 25 Fuging Road Er Duan
Chenghua District

Chengdu

People’s Republic of China
b fe ol

S INEE

AR

S

JRF 5 B — B2 59%

Yaopeng Mingzhu

Yunling Road

Creative Industrial Park
Dali City, Yunnan

People’s Republic of China
TG B 2k

hEE N\ RALFE
eI

Al 3[R

e PN

2050

2050

2051

2046

C 1,958

C 1,798

C 1,929

C 736

32.20

32.20

32.20

32.20

Existing
BAY=

Existing
BAHYE

Existing
BAY

Existing
BAYE

Notes:
Types of properties:

Parking Spaces

R-Residential, C-Commercial, G-Godown, H-Hotel,
| -Industrial, P -Property under construction, CP -Car

E Indicates properties held through a joint venture
** Expected construction completion in 2018

& With option to renew for a further term of 75 years
+  With option to renew for a further term of 99 years
9 Saleable area

i Site area

##  Number of car parking spaces

A

ALLIED PROPERTIES (H.K.) LIMIT
BawE (FEE)FRAIA

R -
ES U

o ER-MaEA

kSR EA7ES

o FEIAR R ER T

= A AE A AR
= AL U

g S5 A
MUY
i HAEH

R—fEE > C— % > G—HKE > H-—VEJ5 >
|— L3> P—fEEYE - CP—H{
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